
 
 

AUGUST 15, 2018 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

3:30 P.M. Closed Session; 4:30 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Sam Abed 

 DEPUTY MAYOR John Masson 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  Ed Gallo 
  Michael Morasco 

 CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp 

 CITY CLERK Diane Halverson 

 CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 

 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin 

 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   

 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 



 

August 15, 2018 
3:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 

is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 
prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 

Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 
instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 
a. Property:  220 S. Broadway, APN 233-091-02 

City Negotiator: Jeffrey Epp, City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Escondido Education Compact 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement 

II. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION/SIGNIFICANT 

EXPOSURE (Government Code 54956.9(d)(2))  

a. One Case: Claim No. 5017  

 

  



ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

August 15, 2018 
4:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION:  
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   

 

FLAG SALUTE   
 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 
 

 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 

refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 

will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting.   



CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 

Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 
or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY/RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled 

4. FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH TEMPLETON FINANCIAL 

SERVICES, INC. TO PROVIDE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES TO THE CITY AND 
RECEIVE AND FILE SECOND QUARTER 2018 INVESTMENT REPORT - 

Request the City Council approve a month-to-month extension of the existing investment management 

services agreement with Templeton Financial Services, Inc.; authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute documents on behalf of the City; and receive and file the Second Quarter 2018 Investment 

Report.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Treasurer's Office: Douglas W. Shultz) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-135 

5. 2018 WEST FOUNDATION CANINE GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a $50,000 

Canine Grant from the Gary and Mary West Foundation through the Escondido Foundation; authorize 

the Chief of Police and Police Department staff to execute contract documents on behalf of the City; 

and approve budget adjustments needed to spend grant funds.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

6. YEAR 2019 HOLIDAYS - 

Request the City Council approve designating the dates that City of Escondido offices will be closed in 

the year 2019 for holiday observances.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-125 

7. REPEAL ESCONDIDO MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 19, ARTICLE 2, BOARD OF REVIEW, AND 

AMEND CITY PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS RULE 28, ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW, 

AND APPEAL TO BOARD OF REVIEW - 
Request the City Council approve amending Personnel Rules and Regulations Rule 28, implementing 

the changes that will result upon dissolution of the Board of Review, and approve amending Escondido 
Municipal Code Chapter 19, Article 2, Board of Review, to transfer the authority for employee due 

process disciplinary hearings from the Board of Review to an Administrative Law Judge.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Sheryl Bennett and City 
Attorney's Office: Michael R. McGuinness) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2018-139  B) ORDINANCE NO. 2018-08 (First Reading and Introduction) 

 

  



CONSENT – RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 

Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of 

Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

8. REZONE, MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN, DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, TENTATIVE 
SUBDIVISION MAP, GRADING EXEMPTIONS, AND SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN - 

WOHLFORD RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION (SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, AND ENV 15-0001) 

Request the City Council approve certifying a Final Environmental Impact Report and adoption of a 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Wohlford residential subdivision proposal, which 

includes a total of 55 residential lots and eight open space lots on approximately 40.62 acres of property 
located on the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, across from Encino Drive and between Sunset/Ranchito 

Drive and Choya Canyon Road; approve a Tentative Subdivision Map for 55 residential lots and eight 

open space lots, Grading Exemptions for cut and fill slopes in excess of Grading Ordinance limits, and 
a Specific Alignment Plan for improvements to Bear Valley Parkway; and approve rezoning the project 

site from RE-20 (Residential Estates; 20,000 SF minimum lot size) to PD-R 1.39 (Planned Development-
Residential, 1.39 dwelling units per acre); approve a Master Development Plan to implement lot 

clustering and establish development standards; and approve a Development Agreement to define 

responsibility for improvements to Bear Valley Parkway as specified in a Specific Alignment Plan, that 
has been prepared and is to be considered with the project , concurrent with the rest of the 

development proposal.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2018-120  B) RESOLUTION NO. 2018-122   

C) ORDINANCE NO. 2018-17 (First Reading and Introduction) 

9. AMENDMENTS TO THE ESCONDIDO ZONING CODE AND DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN TO 

CONDITIONALLY PERMIT DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANTS AND CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT FOR A NEW DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANT AT 350 W. VALLEY PARKWAY (PHG 

17-0014, PHG 17-0015, AND ENV 17-0003) - 
Request the City Council approve amending Article 1 (Definitions) of the Escondido Zoning Code to 

define drive-through businesses and to amend the Downtown Specific Plan to allow drive-through 

restaurants, subject to a conditional use permit, in the Gateway Transit (GT) and Centre City Urban 
(CCU) Districts; approve the adoption of a Final Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration 

(IS/MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP); and approve a Conditional Use 
Permit for a proposed drive-through restaurant located at 350 W. Valley Parkway.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2018-124  B) ORDINANCE NO. 2018-18 (First Reading and Introduction) 

 

  



FUTURE AGENDA 

10. FUTURE AGENDA - 

The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 

items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 

announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 

Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

 WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT - 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 
are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

ADJOURNMENT 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

August 22 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers 

August 29 - - No Meeting - 

September 5 - - No Meeting - 

September 12 - - No Meeting - 



TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 
the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 

are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 

• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  
• In the Library (239 S. Kalmia) during regular business hours and  

• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 

or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 

inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 
Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  

They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  
The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 

www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 
home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 

of the month at 3:30 in Closed Session and 4:30 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the CDC, Escondido Joint Powers 

Financing Authority and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


 

 
Consent Item No. 1  August 15, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

A F F I D A V I T S 
 

OF 
 

I T E M  
 

P O S T I N G 



 
 
Consent Item No. 2  August 15, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A P P R O V A L   
 

OF 
 

W A R R A N T    R E G I S T E R 



 
 
Consent Item No. 3  August 15, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A P P R O V A L 
 

O F 
 

M I N U T E S 
 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 4  August 15, 2018  File No. 0490-55, 0600-10, A-3227 

 

SUBJECT: First Amendment to the Consulting Agreement with Templeton Financial 
Services, Inc. to provide Investment Management Services to the City and 
Receive and File Second Quarter 2018 Investment Report 

 

DEPARTMENT: City Treasurer’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2018-135 approving a month-to-month 
extension of the existing investment management services agreement with Templeton Financial 
Services, Inc., and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute documents on behalf of the City.  It 
is requested that the City Council receive and file the Second Quarter 2018 Investment Report. 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

For the past year, Templeton Financial Services, Inc. has provided investment management services 
on $20 million of the City’s portfolio for an annual fee of $25,000 pro-rated monthly.  They have 
agreed to continue to provide these services on a month-to-month basis for a monthly fee of $2,083 
through December 31, 2018, or until a new contract for investment management services is awarded, 
whichever is sooner.  This will allow City Staff enough time to solicit proposals for investment 
management services on a larger portion of the City’s longer-term portfolio and bring a new contract 
to City Council for adoption.  
 
CORRELATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN: 
 
This item relates to the Council’s Action Plan regarding Fiscal Management and specifically, Strategy 
Item 7; evaluate opportunities for outsourcing city operations. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION: 
 
The City Council awarded a contract for investment management services to Templeton on July 12, 
2017, and Templeton began managing $20 million of the City’s longer-term investments on 
September 11, 2017.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The investment management services contract with Templeton was designed as a pilot program set 
to expire in one year from the date the agreement was fully executed.  The purpose of this contract 
was to test whether using an external investment manager could provide the City with sufficient 
additional return on investment to offset the management fees charged to provide this service. 



First Amendment to Consulting Agreement with Templeton and Treasurer’s Investment Report 
August 15, 2018 
Page 2 

 
A growing trend nationally is for cities to engage investment advisers to assist in managing their 
municipal investment portfolios.  In engaging an investment adviser, a City will benefit from the 
expertise and specialization of a professional portfolio manager; access to an investment adviser’s 
expensive analytical tools; continuity of operations during staff turnover, the resources to manage 
public funds more effectively and prudently, and likely yield improvement.  Many City’s report seeing 
their annual yield improve by 20 to 40 basis points, gross of fees. 
 
From July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018, the average annual yield of the City’s combined portfolios 
managed by the City and Templeton increased from 1.24 percent to 1.6 percent.  This is an increase 
of 36 basis points over last year’s returns.  Based on the positive results of this pilot program, the City 
plans to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for investment advisory services that will expand the 
amount of funds under management and the term of the contract.  This process will take about 3 to 4 
months to complete.  Staff will return to Council with a recommendation to award the contract to the 
advisor that is determined to be most qualified investment management firm and the most 
advantageous to the City.   
 
SECOND QUARTER 2018 INVESTMENT REPORT: 
 
From April 1, 2018 to June 30, 2018, the City of Escondido’s (City)’s investment portfolio increased 
from $115.5 million to $145 million.  The adjusted average annual yield increased from 1.43 percent 
to 1.52 percent with the portfolio duration at 1.19.  An excess of cash receipt inflows over cash 
payment outflows for the quarter resulted in an increase of $29.5 million in the book value of the 
investment portfolio.  Major components of the net $29.5 million increase are: 

   

In 

   

Millions 

        

 

County Redevelopment Distribution 
 

$ 8.68  
 Sales Tax Allocation     8.32 

 
County Property Tax Allocation 

 
 7.76 

 
Property Tax In-Lieu Allocation 

 
 6.55  

 Project Reimbursements     3.77 
 Sale of City Property     1.72 
 Change in Operational Account Balance     1.82 

 
CALPERS  Contributions 

 
 (7.08) 

 Purchased Water    (2.04) 

 
    Net Increase in Investment Portfolio 

 
$29.50 

    
 

   

 

 



First Amendment to Consulting Agreement with Templeton and Treasurer’s Investment Report 
August 15, 2018 
Page 3 

Details of the City’s investment portfolio are included in the attached reports that are listed below: 

 Summary of Investment Allocation Graph as of June 30, 2018 

 Summary of Investment Portfolio Yield for the last 12 months 

 Summary and Detailed Reports of Investment Portfolio – April 2018 through June 2018 

 Schedule of Investments Matured – April 2018 through June 2018 

 Schedule of Funds Managed by Outside Parties as of June 30, 2018 
 
There are adequate funds to meet the next six-month’s expected expenditures.  The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust’s monthly statement is the source for the market valuation.  At June 30, 2018 the 
current investment portfolio balance exceeded the City’s $25.1 million current investment policy 
requirement by $17.3 million. As of June 30, 2018, the City complies with all requirements of the 
City’s Investment Policy. 

As of June 30, 2018, Templeton’s investment portfolio balance was $19.94 million with an adjusted 
average yield (net of fees) at 2.29 percent and a portfolio duration at 3.73. The investment portfolio 
has been comprised of Municipal Bonds, obligations issued by United States Government Agencies, 
Corporate Bonds, Supranational Securities, United States Treasury Bills, and Money Market 
accounts. 

Details of the Templeton’s investment portfolio are included in the attached reports that are listed 
below: 

 Summary of Average Yield Calculation on Templeton’s Investment Portfolio for the Period of April 
2018 through June 2018 

 Monthly Investment Portfolio Reports Prepared by Templeton – April 2018 through June 2018 
   
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Douglas W. Shultz, City Treasurer 

8/8/2018 3:22 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Attachment 1 – Summary of Investment Allocation Graph as of June 30, 2018 
2. Attachment 2 – Summary of Investment Portfolio Yield for the last 12 months 
3. Attachment 3 – Summary and Detailed Reports of Investment Portfolio April – June 2018 
4. Attachment 4 – Schedule of Investments Matured April – June 2018 
5. Attachment 5 – Schedule of Funds Managed by Outside Parties as of June 30, 2018 
6. Attachment 6 – Summary of Average Yield Calculation on Templeton’s Investment Portfolio 
7. Attachment 7 – Monthly Investment Portfolio Reports Prepared by Templeton 
8. Resolution No. 2018-135 
9. Resolution No. 2018-135 – Exhibit A Consulting Agreement 





































Attachment 7



















































RESOLUTION NO. 2018-135 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 
CLERK TO EXECUTE, ON BEHALF OF THE 
CITY, A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH TEMPLETON 
FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Escondido entered into an agreement with Templeton 

Financial Services, Inc. on August 8, 2017, to provide investment management services 

for the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the Investment Management Services Agreement expired on 

August 8, 2018; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and Templeton Financial Services, Inc. desire to execute a 

First Amendment to the existing agreement to extend the term of the agreement on a 

month-to-month basis through December 31, 2018, or until a new contract for 

investment management services is awarded, whichever is sooner; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be the best 

public interest to approve the First Amendment to the Investment Services Agreement 

with Templeton Financial Services, Inc. on a month-to-month basis for a monthly fee of 

$2,083. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 



 2.  That the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized, on behalf of the City, to 

execute the First Amendment to the Investment Management Agreement with Templeton 

Financial Services, Inc., which is attached as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution and 

incorporated by this reference.   

 

 



  Resolution 2018-135 
  Exhibit “A” 
  Page 1 of 2 

 - 1 -  

   
 
 

 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

This “Amendment” is made this 15th day of August, 2018. 

 
Between: CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 a municipal corporation 
 201 N. Broadway 
 Escondido, California 92025 
 ("CITY") 

 
And: Templeton Financial Services, Inc. 
 1490 S. Price Road, Suite 101 
 Chandler, AZ 85286 
 Attn:  Len Templeton 
 480-883-1073 
 ("CONSULTANT") 

Witness that whereas: 

A. CITY and CONSULTANT entered into an agreement on August 8, 2017 

(“Agreement”), wherein CITY retained CONSULTANT to provide investment 

management services on $20 million of the CITY’s longer term investments in 

accordance with the CITY’s Investment Policy and California Government Code; 

and 

B. CITY and CONSULTANT desire to extend the Agreement on a month-to-month 

basis through December 31, 2018 or until a new contract for investment 

management services is awarded, whichever is sooner; 

C. CONSULTANT has agreed to continue to provide these services on a month-to-

month basis for a monthly fee of $2,083; 

 NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between CITY and 

CONSULTANT as follows: 



  Resolution 2018-135 
  Exhibit “A” 
  Page 2 of 2 
 

  - 2 -   

 

1. The term of the Agreement is hereby extended on a month-to-month basis not to 

exceed December 31, 2018, for a monthly fee of $2,083. 

2. All other terms and conditions of the Original Agreement, between CITY and 

CONSULTANT, shall remain in full force and effect.  If any of the terms of this 

Amendment conflict with the Agreement, this Amendment must prevail. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the 

day and year first above written. 
 
 CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ____________________________________ 
 Sam Abed 
 Mayor 
 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ____________________________________ 
 Diane Halverson 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
Date:  __________________ _____________________________________ 
 Len Templeton 
 President of Templeton Financial Services, Inc. 
  

 (The above signature should be notarized) 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, City Attorney 

 

By:  ____________________________ 

  

 

 

THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST QUALIFIED PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. 
 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 5    August 15, 2018   File No. 0430-80 

 

SUBJECT:  2018 West Foundation Canine Grant and Budget Adjustment 
 
DEPARTMENT: Police Department 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is requested that the City Council authorize the Escondido Police Department to accept a $50,000 
Canine Grant from the Gary and Mary West Foundation through the Escondido Foundation; authorize 
the Chief of Police and Police Department staff to execute contract documents on behalf of the City; 
and approve budget adjustments needed to spend grant funds. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:   
 
On August 7, 2013, the City Council authorized the Escondido Police Department to accept a 
$60,750 Canine Grant from the Gary and Mary West Foundation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Escondido Police Department received a $50,000 Canine Grant from the Gary and Mary West 
Foundation through the Escondido Foundation.  Police canines enhance officer and community safety 
by assisting with criminal apprehension, evidence detection, and narcotic investigations. The 
Department currently has four police canines. Grant funds will be used to purchase two police 
canines and canine equipment.  The funds will also cover costs associated with the police canine 
handler training. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Justin Murphy, Police Captain  

8/7/2018 11:50 a.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Budget Adjustment 





 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 6    August 15, 2018   File No. 0740-30 

 

SUBJECT:  Year 2019 Holidays 
 

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2018-125 to designate the dates that City of 
Escondido (“City”) offices will be closed in the year 2019 for holiday observances.  
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
Each year the City Council adopts a resolution, as required by State law, to designate the days that 
City offices will be closed for holiday observances.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Holidays are considered an employee benefit and are, therefore, a part of the negotiation process 
with our various bargaining units.  There are ten recognized holidays each year. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Sheryl Bennett, Deputy City Manager/Administrative Services 

8/9/2018 8:42 a.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2018-125 
2. Resolution No. 2018-125 – Exhibit A - City Recognized Holidays Year 2019 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-125 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
DESIGNATING HOLIDAYS ON WHICH CITY 
OFFICES SHALL BE CLOSED FOR 
CALENDAR YEAR 2019 

 
WHEREAS, Section 6700 of the California Government Code designates days 

that are holidays in the State of California (“State”); and     

 WHEREAS, Section 6702 of the California Government Code provides that City 

offices shall be closed on designated State holidays unless otherwise provided by the 

City; and          

 WHEREAS, this City Council desires and deems it to be in the best public 

interest to designate those holidays on which the City of Escondido offices will be 

closed.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:        

 1. That the above recitations are true.     

 2. That the public offices of the City of Escondido shall be closed on the 

following dates set forth in Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution and incorporated by 

this reference.  



Resolution No. 2018-125 
Exhibit “A:” 
Page 1 of 1 

 City Recognized Holidays Year 2019  
 

 

New Year’s Day Tuesday, January 1, 2019 
 
Martin Luther King Day   Monday, January 21, 2019 
 
Presidents’ Day    Monday, February 18, 2019 
 
Memorial Day    Monday, May 27, 2019 
 
Independence Day   Thursday, July 4, 2019 
       
Labor Day     Monday, September 2, 2019 
 
Veterans’ Day  Monday, November 11, 2019 
 
Thanksgiving Day   Thursday, November 28, 2019 
 
Day after Thanksgiving Friday, November 29, 2019 
 
Christmas Day  Wednesday, December 25, 2019 
 

 
Library: 

- Closed Sunday, April 21, 2019 
- Close at 5:00 p.m. on the following holidays:  Wednesday, November 27, 2019;  

Tuesday, December 24, 2019; and Tuesday, December 31, 2019 
 
East Valley Community Center: 

- Closed Sunday, April 21, 2019 
- Open 10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. on the following holidays:  Monday, January 21, 2019;  

Monday, February 18, 2019; Monday, November 11, 2019; Friday, November 29, 2019;  
- Close at 3:00 p.m. Wednesday, November 27, 2019 and Tuesday, December 24, 2019 
- Closed December 25, 2019 – January 1, 2020 for annual floor maintenance 

 
Escondido Sports Center: 

- Closed Sunday, April 21, 2019 
- Open 3:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. on the following holidays:  Monday, January 21, 2019;  

Monday, February 18, 2019; Monday, November 11, 2019; Friday, November 29, 2019 
 
Park Avenue Community Center: 

- Closed Sunday, April 21, 2019 
- Close at 3:00 p.m. on the following holidays:  Wednesday, November 27, 2019; 

Tuesday, December 24, 2019; Tuesday, December 31, 2019 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 7   August 15, 2018     File No. 0680-50 

 

SUBJECT: Repeal Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 19, Article 2, Board of Review, and 
Amend City Personnel Rules and Regulations Rule 28, Administrative Review 
and Appeal to Board of Review 

 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources Department and City Attorney’s Office 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2018-139 to amend Personnel Rules and Regulations Rule 28, 
implementing the changes that will result upon dissolution of the Board of Review; and   

 
2. Introduce Ordinance No. 2018-08 to amend Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 19, Article 2, 

Board of Review, to transfer the authority for employee due process disciplinary hearings from 
the Board of Review to an Administrative Law Judge. 

 
PREVIOUS ACTION: 
 
The City Council last made changes to the Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 19, Personnel, in 
2008, and to the Personnel Rules and Regulations in December 2013.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City of Escondido (City) has used a Board of Review (Board) since the late 1950’s. The Board 
includes seven members of the public who are appointed by the City Council.  The members serve a 
four-year term. The Board serves as an autonomous hearing body to review and issue findings 
regarding disciplinary actions being appealed by full-time, permanent, classified employees. The 
Board’s areas of jurisdiction include: 
 

1) Suspension in excess of five working days 
2) Salary Reduction 
3) Demotion 
4) Dismissal 

 
The Board is convened on an as-needed basis and is rarely used.  In the past decade, the Board has 
been convened for disciplinary purposes twice. Since the Board is used so infrequently, it is often 
difficult to fill vacancies, because often those who wish to participate on a City board or commission 
are seeking to be more actively involved in civic service than the Board allows.   



Repeal of EMC Chap 19 Article 2 Board of Review and Amend Personnel Rules and Regulations Rule 28 
August 15, 2018  
Page 2 

 
City staff and each of its labor groups have met and agreed to the replacement of the Board with an 
Administrative Law Judge (ALJ).   
 
All parties agree that this change has many benefits, including efficiencies in due process 
proceedings, the legal expertise provided by a professional trained individual, and increased 
impartiality. 

The timeframes and responsibilities of all parties will remain the same as outlined in the current 
Rules, with the exception of employees covered by the Public Safety Officers’ and Firefighters’ 
Procedural Bill of Rights.  These employees may exercise their rights to appeal a written reprimand to 
the City Manager and also may appeal to an ALJ for suspensions in excess of three days.  The City 
Council will continue to have the ability to review the non-binding decision of the ALJ.  The City 
Council in its sole discretion and by majority vote may approve, modify of disapprove the findings of 
the ALJ. 

Upon the City Council approval of these modifications, the City will contract with the Office of 
Administrative Hearings for the assignment of an ALJ as needed.  The City will amend Rule 28, to 
replace the Board authority with the authority of an ALJ and amend the Escondido Municipal Code to 
reflect the replacement of the Board and the authority of the ALJ.  

Resolution No. 2018-139 and associated Exhibit A, Rule 28, incorporates the above-mentioned 
changes to the Personnel Rules and Regulations and Ordinance No. 2018-08 addresses the 
proposed changes to the Municipal Code. 

 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Sheryl Bennett, Deputy City Manager/Admin. Svs.        Michael R. McGuinness, City Attorney 

8/9/2018 8:42 a.m.             8/8/2018 3:31 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Resolution No. 2018-139 
2. Resolution No. 2018-139 - Exhibit A - Rule 28, Administrative Review and Appeal 
3. Ordinance No. 2018-08 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-139 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS, 
RULE 28, ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND 
APPEAL 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 45000 affirms the local 

authority to adopt a personnel system that is adaptable to the size and type of city, and 

Escondido Municipal Code Section 19-21 states that the City Council, after hearing, 

shall adopt, amend or repeal rules governing classified service; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) last revised its Personnel Rules and 

Regulations in December 2013 by Resolution No. 2013-149; and 

WHEREAS, the City now deems it in the best interest of the City to amend 

Personnel Rules and Regulations Rule 28 to reflect the dissolution of the board of 

review and the use of an administrative law judge in the appeal process; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s negotiating staff met with the Teamsters Local 911, the 

Escondido City Employees’ Association, the Firefighters’ Association, and the Police 

Officers’ Association representatives, to discuss the revised personnel process and 

have reached agreement regarding the Personnel Rules and Regulations Rule 28, 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by this reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:  

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council amends the City of Escondido Personnel Rules and 

Regulations, Rule 28, as set forth in Exhibit “A” and is incorporated by this reference. 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 9 

 

 

RULE 28 

ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND APPEAL   

SECTION 1.   Administrative Review:  Any Regular Employee (“Employee”) has a 

right to an administrative review of a suspension, salary reduction, demotion, or 

discharge.   

The administrative review set forth in this Rule, shall be conducted by the City 

Manager or designee prior to the effective date of the disciplinary action, unless unusual 

circumstances justify an effective date which makes prior review infeasible. In this event, 

the review shall be conducted within a reasonable period of time after the effective date of 

the disciplinary action.  The City Manager shall designate the respective Department Head 

when an Employee protected by the Public Safety Officers’ or Firefighters’ Procedural Bill 

of Rights requests an administrative review. 

The administrative review is an informal proceeding where the Employee will be 

given an opportunity to present his or her case.  It does not involve the examination or 

cross examination of witnesses.  It occurs prior to the imposition of discipline.  The 

decision of the City Manager or designee completes the Administrative Review and the 

discipline is imposed, if appropriate.  An Administrative Review shall not affect any appeal 

rights the Employee may have to a hearing before an Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) or 

under provisions of the Complaint and Grievance Procedure. 

SECTION 2.  Right of Appeal:  Any Employee shall have the right to an appeal 

hearing conducted by an ALJ for any of the following disciplinary actions after notification 

of final disciplinary action:   

 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 2 of 9 

 

 

A. Suspension in excess of five working days 

B. Salary Reduction 

C. Demotion 

D. Dismissal 

Employees protected by the Public Safety Officers’ or Firefighters’ Procedural Bill of 

Rights shall also have the right to an appeal hearing conducted by the City Manager or 

designee for written reprimands and suspensions of three days or less or by an ALJ for 

suspensions greater than three working days. The City shall also make reasonable and 

good faith efforts to assure attendance of witnesses who are current City employees.  

SECTION 3. Method of Appeal:  An Employee may appeal a decision by serving 

a written Notice of Appeal with the City Clerk within ten (10) working days from receipt of 

final action.  For service to be effective, the Notice of Appeal shall be received by the City 

Clerk prior to the expiration of the ten (10) day period. A complete Notice of Appeal shall 

set forth the grounds of the appeal, a statement of the action desired by the Employee, 

and whether or not the Employee wants an open or closed hearing. The formality of a 

legal pleading is not required. 

Upon receipt of a complete Notice of Appeal, the City will promptly file a request to 

set a hearing with the State of California Office of Administrative Hearings.  The City shall 

promptly reject and return an incomplete Notice of Appeal. 

SECTION 4.  Schedule of Hearing:  An appeal hearing before an ALJ shall be 

scheduled within thirty (30) working days from the date of service of the Notice of Appeal.  

An extension may be granted if mutually agreed upon by both parties. The City shall file 

the following documents with the Office of Administrative Hearings at the time it files the 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

written request to set a hearing date, (or as soon thereafter as the documents become 

available): the City’s initial pleading; the notice of intent to take disciplinary action; the final 

notice of disciplinary action; the Employee’s Notice of Appeal, the proof of service on all 

parties; and the pertinent sections of the City’s Personnel Rules and Regulations. 

SECTION 5.  Pre-Hearing Procedure:   

A. Administrative Procedures Act:  An appeal hearing conducted by an 

ALJ shall follow the administrative hearing procedures provided in the 

Administrative Procedures Act (“APA”) codified at Government Code 

Chapters 4.5 and 5 of Title 2, Division 2 (Gov. Code §11400 et seq.) 

and the General APA Hearing Procedures codified at California Code 

of Regulations, Chapter 1 of Title 1, Division 2 (1 CCR §1000 et seq.); 

the Escondido Municipal Code and these Rules. In the event of a 

conflict between the APA and these Rules, the procedures of the 

Escondido Municipal Code and these Rules shall govern.  

B. Subpoenas:  Subpoenas may be issued in the manner proscribed by 

the General APA Hearing Procedures, California Code of Regulations 

Section 1024.   

C. Exhibits and Witness Lists:  Five (5) working days prior to the date set 

for the hearing, each party shall serve upon the other party a list of all 

witnesses and a list and copy of all exhibits.  Copies of the exhibits 

shall be presented to the other party and the ALJ assigned to the 

hearing in three (3) hole-punched notebooks with tabs down the side.  

City exhibits shall be designated by number, and Employee exhibits 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 

shall be designated by alphabetical letter.  Neither party will be 

permitted to call during the hearing, a witness not identified pursuant 

to this section nor use any exhibit not provided pursuant to this 

section unless that party can show that they could not reasonably 

have anticipated the prior need for such witness or such exhibit. 

 SECTION 6.  Hearing:   

A. Record of Proceedings and Costs:  All disciplinary appeal hearings 

may, at the discretion of either party, be recorded by a court reporter.  

Any hearing, which does not utilize a court reporter, will be 

electronically recorded.  If a court reporter is requested by either 

party, that party shall pay the cost of the court reporter. 

B. Conduct of the Hearing: 

1. The hearing need not be conducted in accordance with 

technical rules relating to evidence and witnesses but hearings 

shall be conducted in a manner most conducive to 

determination of the truth.   

2. Any relevant evidence may be admitted if it is the type of 

evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely 

in the conduct of serious affairs, regardless of the existence of 

any common law or statutory rules, which might make 

improper the admission of such evidence over objection in civil 

actions. 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 

3. Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of 

supplementing or explaining any direct evidence that shall not 

be sufficient in itself to support a finding unless it would be 

admissible over objection in civil actions. 

4. The rules dealing with privileges shall be effective to the same 

extent that they are now or hereafter may be recognized in civil 

actions.  

5. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence may be excluded.  

6. The hearing officer shall determine relevancy, weight and 

credibility of testimony and evidence.  Decisions made by the 

hearing officer shall not be invalidated by any informality in the 

proceedings. 

7. During examination of a witness, all other witnesses, except 

the parties, shall be excluded from the hearing upon motion of 

either party. 

C. Burden of Proof:  In a disciplinary appeal, the City has the burden of 

proof by preponderance of the evidence. 

D. Proceed with Hearing or Request for Continuance:  Each side should 

be asked if it is ready to proceed.  If either side is not ready and 

wishes a continuance, good cause must be stated.   

E. Testimony under Oath:  All witnesses shall be sworn in for the record 

prior to offering testimony at the hearing.  



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 

F. Presentation of the Case: The hearing shall proceed in the following 

order, unless the hearing officer directs otherwise: 

1. The City shall be permitted to make an opening statement. 

2. The Employee shall be permitted to make an opening 

statement. 

3. The party imposing disciplinary action shall produce their 

evidence. 

4. The party appealing from such disciplinary action may then 

offer their evidence. 

5. The party imposing discipline City followed by the Employee 

may offer rebutting evidence. 

G. Closing Arguments: Closing arguments shall be permitted at the 

discretion of the hearing officer.  The City shall have the right to go 

first and to close the hearing by making the last argument.  The 

hearing officer may place a time limit on closing arguments.  The 

hearing officer or the parties may request the submission of written 

briefs. The hearing officer will determine whether to allow the parties 

to submit written briefs and determine the number of pages of said 

briefs. 

 I. Right to Control Proceedings:  While the parties are generally free to 

present their case in the order that they prefer, the hearing officer 

shall control the proceedings, including, but not limited to, altering the 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 

order of witnesses, limiting redundant or irrelevant testimony, or by 

the direct questioning of witnesses.   

J. Deliberation Upon the Case:  The hearing officer should consider all 

oral and documentary evidence, the credibility of witnesses, and other 

appropriate factors in reaching a decision.   

K. Written Findings, Conclusion and Order:  The hearing officer shall 

render findings, conclusions and recommendations as soon after the 

conclusion of the hearing as possible, and in no event, later than 

twenty (20) working days after concluding the hearing, unless 

otherwise stipulated to by the parties.  A finding must be made by the 

hearing officer on each material issue.  

The hearing officer may recommend the sustaining or rejecting of any 

or all of the charges filed against the Employee and may recommend 

sustaining, rejecting or modifying the disciplinary action invoked 

against the Employee.   

 SECTION 7.   Post Hearing Procedure:  

A. The decision of the hearing officer shall be final twenty (20) working 

days after issuance of its decision, unless reviewed by the City 

Council in accordance with the following procedures: 

1. The City Council, upon its own motion made within 20 working 

days of issuance of the decision by the hearing officer, may 

review the decision. In such case, the expense of the transcript 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

of the hearing before the hearing officer shall be borne by the 

City. 

2. Either party may appeal the decision of the hearing officer to 

the City Council within ten (10) working days of issuance of the 

decision by the hearing officer.  Such appeal shall be in writing 

and delivered in person or by United States Postal Service to 

the City Clerk of the City of Escondido.  In the event of such 

appeal, the cost of the transcript shall be borne by the party 

making the appeal.  If both parties appeal, each party shall pay 

one-half of the cost of the transcript. 

B. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (A) of this section, the 

City Council may, after the receipt of an appeal from either party, in its 

sole discretion and by majority vote, decline to review the decision of 

the hearing officer.  In that event, the decision of the hearing officer 

shall be final. 

C. The City Council shall review the matter based upon the transcript 

and documentary evidence, or to conduct a new hearing, at the 

Council's discretion. In the event of City Council review of a hearing 

officer’s decision, the City Council shall consider the matter within 

thirty (30) days of receipt of the transcript.  The City Council may 

continue such consideration from time to time, but in any event shall 

take action to approve, modify or disapprove the findings and decision 

of the hearing officer within sixty (60) days of a party’s appeal or 



Resolution 2018-139 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 

Council motion to review.  The City Council shall not reverse any 

decision of the hearing officer without specific written findings 

identifying the reason for any change. The time limits for City Council 

consideration of the matter may be waived by agreement of the 

parties. 

D. The decision of the City Council shall be final. 

 SECTION 8.   Judicial Review:  

A. Petition for Writ of Mandate:  Judicial review of any final decision of 

the City Council may be had pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the 

California Code of Civil Procedure only if the petition for writ of 

mandate pursuant to such section is filed within the time limits 

specified in this section. 

B. 90 Days from Final Decision:  Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 1094.6, any such petition shall be filed not later than the 

ninetieth (90th) day following the date on which a final decision is 

issued. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-08 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
TO REPEAL ESCONDIDO MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 19, ARTICLE 2, BOARD OF 
REVIEW AND TO UPDATE THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE SECTIONS TO REFLECT THE 
DISSOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF REVIEW 
 
 

The City Council of the City of Escondido, California, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN 

as follows: 

 SECTION 1. That Section 2-66 of Article 3, Chapter 2 of the Escondido 

Municipal Code is repealed and replaced as follows: 

 Sec. 2-66. Power to consolidate offices, positions, departments, units.  

The City Manager shall have the power to consolidate or combine offices, 

positions, departments or units under this direction; provided, however, that 

nothing herein contained shall be construed to supersede the civil service 

system.  

 SECTION 2.  That Section 11-56 of Division 1, Article 3, Chapter 11 of the 

Escondido Municipal Code is hereby repealed and replaced as follows: 

 Sec. 11-56. Members in classified service and subject to civil service regulations.  

All employees of the fire department, with exception of the fire chief, shall be 

within the classified service of the City’s civil service system and under the rules 

and regulations of the civil service system. 



 

 SECTION 3.  That Section 19-1 of Article 1, Chapter 19 of the Escondido 

Municipal Code is hereby amended by deleting the following definition: 

 “Board shall mean the board of review of the City of Escondido.” 

 SECTION 4 That Section 19-29 of Article 1, Chapter 19 of the Escondido 

Municipal Code is hereby amended by replacing “board of review” with “City Manager”. 

 SECTION 5. That Article 2, Board of Review, in Chapter 19 of the Escondido 

Municipal Code is hereby repealed.  

SECTION 6.  SEPARABILITY.  If any section, subsection sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 

and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions. 

SECTION 7. That as of the effective date of this ordinance, all ordinances or 

parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 8. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of 

this Ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be prepared in accordance with 

Government Code Section 36933, to be published one time within 15 days of its 

passage in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the County and 

circulated in the City of Escondido. 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Public Hearing Item No. 8   August 15, 2018   File No. 0800-10 
 

SUBJECT: Rezone, Master Development Plan, Development Agreement, Tentative 
Subdivision Map, Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan – Wohlford 
Residential Subdivision (SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001) 

 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department, Planning Division 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council conduct a public hearing on the Wohlford residential subdivision 
proposal, which includes a total of 55 residential lots and eight open space lots on approximately 
40.62 acres of property located on the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, across from Encino Drive 
and between Sunset/Ranchito Drive and Choya Canyon Road; and take action on the 
recommendations of City staff and the Planning Commission, which recommends that the City 
Council: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2018-120, for certification of a Final Environmental Impact Report and 
adoption of a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. 
 

2. Introduce Ordinance No. 2018-17 to Rezone the project site from RE-20 (Residential Estates; 
20,000 SF minimum lot size) to PD-R 1.39 (Planned Development-Residential, 1.39 dwelling 
units per acre); to approve a Master Development Plan to implement lot clustering and 
establish development standards; and to approve a Development Agreement to define 
responsibility for improvements to Bear Valley Parkway as specified in a Specific Alignment 
Plan, that has been prepared and is to be considered with the project, concurrent with the rest 
of the development proposal. 
 

3. Adopt Resolution No. 2018-122 for a Tentative Subdivision Map for 55 residential lots and 
eight open space lots; Grading Exemptions for cut and fill slopes in excess of Grading 
Ordinance limits, and a Specific Alignment Plan for improvements to Bear Valley Parkway. 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
The proposal involves a series of actions to implement the Wohlford Residential Subdivision Project 
(“Project”), including the following: 
 

 A Rezone from RE-20 to PD-R 1.39. 

 A Master Development Plan to allow lot clustering and reduction of lot sizes below the 20,000 
SF required for the Estate II (E2) designation of the General Plan, and to establish 
development standards and general design guidelines for the project.  Approval of a Precise 
Development Plan will also be required, but the applicant or developer will submit an 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 2 
 

application for this at a later date.  The Precise Development Plan submittal will include 
detailed elevation plans and floor plans for the new residences. 

 A Tentative Subdivision Map for 55 residential lots with net sizes ranging from 10,005 SF to 
24,557 SF; eight open space lots (Lots A-H) with a combined size of 20.04 acres; one private 
street lot; and one emergency access road lot.  Two of the open space lots (C and D) would be 
occupied by bioretention basins; another five open space lots (A, B, F, G, and H) would remain 
undeveloped for protection of slopes, biological habitat, and fuel modification zones; and the 
eighth open space lot (E) would contain a pocket park, to include a tot lot, bocce ball court, 
shade structure, seating, and landscaping.  A private, ten-foot-wide decomposed gravel 
walking trail would provide pedestrian connectivity to Bear Valley Parkway at two locations: 
near the pocket park, and at the southwest corner of the development site (a new sidewalk 
along the east side of Bear Valley Parkway is proposed under this project’s Specific Alignment 
Plan, discussed below and in the Analysis section of this report).   

 Grading Exemptions to allow fill slopes up to 64’ in height within 50’ of the property line (on 
Open Space Lots A, B, and C), fill slopes up to 65’ in height beyond 50’ of the property line (on 
Open Space Lots C, F, and G), and cut slopes up to 42’ (on Lots 6 through 9, Lot 45, and 
Open Space Lots B and C), as shown on a Grading Exemption exhibit provided by the 
applicant and included as an exhibit to this staff report.  The City’s Grading Ordinance requires 
Grading Exemption approval for any fill slope within 50’ of a property line that exceeds a height 
of ten feet, any fill slope beyond 50’ of a property line that exceeds a height of 20’, and any cut 
slope that exceeds a height of 20’. 

 A Specific Alignment Plan (SAP) for phased street improvements to Bear Valley Parkway, 
which are discussed in more detail in the Analysis section of this report.  The first phase would 
add a second northbound lane along the development frontage, as well as curb, gutter, 
sidewalk, and stormwater improvements, and relocation of an existing bicycle lane and utility 
poles.  The second phase would extend these improvements to the off-site segment between 
Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the south end of the development site.  The third phase (not a part 
of this project) would construct improvements along the west side of Bear Valley Parkway, 
including a second southbound travel lane, curb, gutter, sidewalk, and stormwater 
improvements, as well as realignment of the Encino/Bear Valley intersection and a median on 
Bear Valley Parkway.  A Development Agreement, described next, would specify responsibility 
for right-of-way acquisition, construction of improvements, and reimbursement of improvement 
costs.   

 A Development Agreement for SAP improvements to the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, 
including terms for right-of-way acquisition and funding of the Phase 2 improvements between 
Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the south end of the residential development site.  A full copy of the 
proposed agreement is attached to this staff report, but highlights include the following: 

o The owner would be responsible for depositing a contribution of $215,000 with the City, 
no later than the date upon which security must be posted for these offsite 
improvements.  Beginning on the third anniversary of the effective date of the 
agreement, this contribution would be subject to annual adjustments to reflect increases 
in the Los Angeles Construction Cost Index (CCI).  Should this contribution ever exceed 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 3 
 

50 percent of reimbursable costs (described next), the contribution would be reduced 
and any excess refunded to the owner.   

o The owner would be responsible for publicly bidding the off-site improvements to 
qualified contractors, and the City would confirm the lowest responsible and responsive 
bid price, and reimburse the owner for these costs upon substantial completion of the 
off-site improvements, as well as costs for permit fees and engineering, design, and 
mitigation costs on a pro rata basis.  Reimbursement would be provided in an amount of 
$98,000 within 30 days of written request by the owner, with the remaining costs 
reimbursed within four years of the notice of completion of the off-site improvements.   

o Acquisition of right-of-way for off-site improvements would be the initial responsibility of 
the project owner, but should the owner be unable to acquire this right-of-way, the City 
could elect to do so upon written request by the owner. The City would then then have 
nine months to acquire the right-of-way after approval of improvement plans and posting 
of security for public improvements.  The City would reimburse the owner for actual 
costs of right-of-way acquisition, in an amount not to exceed the appraised value of the 
right-of-way.   

o Necessary stormwater improvements would need to be established to full growth to 
perform as designed by the City Engineer, prior to turning over maintenance 
responsibility to a homeowners’ association (HOA) to be maintained in perpetuity.  
Should the adjacent parcel (APN No. 239-050-20) be developed, the HOA would have 
no further maintenance responsibility and the City would assign such responsibility to 
that property owner. 

 
The proposal also includes the adoption of the environmental determination prepared for the Project.   
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 
The proposed Project is a private development project that will require the payment of fees in effect at 
the time permits are requested.  Per the terms of the proposed Development Agreement, the City 
would be responsible for reimbursing the owner for completion of street improvements on the east 
side of Bear Valley Parkway, between Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the development site, per the 
lowest responsible and responsive bid price.  The City would also be responsible for reimbursing the 
owner for the acquisition of right-of-way for these improvements, in an amount not to exceed the 
appraised value of the right-of-way. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
On June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission voted 7-0 to recommend that the City Council approve 
the series of actions related to the Project based upon the findings and conditions of approval. The 
Recommendation section of this report reflects the Planning Commission recommendation. 
 
Written and oral testimony was provided to the Planning Commission at their meeting on June 26, 
2018.  Six members of the public spoke at the meeting, including four residents of neighborhoods 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 4 
 
surrounding the Project, as well as one of the property owners and the permitting consultant.  
Speakers expressed concerns with the project’s impacts on traffic and drainage.  These comments 
are similar to issues raised by written communications, which are discussed in more detail in the 
Public Input section later in this report.  Please note that the Planning Commission staff report and 
draft Planning Commission meeting minutes are provided in Attachments A and B, respectively.  The 
meeting minutes provide detailed comments from the speakers and Commissioners.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The project site consists of two lots (APNs 237-131-01 and 237-131-02), together comprising 41.27 
gross acres and 40.62 net acres.  Exploratory mining activities took place on the property in the late 
19th century and/or early 20th century; though no significant mineral resources were ever found.  
Starting in 1938, the property was planted with citrus and avocado trees, and production of these 
crops continued until at least 1979, though the groves were not removed until sometime between 
1989 and 1995.  A single-family residence and detached garage were constructed on the property in 
1946.  The residence and garage are the only remaining features on the site, along with a driveway, 
irrigation system, and filled mineshafts.  Vegetation is minimal on the majority of the site, and consists 
mostly of patchy grasses and ornamental plantings, though the southern portion of the site 
(particularly along the southwestern boundary) contains substantial riparian habitat and disturbed 
cactus scrub.   
 
In 1999, Richmond American Homes submitted an application for a Tentative Subdivision Map and 
Grading Exemptions for a 62-unit subdivision on the project site (Tract 816, 99-31-GE, and 99-17-
ER).  Richmond American withdrew this application in 2001 after deciding not to purchase the 
property, and it was never brought to a public hearing. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
General Plan  
 
The General Plan designation for the subdivision site is Estate II (E2), which allows a maximum 
density of two units per acre on slopes within the 0-25 percent slope category, one unit per acre on 
slopes within the 25-35 percent category, and one unit per 20 acres on slopes over 35 percent.  
Given its topography, the maximum density for the Project site is 73 units.  The Project proposes to 
construct 55 units, and therefore would comply with the density limits of the designation.   
 
The E2 designation typically requires a minimum lot size of 20,000 SF.  However, per the General 
Plan’s Residential Clustering Policy 5.1, single-family residential projects in the E2 designation may 
contain lots as small as 10,000 SF when lot clustering is utilized.  Net residential lot sizes in the 
proposed Project range from 10,005 SF to 24,557 SF, and therefore conform to the minimum 
requirement.  Per Residential Clustering Policy 5.9, planned developments must compensate for any 
reduced residential lot sizes by providing open space in an amount equal to, or greater than, the 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 5 
 
reduction.  This Project would be responsible for open space in the amount of 464,057 SF (10.65 
acres), and provides 873,076 SF (20.04 acres), so this General Plan requirement would be satisfied.   
 
General Plan Planned Development Policies 6.1 through 6.4 provide guidance for large-scale 
planned development projects, to ensure that they complement the existing community.  Policy 6.3 in 
particular holds planned developments to high standards in terms of visual quality, protection of 
natural resources and settings, maintenance of open space and common areas, and separation 
between new developments and existing neighborhoods.  The Final EIR for the project proposes 
several mitigation measures for the protection of biological and cultural resources.  Extensive open 
space is proposed for various purposes, including protection of slopes and natural resources, 
bioretention areas, recreational facilities, and fuel modification zones.  These open space areas are 
largely concentrated around the development site perimeter, providing a buffer between the new 
residences and the surrounding neighborhood.  Design guidelines and standards have been 
proposed for the development that would ensure a visually appealing, high-quality product. 
 
Multiple policies and standards within the General Plan address development on slopes.  General 
Plan Community Character Policy 1.12 prohibits development on slopes over 35 percent.  Residential 
Development Policies 3.11 and 3.13 state that density may be transferred from these slopes 
exceeding 35 percent to other areas of the site, at a rate of one dwelling unit per 20 acres.  These 
policies also appear in the City’s Grading Ordinance, contained within Article 55 of the Zoning Code.  
The proposed project has been designed to avoid placing residential construction on slopes greater 
than 35 percent.  Small, isolated slopes of 35 percent or greater would be affected by grading and/or 
improvement activities as described earlier in the staff report, but these isolated areas do not meet 
the standards of steep slope protection as envisioned by the General Plan or its implementing 
ordinances. 
 
Open Space 
 
The proposed project would provide eight open space areas ranging in size from 0.22 to 8.05 acres, 
for recreational amenities, bioretention areas, fuel modification areas, and protection of slopes and 
biologically sensitive areas.  Most of these open space areas would be concentrated around the 
perimeter of the project site (particularly the south end of the site, where sensitive habitat is located 
and slopes are steepest), providing a buffer between residential development on the site and existing 
development on adjoining properties.  The neighborhood surrounding the development site is 
residentially zoned, with some areas under the jurisdiction of the City of Escondido and others under 
the jurisdiction of the County of San Diego.  While the neighborhoods to the east and northwest of the 
project site contain larger properties ranging from approximately an acre to several acres in size, 
neighborhoods to the southwest (on the opposite side of Bear Valley Parkway) and the south contain 
parcels that are comparable in size (a quarter of an acre to half an acre) to those proposed under this 
project.  Therefore, the proposed lot clustering would be compatible with the surrounding residential 
character. 
 
 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 6 
 
Noise and Vibration 
 
An acoustical study (last revised April 27, 2016) and construction vibration study (prepared May 19, 
2016) were completed for the residential development site by Investigative Science & Engineering, 
Inc.  An additional acoustical/vibration study was prepared by Harris and Associates on September 
27, 2016, to cover the full-width Bear Valley Parkway widening and improvement activities proposed 
under the project’s SAP.  These studies were conducted to investigate the project’s conformance to 
City of Escondido noise regulations and inform the noise analysis in the project’s EIR, and are 
included in the Final EIR as Appendices O through Q. 
 
Several mitigation measures have been proposed in the Final EIR as a result of these studies.  Noise 
and vibration during construction activities would be minimized via practices such as location of 
stationary noise sources (e.g., temporary generators) as far from sensitive receptors as possible, 
prohibition of truck idling along streets near receptors, and phasing of noise-generating activities.  
The use of “quiet” equipment and best available noise-control measures, such as mufflers, intake 
silencers, engine enclosures, noise-attenuating shields or shrouds, and/or sound blankets, would also 
be required to reduce construction noise levels to an hourly average of 75dBA at any residential 
property line, to conform to requirements described in Chapter 17 (Offenses- Miscellaneous 
Provisions), Article 12 (Noise Abatement and Control) of the City of Escondido Municipal Code.  All 
neighbors within 75 feet of any daytime vibration-producing activities would be informed in writing of 
these activities at least three weeks prior to starting work. 
 
Measures have also been proposed to minimize noise for residents of the new development.  These 
measures would require review of final site plans, building elevations, and floor plans by a qualified 
acoustical consultant to ensure that interior noise levels in the new residences do not exceed 45 dBA, 
and application of noise insulation treatments if needed.  Additionally, a sound wall would be 
constructed along the property lines adjacent to Bear Valley Parkway for Lots 1 through 5 (for Lot 1, 
the sound wall would extend along a portion of the property line that is adjacent to the project 
entrance).  This sound wall would ensure that outdoor areas on these five residential lots would not 
exceed noise limits specified in the General Plan’s Community Protection Element. 
 
Aesthetics and Visual Quality 
 
The project EIR contains an analysis of visual impacts of the proposed residential development, 
including visual simulations from three viewpoints along nearby roads (two on Bear Valley Parkway 
and one on Choya Canyon Road).  As noted in the EIR and supported by these simulations, the 
project would be constructed to conform to the existing site topography and would not significantly 
project above any ridgelines. The project would not significantly obstruct scenic vistas of distant 
ridgelines or hilltops for motorists, bicyclists, or pedestrians traveling northbound or southbound on 
Bear Valley Parkway.  For travelers on Choya Canyon Road, the development has the potential to 
obstruct views of Bernardo Mountain and distant intermediate ridgelines.  However, Choya Canyon 
Road is considerably less traveled than Bear Valley Parkway, and views of hills and ridgelines are 
already partially obstructed by existing development, landscaping, and utility lines, as well as trees 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 7 
 
planted along a portion of the road.  The EIR therefore determined that the residential development 
and SAP would cause less than significant impacts to scenic vistas.   
 
The above analysis notwithstanding, during the review period for the Draft EIR, a resident at the 
intersection of Choya Canyon Road and Chaparral Lane (directly east of the project site) expressed 
concern that a landscaped common area proposed for the northeastern boundary of the development 
site would obstruct views of surrounding hills from his home and therefore diminish his property value.  
To address this concern, the applicant modified the proposed planting plan for this area of the project 
to replace certain tree species with shorter species, including palo verde, redbud, and various shrubs, 
succulents, and grasses.  A five-foot-tall tubular steel fence is proposed for this portion of the 
development boundary for visual transparency. 
 
As noted previously in this staff report, a Precise Development Plan is required for this project to 
establish the design of the residences, including building elevations and floor plans.  The applicant 
has elected to seek this approval at a later time, when a specific developer has been selected.  When 
a Precise Development Plan application is submitted, the application will be reviewed by City staff for 
conformance with various codes and regulations and design quality, and the Planning Commission 
retains the authority to approve, conditionally approve, or deny an application for a Precise 
Development Plan.  In the meantime, the applicant has provided some general design guidelines and 
development standards for the project to enable a more thorough review of the Master Development 
Plan.  These guidelines and standards are discussed in the Supplemental Details of Request section 
of this report.  
 
Specific Alignment Plan 
 
A Specific Alignment Plan (SAP) is proposed for phased street improvements to Bear Valley 
Parkway, as follows: 
 

 Phase 1:  Includes improvements along the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, along the 
residential project frontage (approximately 2,937 linear feet).  New improvements would 
include one additional northbound travel lane, curb, gutter, sidewalk, and stormwater 
improvements in accordance with the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(USEPA) Green Streets guidelines (vegetated swales, street tree wells, etc.)  An existing Class 
II bike lane would remain, as would existing utility poles, but both would be shifted eastward to 
accommodate the widened road and right-of-way.  Completion of Phase 1 improvements 
would require dedication of land along the majority of the project frontage to widen the Bear 
Valley Parkway right-of-way to accommodate proposed street improvements, though a small 
portion of the existing right-of-way at the far south end of the development site would need to 
be vacated.  The applicant or developer would assume full responsibility for Phase 1 
improvements.   
 

 Phase 2:  Includes improvements along the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, between 
Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the southern boundary of the residential development 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 8 
 

(approximately 528 linear feet).  As with Phase 1, these improvements would include the 
second northbound lane (to transition from the single northbound lane south of the 
Sunset/Ranchito intersection), curb, gutter, sidewalk, bike lane, and stormwater measures.  A 
proposed Development Agreement would define the terms for acquisition of the right-of-way 
necessary in order to complete these off-site improvements, as well as responsibility for 
installing the improvements (see below).     

 

 Phase 3:  Includes improvements along the west side of Bear Valley Parkway (approximately 
3,560 linear feet between Choya Canyon Road and Sunset Drive/Ranchito Drive, including the 
intersection with Encino Drive).  This phase would also construct a center median ranging in 
width from 2’ to 14’ and containing a vegetated swale for stormwater management, and would 
signalize and realign the intersection of Bear Valley Parkway and Encino Drive.  The applicant 
would not be responsible for improvements on this side of the road, and a timeline for their 
completion has not been determined, though a condition of approval has been proposed 
requiring the applicant to make a fair-share contribution toward the realignment and 
signalization of the Bear Valley/Encino intersection.  The applicant has provided a plan 
showing the ultimate buildout of Phase 3 improvements for informational purposes, so that 
staff and decision-makers can see how Phase 1 and Phase 2 improvements will tie into the 
ultimate vision for this segment of Bear Valley Parkway. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
The Planning Division completed an Initial Study for the project per Section 15063 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The Initial Study identified several environmental topics and 
issues requiring further analysis, due to their potential to experience significant project-related 
impacts.  These topics included aesthetics, agricultural resources, biological resources, cultural 
resources (including tribal cultural resources), geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, 
land use and planning, noise, and transportation and traffic.  The Initial Study concluded that an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was the appropriate format for analysis of these issues.  On 
November 28, 2016, a Notice of Preparation (NOP) was distributed for the project in compliance with 
Section 15082 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, along with copies of 
the Initial Study.  The purpose of the NOP was to inform the public, responsible agencies, and 
interested parties about the proposed project and the intent to prepare an EIR.  Four comments were 
submitted from state and local agencies in response to the NOP. 
 
A Draft EIR was then prepared for the project and circulated for a 45-day public review from March 
27, 2017, through May 12, 2017.  The public comment period (including letters and email) was 
intended to provide interested parties and organizations with an opportunity to comment of the Draft 
EIR in terms of its adequacy, completeness, and validity of any recommendations or conclusions 
reached therein.  Fifteen comments from state/local agencies and individuals were received during 
this review period.  Responses to those comments have been incorporated into the Final EIR.  A 
sixteenth party, the San Luis Rey Band of Mission Indians, submitted a letter on August 3, after the 
public review period had closed.  This letter was received too late for inclusion in the Final EIR; 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 9 
 
however, a copy was attached to the Planning Commission staff report.  In consideration of the 
foregoing, the Final EIR has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of CEQA, incorporates 
comments from public agencies and the general public, and contains appropriate responses by the 
City to those comments.  Mitigation measures required under CEQA have been developed to reduce 
the potential for adverse impacts with respect to biological resources, tribal cultural resources, 
geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, noise, and transportation and traffic. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT: 
 
Public outreach was conducted in the City’s review and consideration of the Project proposal.  The 
Project application was circulated to various City, County, and regional agencies for review, and 
modifications were made to the Project to address any concerns.  No new issues of concern have 
been identified.  Comments from agencies have either been addressed through the processing of the 
Project or have been included as Conditions of Approval.   
 
On November 28, 2016, a Notice of Preparation (NOP) and Initial Study were distributed for the 
project in compliance with CEQA, to inform the public that an EIR was determined to be the 
appropriate format for analysis of project-related environmental impacts.  Four comments were 
submitted from state and local agencies in response to the NOP; these comments and responses 
were included within the Draft EIR for the project. 
 
A Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared for the project and circulated for a 45-day 
public review from March 27, 2017, through May 12, 2017.  Fifteen comments from state/local 
agencies and individuals were received during this review period, and responses to those comments 
were incorporated into the Final EIR.  Correspondence from the San Luis Rey Band of Mission 
Indians was received on August 3, 2017, after the review period for the Draft EIR had closed but 
before the Final EIR was released.  Additionally, correspondence from Richard Kolb (a neighbor of 
the project), the Rincon Band of Luiseño Indians, the San Diego County Archaeological Society, and 
William J. Cox (another neighbor of the project) were received after August of 2017, which was 
subsequent to the circulation of the Draft EIR (i.e., the public review period) and following the release 
of the Final EIR.  The comments contained within these letters received outside of the public review 
period for the Draft EIR do not raise any additional environmental concerns that were not addressed 
within the EIR.  Copies of these letters are included as Attachment C to this staff report. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development  Ann Dolmage, Associate Planner 

8/9/2018 8:29 a.m.       8/9/2018 8:30 a.m. 
 



SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 
August 15, 2018 
Page 10 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Attachment A – Planning Commission staff report (June 26, 2018) 
2. Attachment B – Draft Planning Commission Minutes (June 26, 2018) 
3. Attachment C – Correspondence Received Outside of Draft EIR Public Review Period 
4. Resolution No. 2018-120 
5. Resolution No. 2018-120 – Exhibits A, B, C, and D 
6. Resolution No. 2018-122  
7. Resolution No. 2018-122 – Exhibits A and B 
8. Ordinance No. 2018-17 
9. Ordinance No. 2018-17 – Exhibits A, B, and C                                                                                                                                                              





































































































































Planning Commission 06/26/18 

• The subject site is appropriate for a drive-through business since the site is
located within a large commercial shopping center, with adequate access, and
conditions of approval would be applied to the Project, which would address
any potential impacts the business may have on other adjacent businesses and
adjacent properties.

• The Final IS/MND has been prepared in compliance with all requirements
contained on the California Environmental Quality Act and Article 47
(Environmental Quality Regulations) of the Escondido Zoning Code. The
project applicant has agreed to implement all mitigation measures identified in
the Final IS/MND in order to reduce all potentially significant environmental
impacts top a less-than-significant level, in accordance with the Mitigation
Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP) prepared for the project.

Commissioner Watson asked several clarification questions to City staff and the 

applicant regarding customer-base use limitations, ADA accessibility, the 

proposed lighting schedule, trash collection and architectural design issues. 

ACTION: 

Moved by Chairman Spann, seconded by Commissioner Weiler, to approve staff's 

recommendation. Motion carried. Ayes: Weiler, Cohen, Romo, Spann, and Garcia. 

Noes: Watson. (5-1) 

2. REZONE, MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN, TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION

MAP, GRADING EXEMPTION, SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN, AND

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and

ENV 15-0001:

REQUEST: The proposed project would rezone the 40.62-acre development site 

from RE-20 (Residential Estates; 20,000 SF minimum lot size) to PD-R (Planned 

Development- Residential), and a Master Development Plan would implement lot 

clustering and establish development standards for a new residential subdivision. 

The project also includes a Tentative Subdivision Map for 55 single-family 

4854 

discretionary review of applications for drive-through establishments. 
Discretionary review is a higher level of review of land use development 
applications. The decision-maker may exercise discretion in granting approval 
of drive-through establishments proposals. 

ATTACHMENT B
SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001













ATTACHMENT C
SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001



































RESOLUTION NO. 2018-120 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
CERTIFYING THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT AND ADOPTING FINDINGS 
OF FACT AND A MITIGATION MONITORING 
AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR 
WOHLFORD RESIDENTIAL PROJECT 
PROPOSAL 

 

CASE NOS.: SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 

 
 WHEREAS, Spieth & Wohlford, Inc. (“Applicant”) submitted a land use 

development application to build 55 new homes and provide approximately 20.04 acres 

of permanent open space on property located in the southeast portion of the City of 

Escondido (“City”), along the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, across from Encino 

Drive.  The Project site currently has an address of 661 Bear Valley Parkway, 

Escondido CA 92025, legally described in Exhibit “D,” is attached to this Resolution and 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Government Code Section 66410 et. 

seq., Government Code Sections 65864–65869.5, and all relevant articles and sections 

of the Escondido Zoning Code, said verified application in its entirety constitutes a 

Rezone, Master Development Plan, Development Agreement, Tentative Subdivision 

Map, Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, said verified application was submitted to, and processed by, the 

Planning Division of the Community Development Department as Planning Case Nos. 

SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001, in accordance with the rules and 

regulations of the Escondido Municipal and Zoning Codes, and the applicable 

procedures and time limits specified by the Permit Streamlining Act (Government Code 



Section 65920 et seq.) and the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) (Public 

Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA and its implementing regulations (the State 

CEQA Guidelines), 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et. seq., the City is 

the lead agency for the Project, as the public agency with the principal responsibility for 

approving the proposed Project; and 

WHEREAS, an Initial Study Checklist was prepared in accordance with CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15063.  The Initial Study Checklist was posted on the City’s website 

on November 22, 2016.  Based on the Initial Study, the City determined an EIR would 

be prepared to address potential direct and cumulative impacts associated with 

aesthetics, agricultural resources, biological resources, cultural resources (including 

tribal cultural resources), geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, land use 

and planning, noise, and transportation and traffic; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Guidelines Section 15082, the City distributed a 

Notice of Preparation (“NOP”) of an EIR to the State Clearinghouse, local and regional 

responsible agencies, and other interested parties on November 28, 2016, for a 30-day 

comment period, which ended on December 30, 2016.  The Initial Study was provided 

as an attachment to the NOP; and  

WHEREAS, the Draft EIR for the proposed Project was then prepared and 

circulated for review and comment by the public, agencies, and organizations and was 

circulated for public review and comment pursuant to the State CEQA Guidelines by 

filing a Notice of Availability (“NOA”) of the Draft EIR for review with the County Clerk of 

San Diego.  The NOA was also mailed to organizations and parties expressing interest 



in the Project on March 23, 2017, notifying the general public, public agencies, and 

interested individuals and organizations that a 45-day public review period would begin 

on March 27, 2017, and end on May 12, 2017.  The NOA was also filed with the City 

Clerk, published in the Daily Transcript, and posted on the City’s website; and  

WHEREAS, a Notice of Completion of the Draft EIR was circulated to State 

agencies for review through the State Clearinghouse, Office of Planning and Research 

(SCH No. 2016111060) on March 23, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, during the 45-day public comment period of the Draft EIR, the City 

consulted with and requested comments from all responsible and trustee agencies, 

other regulatory agencies and others pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 

15086 and 15087; and 

WHEREAS, the City received comments concerning the Draft EIR from public 

agencies, organizations, and individuals, and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 

15088, the City prepared responses to all written comments received on the Draft EIR 

which raised environmental issues; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the comments received on the Draft 

EIR did not contain any significant new information within the meaning of CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15088.5 and therefore, recirculation of the Draft EIR is not required; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City prepared a Final EIR, which contains the information 

required by CEQA Guidelines Section 15132, including the Draft EIR, the technical 

appendices and referenced documents, revisions and additions to those documents, 



public and agency comments on the Draft EIR and the City' s responses to comments; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission did hold a duly noticed public hearing as 

prescribed by law to consider the certification of the Final EIR on June 26, 2018, during 

which it received any evidence and took and considered public testimony from those 

wishing to be heard regarding certification of the Final EIR; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission adopted Planning Commission Resolution 

No. 6122 recommending that City Council certify the EIR, adopt the CEQA Findings of 

Fact, and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; and recommending 

approval of said Project, on file with the Office of the City Clerk and incorporated herein 

by this reference as though fully set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21092.5, the City 

provided a Notice of City Council Public Hearing to all organizations and individuals who 

had previously requested such notice, and published the Notice of Public Hearing in the 

Daily Transcript and posted the Notice on the City’s website; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council did on August 15, 2018, hold a duly noticed public 

hearing as prescribed by law to consider the Planning Commission's recommendation 

to certify the Final EIR and approve said Project, during which it considered all factors 

relating to the EIR and the Project, including additional evidence and considered public 

testimony from those wishing to be heard regarding certification of the Final EIR; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has carefully reviewed and considered all 

environmental documentation comprising the Final EIR, including the Draft EIR and the 

revisions and additions thereto, the technical appendices and referenced documents, 



and the public comments and the responses thereto (Exhibit “A” of this Resolution, on 

file in the Office of the City Clerk and incorporated herein by this reference as though 

fully set forth herein), and has found that the Final EIR considers all potentially 

significant environmental impacts of the Project and is complete and adequate, and 

fully complies with all requirements of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, at said public hearing, City Council members independently and 

jointly reviewed and analyzed the Draft EIR and Final EIR, and these documents reflect 

the independent judgment of the City Council and the City as the Lead Agency for the 

Project.  The City Council considered all significant impacts, mitigation measures, 

Project alternatives identified in the Final EIR, and considered all written and oral 

communications from the public regarding the environmental analysis, and found that 

all potentially significant impacts of the Project have been lessened or avoided to the 

extent feasible; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 and 15097, the City of 

Escondido has prepared CEQA Findings of Fact and a Mitigation Monitoring and 

Reporting Program, which have been filed with the City of Escondido (attached hereas 

as Exhibits “B” and “C” of this Resolution, incorporated herein by this reference as 

though fully set forth herein). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, in its independent judgment, hereby finds that: 

 1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein by this reference as though set forth in full. 



2. That in determining whether the proposed Project has a significant impact 

on the environment, and in adopting these Findings pursuant to Section 21081 of 

CEQA, the City has based its decision on substantial evidence and has complied with 

CEQA Sections 21081.5 and 21082.2 and Guidelines Section 15901(b).  In addition, 

the City has analyzed the potential for adverse secondary impacts that could result from 

of the mitigation measures proposed as part of the Project pursuant to CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15126.4(a)(1)(D), and finds that no additional significant adverse 

impacts would result from implementation of Project mitigation measures. 

3. That the Record of Proceedings upon which the City Council bases its 

decision includes, but is not limited to: (1) the Final EIR and the appendices and 

technical reports cited in and/or relied upon in preparing the Final EIR; (2) the staff 

reports, City files and records and other documents, prepared for and/or submitted to 

the City relating to the Final EIR and the Project itself; (3) the evidence, facts, findings 

and other determinations set forth herein; (4) the General Plan and the Escondido 

Municipal Code; (5) all designs, plans, studies, data and correspondence submitted to 

the City in connection with the Final EIR and the Project itself; (6) all documentary and 

oral evidence received at public workshops, meetings, and hearings or submitted to the 

City during the comment period relating to the Final EIR and/or elsewhere during the 

course of the review of the Project itself; and (7) all other matters of common 

knowledge to the to the City, including, but not limited to, City, state, and federal laws, 

policies, rules, regulations, reports, records and projections related to development 

within the City and its surrounding areas. 



 4. That the findings of the Planning Commission, contained in Planning 

Commission Resolution No. 6122, on file with the Office of the City Clerk and 

incorporated herein by reference, are hereby adopted as the findings of the City 

Council. 

5. That the City has made no decisions that constitute an irretrievable 

commitment of resources toward the proposed Project prior to certification of the Final 

EIR, nor has the City previously committed to a definite course of action with respect to 

the proposed Project.   

6. That the City Council finds and determines that the applicable provisions 

of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines have been duly observed in conjunction with 

said hearing and the considerations of this matter and all of the previous proceedings 

related thereto.  The City Council finds and determines that (a) the Final EIR is 

complete and adequate in scope and has been completed in compliance with CEQA 

and the State CEQA Guidelines for implementation thereof; (b) the Final EIR was 

presented to the City Council, and the City Council has fully reviewed and considered 

the information in Final EIR prior to approving the Project; and (c) the Final EIR reflects 

the City Council' s independent judgment and analysis, and, therefore, the Final EIR is 

hereby declared to be certified in relation to the subject of this Resolution.   

7. That pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081.6 and CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15091(d), the City Council hereby adopts and approves the 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, which is appended hereto as Exhibit “C” 

and is made a part hereof by this reference, with respect to the significant 

environmental effects identified in the Final EIR, and hereby makes and adopts the 



provisions of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program as conditions of approval 

for the Project. 

8. That this action is final on the date this Resolution is adopted by the City 

Council.  Unless a shorter statute of limitations applies, the time limits for judicial review 

shall be as provided in California Code of Civil Procedures Section 1094.6. 

9. That pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081. 6(a)(2) and 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15091(e), all documents and other materials, which 

constitute the record of proceedings, are located at the City of Escondido, City Civic 

Center. The City Clerk, whose office is located at 201 North Broadway, Escondido CA 

92025, is hereby designated as the custodian of the documents and other materials 

which constitute the record of proceedings upon which the City Council’s decision is 

based, which documents and materials shall be available for public inspection and 

copying in accordance with the provisions of the California Public Records Act. 

 



Resolution No. 2018-120 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION NO. 2018-120 
 

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (AUG. 2017) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

On file in the Office of the City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Responsible 
Party 
Timing of Verification 
Certified 
Completion 
Comments 



Resolution No. 2018-120 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” TO RESOLUTION NO. 2018-120 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

 
Environmental Documentation Determinations: 

 
1. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Public Resources Code Section 

21000 et. seq.), and its implementing regulations (the State CEQA Guidelines), 14 California Code 
of Regulations Section 15000 et. seq., the City is the lead agency for the Project, as the public 
agency with the principal responsibility for approving the proposed Project. 

 
2. In accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15082, the City distributed a Notice of Preparation 

(“NOP”) of the Draft EIR to the State Clearinghouse, local and regional responsible agencies, and 
other interested parties on November 28, 2016, for a 30-day public comment period.  Various 
agencies and other interested parties responded to the NOP.  

 

3. The Draft EIR for the proposed Project was then prepared and after completing the Draft EIR (SCH 
No. 2016111060), the City released the document for public review for a 45-day public comment 
period by filing a Notice of Availability with the County Clerk of San Diego.  The 45-day public 
comment period started March 27, 2017, and ended May 12, 2017.  During the public comment 
period of the Draft EIR, the City consulted with and requested comments from all responsible and 
trustee agencies, other regulatory agencies and others pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15086 and 15087. 

 
4. The City received comments concerning the Draft EIR from public agencies, organizations, and 

individuals, and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15088, the City prepared responses to all 
written comments received on the Draft EIR which raised environmental issues.  The City has 
determined that the comments received on the Draft EIR did not contain any significant new 
information within the meaning of CEQA Guidelines Section 15088.5 and therefore, recirculation of 
the Draft EIR is not required. 

 
5. The City prepared a Final EIR, which contains the information required by CEQA Guidelines 

Section 15132, including the Draft EIR, the technical appendices and referenced documents, 
revisions and additions to those documents, public and agency comments on the Draft EIR, and 
the City' s responses to comments.   

 
6. Based on staff’s review of the Project, no special circumstances exist that would create a 

reasonable possibility that granting a Rezone, Preliminary and Master Development Plan, 
Tentative Subdivision Map, Grading Exemption, Specific Alignment Plan, and Development 
Agreement for this Project would have a significant effect on the environment beyond what was 
previously analyzed and disclosed. 

 
7. The Planning Commission has carefully reviewed and considered all environmental documentation 

comprising the Final EIR, including the Draft EIR and the revisions and additions thereto, the 
technical appendices and referenced documents, and the public comments and the responses 
thereto (on file in the Office of the City Clerk and incorporated by this reference), and has found 
that the Final EIR considers all potentially significant environmental impacts of the Project and is 
complete and adequate, and fully complies with all requirements of CEQA and the State CEQA 
Guidelines.  The Planning Commission has considered all significant impacts, mitigation measures, 
and Project alternatives identified in the Final EIR and found that all potentially significant impacts 
of the Project have been lessened or avoided to the extent feasible.  The Planning Commission 



Resolution No. 2018-120 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 2 of 2 

 
also finds that the Project alternatives would not satisfy the Project objectives as effectively as the 
Project.  Pursuant to Public Resource Code Section 21082.1(c)(3) and CEQA Guidelines Section 
15090(a)(3), the Planning Commission also finds that the EIR reflects the City’s independent 
judgment as the lead agency for the proposed Project. 

 
8. As required by CEQA, the City, in recommending City Council adoption of these Findings of Fact, 

also recommends adoption of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) included 
in the Final EIR.  The Planning Commission finds that the MMRP meets the requirements of 
California Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21081.6 by providing for the implementation and 
monitoring of measures intended to mitigate the potentially significant effects of the recommended 
Plan. 

 



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 1
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 2
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 3
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 4
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 5
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 6
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 7
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 8
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e

 9
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
 o

f 2
1



R
e
s
o
lu

tio
n
 N

o
. 2

0
1
8
-1

2
0
 

E
x
h
ib

it C
 

P
a
g
e
 2

1
 o

f 2
1



Resolution No. 2018-120 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 1 of 2 

 

EXHIBIT “D”TO RESOLUTION NO. 2018-120 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 

 



Resolution No. 2018-120 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-122 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING A TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION 
MAP, GRADING EXEMPTIONS, AND 
SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN TO SUPPORT 
THE WOHLFORD RESIDENTIAL PROJECT 
PROPOSAL   

 
CASE NOS. SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 

 WHEREAS, Speith & Wohlford, Inc. (“Applicant”) submitted a land use 

development application to build 55 new homes and provide approximately 20.04 acres 

of permanent open space on property located in the southeast portion of the City of 

Escondido (“City”), along the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, across from Encino 

Drive.  The Project site currently has an address of 661 Bear Valley Parkway, 

Escondido CA 92025, legally described in Exhibit “D” to City Council Resolution No. 

2017-120, which is incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth 

herein; and 

WHEREAS, said verified application was submitted to, and processed by, the 

Planning Division of the Community Development Department as Planning Case Nos. 

SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 in accordance with the rules and 

regulations of the Escondido Municipal and Zoning Codes, and the applicable 

procedures and time limits specified by the Permit Streamlining Act (Government Code 

Section 65920 et seq.) and CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.); and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division of the Community Development Department 

completed its review and scheduled a public hearing regarding the application before 

the Planning Commission for June 26, 2018, at which interested persons were given 



the opportunity to appear and present their views with respect to said proposed Project 

actions.  Following the public hearing on June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission 

adopted Resolution No. 6122, which recommended that the City Council, among other 

things, approve the Tentative Subdivision Map, Grading Exemptions, and Specific 

Alignment Plan; and 

WHEREAS, an original copy of the proposed Tentative Subdivision Map, 

Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan and all other related Project 

materials are on file in the Office of the City Clerk, with a copy of each document 

submitted to the City Council for its consideration.  The City Clerk, whose office is 

located at 201 North Broadway, Escondido CA 92025, is hereby designated as the 

custodian of the documents and other materials which constitute the record of 

proceedings upon which the City Council's decision is based, which documents and 

materials shall be available for public inspection and copying in accordance with the 

provisions of the California Public Records Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council did on August 15, 2018, hold a duly noticed public 

hearing as prescribed by law. Evidence was submitted to and considered by the City 

Council, including, without limitation: 

a) Written information including all application materials and other written 

and graphical information posted on the project website. 

b)  Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public. 

c)  The City Council staff report, dated August 15, 2018, which along with its 

attachments, is incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein, 

including the Planning Commission's recommendation on the request. 



d)  Additional information submitted during the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the request for the Tentative 

Subdivision Map, Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan, and reviewed and 

considered the recommendation from the Planning Commission; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, a Final 

Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2016111060) relative to the Project was 

prepared and the City Council has certified it, along with adopting the CEQA Findings of 

Fact and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program per City Council Resolution 

No. 2018-120; and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 78-2 enacted pursuant to Section 65974 of the 

California Government Code and pertaining to the dedication of land and fees for 

school facilities has been adopted by the City of Escondido; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 66473.5, no local 

agency shall approve a tentative map, unless there is a finding that the proposed 

subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and improvement, is consistent 

with the general plan required by Article 5 (commencing with Section 65300 of the 

Government Code), or any specific plan adopted pursuant to Article 8 (commencing 

with Section 65450 of the Government Code); and 

 WHEREAS, on August 15, 2018, the City Council introduced Ordinance No. 

2018-17 and intends to approve a Rezone, Master Development Plan, and the 

Development Agreement to provide consistency between the General Plan, Municipal 

Code, and Zoning Code; and to enable potential adoption of the proposed Tentative 



Subdivision Map, Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan on the subject site; 

and 

WHEREAS, this City Council hereby approves said Tentative Subdivision Map, 

Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan as reflected in the staff report(s), and 

on plans and documents on file in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, in its independent judgment and after fully considering the totality of the 

record and evidence described and referenced in this Resolution hereby declares that: 

 1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein by this reference as though set forth in full. 

 2. That the Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein 

by this reference as though fully set forth herein, are hereby made by this City Council, 

and represent the City Council’s careful consideration of the record.  The findings of this 

City Council on Exhibit "A" shall be the final and determinative Findings of Fact on this 

matter.          

 3. That upon consideration of the Findings, all material in the August 15, 

2018, City Council staff report (a copy of which is on file with the Office of the City 

Clerk), public testimony presented at the hearing, and all other oral and written 

evidence on this Project, this City Council approves the Tentative Subdivision Map, 

Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan, subject to the Conditions of 

Approval in Exhibit “B,” which is incorporated by this reference, and the Mitigation 

Monitoring and Reporting Program set forth as Exhibit “C,” which is incorporated by this 

reference, to City Council Resolution No. 2018-120.  Copies of said Resolution are on 



file with the Office of the City Clerk and are incorporated herein by this reference.  Said 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program included in City Council Resolution No. 

2018-120 carries the same force and effect as though fully set forth and promulgated 

herein this City Council Resolution. 

4. That this Tentative Subdivision Map shall be null and void unless a Final 

Map, conforming to the Tentative Subdivision Map and all required conditions, is filed 

within the date that Ordinance No. 2018-17 specifies by Development Agreement.  

Copies of said Ordinance are on file with the Office of the City Clerk and are 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. 

 5.  That concurrently with this Resolution, the City Council is taking a number 

of actions in furtherance of the Project, as generally described by the August 15, 2018, 

City Council staff report.  No single component of the series of actions made in 

connection with the Project shall be effective unless and until it is approved by an 

Ordinance or Resolution and is procedurally effective within its corporate limits as a 

statute in the manner provided by state law.  Therefore, this Resolution shall become 

effective and operative only if City Council Resolution No. 2018-120 is approved; and 

effective and operative on the day immediately subsequent to the date that Ordinance 

2018-17 becomes effective. 

   BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, pursuant to Government Code Section 

66020(d)(1):           

 1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the project is subject to certain fees 

described in the City of Escondido’s Development Fee Inventory on file in both the 

Community Development Department and Public Works Department.  The project is 



also subject to dedications, reservations, and exactions, as specified in the Conditions 

of Approval.           

 2. NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the 90-day period during which to 

protest the imposition of any fee, dedication, reservation, or other exaction described in 

this resolution begins on the effective date of this resolution and any such protest must 

be in a manner that complies with Section 66020. 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 5 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION NO. 2018-122 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

Tentative Subdivision Map Determinations: 
  

1. The Planning Commission makes the finding that none of the findings (a) through (g) below in 
Section 66474 of the California Government Code that require a City to deny approval of a Tentative 
Subdivision Map apply to this Project for the reasons stated as follows: 

     

Findings for Tentative Map Approval Explanation of Finding 

A. That the proposed map is consistent with 
applicable general and specific plans as 
specified in Section 65451 of the 
Subdivision Map Act 

The proposed Project has been reviewed in 
accordance with the City's General Plan.  The 
proposed subdivision is consistent with the General 
Plan because the E2 land use designation allows 
residential uses on the Project site.  The E2 land 
use designation allows a maximum density of two 
dwelling units/acre for slopes under 25 percent, one 
dwelling unit/acre for slopes between 25 and 35 
percent, and one dwelling unit per 20 acres for 
slopes over 35 percent.  The topography of the 
Project site allows 73 dwelling units, and the 
proposed Tentative Subdivision Map is consistent 
with this maximum density since it includes 55 
dwelling units.  The Project meets the minimum lot 
size standard of 10,000 SF for planned 
developments in the E2 land use designation, and 
provides sufficient open space to compensate for 
the proposed residential lot clustering.  The Project 
is also consistent, and advances, a number of other 
important goals and policies of the General Plan, as 
discussed in the June 26, 2018 Planning 
Commission staff report.  The Project site is not 
located within an existing or proposed specific plan. 

B. That the design or improvement of the 
proposed subdivision is consistent with 
applicable general and specific plans. 

The General Plan allows for clustering of single 
family lots to maintain site topography, protect 
natural resources, and avoid 
hazards.  Implementation of lot clustering is 
allowed only within Planned Development Zones or 
Specific Planning Areas.  To conform to this 
requirement, the applicant has proposed a Rezone 
of the site to PD-R, as well as a Master 
Development Plan.  Proposed residential lot sizes 
would exceed 10,000 SF, which is the minimum 
required lot size for clustered developments in the 
E2 land use designation.  Development standards 
and design guidelines are proposed under the 
Master Development Plan; however, the Project's 
proposed street alignments, grades and widths; 
drainage and sanitary facilities and utilities, 
including alignments and grades thereof; location 
and size of all required easements and rights-of-



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 2 of 5 

 
way; emergency access road and fuel modification 
zones; lot size and configuration; traffic access; 
grading; and recreational amenities were all 
reviewed for compliance to relevant City policies 
and codes.  As conditioned, the design and 
improvements of the proposed subdivision are 
consistent with the General Plan. 

C. The Project site is physically suitable for 
the proposed type of Project. 

The Project site has been thoroughly analyzed for 
applicable environmental impacts related to this 
proposed development (Environmental Impact 
Report, State Clearinghouse #2016111060), and 
as appropriate, the Final EIR recommends 
measures to mitigate potential impacts.   
 
The site is suitable for the residential type of 
development proposed since the Project is located 
on property that is adjacent to residential uses at a 
relatively similar size and scale.  The location, 
access, density, size, and type of uses proposed in 
the Tentative Subdivision Map are compatible with 
the existing and future land uses in the surrounding 
neighborhood.  Adequate access and utilities can 
be provided to the site.  A view analysis has been 
provided in the EIR that demonstrates that the 
proposed grading design would not result in any 
significant adverse visual or compatibility impacts 
with adjacent lots, nor block any significant views.  
The project would not result in the destruction of 
desirable natural features, nor be visually 
obstructive or disharmonious with surrounding 
areas because the site is not located on a skyline 
or intermediate ridge, and does not contain any 
significant topographical features.  A conceptual 
landscape plan provided by the applicant proposes 
to plant a variety of trees and shrubs on graded 
slopes and as screening between the development 
site and adjacent neighborhoods. 

D. That the site is physically suitable for the 
proposed density of development. 

The granting of the Tentative Subdivision 
Map would not violate the requirements, goals, 
policies, or spirit of the General Plan.  The Estate II 
Land Use designation allows for a maximum of two 
dwelling units per acre for slopes under 25 percent, 
one dwelling unit per acre for slopes between 25 
and 35 percent, and one dwelling unit per 20 acres 
for slopes over 35 percent.  Per Residential 
Development Policies 3.11 through 3.13, 
development on slopes over 35 percent is 
restricted, but the density assigned to that category 
may be transferred to flatter slope categories within 
a project site.  The topography of the Project site 
allows for 73 units based on these ratios.  The 
proposed subdivision would create 55 single-family 
residential lots, consistent with the allowable 
density.  The portions of the site that contain slopes 
over 35 percent would be preserved in open space 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 3 of 5 

 
areas that would preclude grading or development 
activities, or are small and isolated and therefore do 
not meet the standards of steep slope protection as 
envisioned by the General Plan or its implementing 
ordinances.   
 
The Project also would not be out of character for 
the area because the proposed development would 
be well integrated into its surroundings.  The new 
residences would incorporate single-story 
elements, as well as compatible and integrated 
architecture, materials, and colors.  The project 
would not be visually obstructive or disharmonious 
with surrounding areas, or harm major views from 
adjacent properties, and the development would 
provide an attractive pedestrian access throughout 
the site.  Necessary services and facilities are 
available or can be provided. 

E. The design of the subdivision or the 
proposed improvements are not likely to 
cause substantial environmental damage 
or substantially or avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 

The Project site has been thoroughly analyzed for 
applicable environmental impacts related to this 
proposed development (Environmental Impact 
Report, State Clearinghouse #2016111060).  No 
special status plant or animal species were 
discovered on the Project site during the 
preparation of the Project’s biological technical 
report.  Impacts to vegetation communities, nesting 
birds, and jurisdictional aquatic resources were 
identified, and mitigation measures have been 
proposed in the Final EIR to reduce these impacts 
to a less than significant level.   

F. That the design of the subdivision or the 
type of improvements is not likely to 
cause serious public health concerns. 

The design of the map and the type of 
improvements are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems.  The Project's proposed street 
alignments, grades and widths; drainage and 
sanitary facilities and utilities, including alignments 
and grades thereof; location and size of all required 
easements and rights-of-way; fuel modification 
zones; lot size and configuration; traffic and 
emergency access; grading; and open space and 
recreational amenities were all reviewed for 
compliance to relevant City policies and codes.  
Deviations from City of Escondido standards are 
requested for Bear Valley Parkway improvements, 
as explained in the proposed Specific Alignment 
Plan, as well as the Project’s interior streets, where 
a right-of-way reduction (60’ to 56’) is proposed for 
Streets B through D and a portion of Street A, as 
well as a reduction of centerline horizontal radius 
from 435’ to 200’.  Deviations from R-1 
development standards and grading exemptions 
are also proposed as discussed in the June 26, 
2018 staff report (although the current zoning of the 
site is RE-20, the R-1 zone was selected for 
comparison since typical lot sizes in that zone are 
comparable to lot sizes proposed by the project).  



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 4 of 5 

 
Elsewhere, the proposed subdivision map has 
been designed to meet the requirements of the City 
and other service agencies standards.  All 
necessary public facilities and services are in place 
or can be extended to serve the Project, 
which comes with support from fire, sewer, water, 
and school service providers, indicating that 
existing facilities are available to service the 
Project.   
 
New homes are not proposed to be located in areas 
that contain earthquake faults, flooding or dam 
inundation potential.  Environmentally sensitive 
areas and drainage courses are maintained and 
incorporated within the plan.  The design of the 
subdivision would not result in serious health 
problems and would not be detrimental to the public 
welfare or injurious to other property in the territory 
in which the property is situated.   

G. That the design of the subdivision or the 
type of improvements would not conflict 
with easements, acquired by the public at 
large, for access through or use of 
property within the proposed subdivision. 

The design of the map and type of improvements 
would not conflict with easements of record, or 
easements established through court judgment, or 
acquired by the population at large, for access 
through, or use of property within the proposed 
map.  All easements identified in the preliminary 
title report for the subject property are shown on the 
proposed Tentative Subdivision Map.  No conflicts 
with easements of record have been identified.  

   
2. All permits and approvals applicable to the proposed Tentative Map pursuant to Chapter 33 of the 

Municipal Code have been obtained, or conditions of approval have been proposed to ensure they 
will be obtained.  Approval of a Rezone, Master Development Plan, Grading Exemptions, and a 
Specific Alignment Plan along with the Tentative Map will allow the applicant to implement the 
design of the subdivision as shown on the map.  The project has been conditioned to require several 
permits necessary to construct the project as proposed, including grading, landscape, building, and 
encroachment permits from the City of Escondido, as well as permits from outside agencies, such 
as the State and/or Regional Water Quality Control Board and State Department of Fish and Game.   
 

3. The proposed Tentative Map shall be in conformity with the zone in which it is located.  The project 
site is currently zoned RE-20.  However, a Rezone is proposed in conjunction with the Tentative 
Map to change the zoning to PD-R, and a Master Development Plan is proposed to allow clustering 
of residential lots.  All residential lots on the Tentative Map would exceed 10,000 SF, which is the 
minimum allowed for clustered lots in the E2 land use designation of the General Plan.  The 
Tentative Subdivision Map has been conditioned appropriately to provide all infrastructure 
improvements including interconnected street system, pedestrian connectivity, and sufficient open 
space and landscaping.  The conditions of approval and subsequent design review of future 
residential development would ensure consistency with all standard requirements.   
 

4. All applicable requirements of the Map Act and any ordinance of the City of Escondido regulating 
land divisions have been satisfied. 

 
Grading Exemption Determinations 

 
1. Granting the proposed new and modified Grading Exemptions is consistent with the Grading 

Design Guidelines for the following reasons: 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 5 of 5 

 
 

a. The grading activity does not affect sensitive biological species or habitats, mature or 
protected trees, and required landscaping, and the development shall incorporate erosion 
control measures as defined in the City’s stormwater management requirements. 

b. The proposed Grading Exemptions would not create a negative visual impact upon 
neighboring properties and the public right of way because landscaping on the slopes will 
assist in softening the visual effect.  

c. The proposed slopes would not intrude into or disturb the use of any adjacent property or 
adversely block the primary view of any adjacent parcels; disturb any utilities or drainage 
facilities; obstruct circulation patterns or access; nor preclude the future development of 
any adjacent parcel. 

d. The proposed design of the slopes would not adversely affect any adjoining septic systems.  
The cut slope in Lot B is the closest exempted slope to neighboring properties to the east, 
which are served by individual septic systems.  Information collected from the County 
Department of Environmental Health and a neighboring property owner during the 
preparation of the EIR indicates that those systems are an adequate distance from the 
proposed cut slope to conform to County setback standards, and setbacks are called out 
on the proposed Tentative Map.  The proposed project will be provided with sewer service. 

e. The project’s homes would be built on lots that would be generally lower in elevation as 
compared to adjacent homes to the direct east.  The project’s EIR indicates that no 
significant impacts to aesthetics or visual quality would arise as a result of the project.  

f. The proposed cut and fill slopes would be structurally stable since all slopes will be 
manufactured so as not to exceed a standard 2:1 inclination. 
 

All graded areas shall be protected from wind and water erosion through compliance with the City’s 
stormwater management requirements.  The development will be required to incorporate interim 
erosion control plans, certified by the project engineer and reviewed and approved by the City’s 
Engineering Services Department. 

 
Specific Alignment Plan Determinations: 
 

1. Bear Valley Parkway is classified on the City of Escondido’s Circulation Element as a Major Road 
(4-lanes) for the segment north of Sunset/Ranchito Drive, which passes the proposed residential 
development site.  Between Eldorado Drive to the north of the proposed residential development 
and San Pasqual Road to the south, capacities range from 15,000 ADT to 37,000 ADT.  In response 
to site conditions and constraints, the Project is proposing modifications to Major Road standards 
for Bear Valley Parkway between Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the northern point of the residential 
development site. 
 

2. The roadway improvements to Bear Valley Parkway between Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the north 
end of the residential development site, as proposed in the Project’s Specific Alignment Plan (SAP), 
would create a more “complete street” by widening right-of-ways; adding an additional northbound 
lane for vehicles; adding a sidewalk along the frontage of the residential development site (to 
connect to the existing sidewalk that ends just north of Sunset/Ranchito Drive); and installing Green 
Street features along the east side of the street for stormwater management (to include vegetated 
swales, rain gardens, and street trees); to provide a modified Major Road that achieves City 
standards for acceptable levels of service. 

 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 1 of 22 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” TO RESOLUTION NO. 2018-122 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

Mitigation Measures 
 
Mitigation BIO-1: If construction activity occurs during the breeding season for raptors and other birds 
(typically January 1 through September 15), a one-time biological survey for nesting bird species shall be 
conducted within the proposed impact area and a 300-foot buffer within 72 hours prior to construction. This 
survey is necessary to ensure avoidance of impacts on nesting raptors (e.g., Cooper’s hawk and red-tailed 
hawk) and/or birds protected by the federal MBTA. If any active nests are detected, the area shall be flagged 
and mapped on the construction plans along with a minimum of a 300-foot buffer and up to a maximum of 
500 feet for raptors, as determined by the project biologist, and shall be avoided until the nesting cycle is 
complete. The project biologist may reduce the avoidance buffer if a reduced buffer maintains protection of 
the nesting cycle of the avian species. 
 
Mitigation BIO-2: To mitigate impacts on sensitive habitats from the proposed residential development, 
the project applicant shall establish or enhance at least 2.01 acres (a 3:1 ratio) of southern coast live oak 
riparian forest with establishment of 0.67 acre within an on-site mitigation area and enhancement of 1.34 
acre within the open space area in general, including enhancing the 0.13 acre area of non-native riparian 
and enhancing the balance within the area mapped as southern coast live oak riparian forest that contains 
non-native and invasive species (Table 3.3-10). The mitigation shall occur within the open space lot (Lot H) 
totaling 8.0 acres. The mitigation area occurs along the ephemeral drainage that runs along the southern 
boundary of the proposed residential development site, as shown in Figure 3.3-3. A Conceptual Mitigation 
Plan shall be prepared as part of the permit application process (i.e., CWA Section 401/404 permit) 
described in mitigation measure BIO-5 by persons with expertise in southern California ecosystems and 
native plant revegetation techniques. The Conceptual Mitigation Plan shall include, at a minimum (a) the 
location of the mitigation site; (b) the plant species to be used, container sizes, and seeding rates; (c) a 
schematic depicting the mitigation area; (d) planting schedule; (e) a description of the irrigation 
methodology; (f) measures to control exotic vegetation on site; (g) specific success criteria; (h) a detailed 
monitoring program; (i) contingency measures should the success criteria not be met; and (j) identification 
of the party responsible for meeting the success criteria and providing for conservation of the mitigation site 
in perpetuity. 
 
Mitigation BIO-3: To mitigate impacts on sensitive habitats in the proposed SAP improvements area, the 
SAP improvements applicant shall establish/enhance southern coast live oak riparian forest (or similar 
vegetation community) at a suitable location at a 1:1 to 3:1 mitigation ratio. If establishment or enhancement 
is unavailable or not practical, the SAP improvements applicant shall secure mitigation credits at an 
approved mitigation bank at a 1:1 to 3:1 mitigation ratio. Details will be finalized as part of the permit 
application process (i.e., CDFW Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement) described in mitigation 
measure BIO-6. 
 
Mitigation BIO-4: To mitigate impacts on jurisdictional habitat in the proposed residential development, the 
project applicant shall establish or enhance approximately 0.03 (1:1 mitigation ratio) acre of unvegetated 
stream channel (Table 3.3-11). The mitigation area occurs along the ephemeral drainage that runs along 
the southeastern boundary, as shown in Figure 3.3-3. The 0.03 acre plus the 2.01 acre from mitigation 
measure BIO-2 will result in establishment of 2.04 acres within the mitigation area. Details shall be provided 
in a Conceptual Mitigation Plan, which shall be prepared as part of the permit process (i.e., CWA Section 
401/404 permit) described in mitigation measure BIO-5. 
 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 2 of 22 

 
Mitigation BIO-5: To comply with the state and federal regulations for impacts on jurisdictional aquatic 
resources, the following agency permits are required, or verification that they are not required shall be 
obtained: 

• A CWA, Section 401/404 permit issued by the RWQCB and the USACE for all project-related 
disturbances of non-wetland waters of the United States and/or associated wetlands. 
• A Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement issued by CDFW for all project-related 
disturbances of 
any streambed and associated riparian habitat. Permits are required to be obtained by the applicant 
prior to the impact on the resources. 

As noted in mitigation measures BIO-2 and BIO-4, a Conceptual Mitigation Plan is required to provide 
compensatory mitigation for impacts. The on-site wetland preservation area and the proposed wetland 
mitigation area (Open Space, Lot H) shall be protected under a covenant of easement or conservation 
easement. A long-term management plan for the area shall be prepared and will include maintenance of 
the wetland functions and values of the existing and restored habitat in perpetuity by the Home Owners 
Association, underlying land owner, or an approved land manager. The land manager shall be an entity 
approved by CDFW and USFWS according to a long-term management plan approved by these agencies. 
The responsible party shall deter access to the Open Space through the use of signage and/or barriers, 
which will also be placed along the proposed trail within the Open Space. The tasks in the long-term 
management plan shall provide for long-term monitoring; documentation of site conditions; and tasks such 
as removal of trash, repair of any vandalism, and control of invasive species. The long- term management 
plan shall also provide BMPs that help reduce the spread of Polyphagous and Kuroshio shot hole borers 
(SHBs). BMPs may include on-site worker education, reporting of infestations, equipment disinfection, 
pruning infected limbs, avoidance of transport of infected host tree materials, chipping potential infected 
material to less than one inch in size and solarizing prior to removal or composting, and solarizing or burning 
of cut material that is potentially infected. The condition of the Open Space shall be documented annually 
by preparation of an annual report submitted to the City and resource agencies. The responsible party shall 
also be responsible for implementation of any remedial measures (e.g., planting native wetland plants) to 
repair damage or loss due to any of the above-mentioned factors. The long-term management plan shall 
be funded by a non-wasting endowment for which the amount can be determined via preparation of a 
Property Analysis Record or similar method. 
 
Mitigation BIO-6: To comply with the state and federal regulations for impacts on jurisdictional aquatic 
resources, the following agency permit is required, or verification that it is not required shall be obtained: 

• A Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement issued by CDFW for all project-related 
disturbances of any streambed and associated riparian habitat. Permits are required to be obtained 
by the applicant prior to the impact on the resources. 

 
Mitigation BIO-7: Prior to the issuance of grading permits, the residential development applicant shall 
submit a Tree Mitigation Program to the City Community Development Department for review and approval. 
The Tree Mitigation Program shall focus on preservation, restoration, and enhancement of preserved oak 
trees/stands through sustainable tree plantings and native tree planting in the transition area between open 
space and development areas throughout the project site. Table 3.3-12 identifies the total number of 
plantings required to meet the intent of the City’s tree protection and replacement requirements. A minimum 
of 195 trees (including coast live oak and other suitable native or ornamental species) shall be planted 
within the residential development landscape areas. The Tree Mitigation Program shall ensure that a 
minimum of 773 landscape trees are planted on the residential development site, as shown in Table 3.3-
13. 
 
Mitigation BIO-8: To meet the City’s mitigation planting requirements for the removal and encroachment 
of trees, 60 trees shall be planted along Bear Valley Parkway following completion of the proposed SAP 
improvements. Table 3.3-14 identifies the total number of plantings required to meet the intent of the City’s 
tree protection and replacement requirements. A minimum of 60 trees (including coast live oak and other 
suitable native or ornamental species) shall be planted in areas along Bear Valley Parkway. Table 3.3-15 
provides a list of species that are not invasive, are acceptable to fire agencies, and are anticipated to 
perform well along Bear Valley Parkway. 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 3 of 22 

 
 
Mitigation BIO-9: The following measures shall be implemented prior to, during, and following site activities 
to minimize Polyphagous Shot Hole Borer (PSHB) and Kuroshio Shot Hole Borer (KSHB) spread. 

1. Provide education of on-site workers regarding shot hole borers and its spread (provided by the 
biological monitor) 
2. Report sign of shot hole borer infestation to the CDFW and University of California Riverside’s 
Eskalen Lab 
3. Disinfect hand tools and machinery used to cut trees, chip trees, and process trees. 
4. If infection is observed, remove infested/infected limbs to the extent feasible. If warranted, entire 
trees may require removal and would be coordinated with the City and or CDFW, as appropriate. 
5. Avoid and minimize transportation of potential host tree materials. 
6. Following tree felling for known host tree species within the disturbance area, the trees will be 
ground to less than one-inch diameter and solarized, prior to spreading on-site or delivering to a 
landfill. 
7. Cut logs of known host species that are too large to be chipped/ground will be solarized before 
being removed from the site. 
8. If acceptable, known host species material will be burned in lieu of other protective measures if 
determined to be preferred to chipping and solarization. 
9. Post project landscapes will be maintained in good horticultural condition and trees will be 
provided necessary maintenance for establishment and growth. 

 
Mitigation CR-1: The City of Escondido Planning Division recommends the applicant enter into a Tribal 
Cultural Resource Treatment and Monitoring Agreement (also known as a preexcavation agreement) with 
a tribe that is traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project location (TCA Tribe) prior to issuance of a 
grading permit. The purposes of the agreement are (1) to provide the applicant with clear expectations 
regarding tribal cultural resources; and (2) to formalize protocols and procedures between the applicant 
and the TCA Tribe for the protection and treatment of, including but not limited to, Native American human 
remains; funerary objects; cultural and religious landscapes; ceremonial items; traditional gathering areas; 
and cultural items located and/or discovered through a monitoring program in conjunction with the 
construction of the proposed project, including additional archaeological surveys and/or studies, 
excavations, geotechnical investigations, grading, and all other ground disturbing activities. 
 
Mitigation CR-2: Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the applicant shall provide written verification to the 
City that a qualified archaeologist and a Native American monitor associated with a TCA Tribe have been 
retained to implement the monitoring program. The archaeologist shall be responsible for coordinating with 
the Native American monitor. This verification shall be presented to the City in a letter from the project 
archaeologist confirming that the selected Native American monitor is associated with a TCA Tribe. Prior 
to any pre-construction meeting, the City shall approve all persons involved in the monitoring program. 
 
Mitigation CR-3: The qualified archaeologist and a Native American monitor shall attend the pre-grading 
meeting with the grading contractors to explain and coordinate the requirements of the monitoring program. 
 
Mitigation CR-4: During the initial grubbing, site grading, excavation, or disturbance of the ground surface, 
the qualified archaeologist and the Native American monitor shall be onsite full-time. If imported fill 
materials, or fill used from other areas of the project site, are to be incorporated at the project site, those fill 
materials shall be absent of any tribal cultural resources. The frequency of inspections shall depend on the 
rate of excavation, the materials excavated, and any discoveries of tribal cultural resources as defined in 
PRC Section 21074. Archaeological and Native American monitoring will be discontinued when the depth 
of grading and soil conditions no longer have the potential to contain cultural deposits. The qualified 
archaeologist, in consultation with the Native American monitor, shall be responsible for determining the 
duration and frequency of monitoring. 
 
Mitigation CR-5: In the event that previously unidentified tribal cultural resources are discovered, the 
qualified archaeologist and the Native American monitor shall have the authority to temporarily divert or 
temporarily halt ground disturbance operations in the area of discovery to allow for evaluation of potentially 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 4 of 22 

 
significant cultural resources. Isolates and clearly non-significant deposits shall be minimally documented 
in the field and collected so that the monitored grading can proceed. 
 
Mitigation CR-6: If a potentially significant tribal cultural resource is discovered, the archaeologist shall 
notify the City of said discovery and shall conduct consultation with TCA tribes to determine the most 
appropriate mitigation. The qualified archaeologist, in consultation with the City, the TCA Tribe, and the 
Native American monitor, shall determine the significance of the discovered resource. A recommendation 
for treatment and disposition of the tribal cultural resource shall be made by the qualified archaeologist in 
consultation with the TCA Tribe and the Native American monitor, and shall be submitted to the City for 
review and approval. 
 
Mitigation CR-7: The avoidance and/or preservation of the significant tribal cultural resource and/or unique 
archaeological resource must first be considered and evaluated under CEQA. Where any significant tribal 
cultural resources and/or unique archaeological resources have been discovered and avoidance and/or 
preservation measures are deemed to be infeasible by the City, a research design and data recovery 
program to mitigate impacts shall be prepared by the qualified archaeologist (using professional 
archaeological methods), in consultation with the TCA Tribe and the Native American monitor, and shall be 
subject to approval by the City. The qualified archaeologist, in consultation with the Native American 
monitor, shall determine the amount of material to be recovered for an adequate artifact sample for analysis. 
Before construction activities are allowed to resume in the affected area, the research design and data 
recovery program activities must be concluded to the satisfaction of the City. 
 
Mitigation CR-8: In accordance with CEQA, all tribal cultural resources shall be treated with culturally 
appropriate dignity. If the qualified archaeologist elects to collect any tribal cultural resources, the Native 
American monitor must be present during the collection and cataloging of those resources. Moreover, if the 
qualified archaeologist does not collect the tribal cultural resources that are unearthed during the ground-
disturbing activities, the Native American monitor may, at their discretion, collect said resources and provide 
them to the TCA Tribe for respectful and dignified treatment in accordance with the tribe’s cultural and 
spiritual traditions. The project archaeologists shall document evidence that all cultural materials have been 
curated and/or repatriated as follows: 

1) It is the preference of the City that all tribal cultural resources be repatriated to the TCA Tribe, 
as such preference would be the most culturally sensitive, appropriate, and dignified. Therefore, 
any tribal cultural resources collected by the qualified archaeologist shall be provided to the TCA 
Tribe. Evidence that all cultural materials collected have been repatriated shall be in the form of a 
letter from the TCA Tribe to whom the tribal cultural resources have been repatriated identifying 
that the archaeological materials have been received. 
OR 
(2) Any tribal cultural resources collected by the qualified archaeologist shall be curated with its 
associated records at a San Diego curation facility or a culturally-affiliated Tribal curation facility 
that meets federal standards per 36 CFR Part 79, and, therefore, would be professionally curated 
and made available to other archaeologists/researchers for further study. The collections and 
associated records, including title, shall be transferred to the San Diego curation facility or culturally 
affiliated Tribal curation facility and shall be accompanied by payment of the fees necessary for 
permanent curation. Evidence that all cultural materials collected have been curated shall be in the 
form of a letter from the curation facility stating that the prehistoric archaeological materials have 
been received and that all fees have been paid. 

 
Mitigation CR-9: Prior to the release of the grading bond, a monitoring report and/or evaluation report, if 
appropriate, that describes the results, analysis, and conclusion of the archaeological monitoring program 
and any data recovery program on the project site shall be submitted by the qualified archaeologist to the 
City. The Native American monitor shall be responsible for providing any notes or comments to the qualified 
archaeologist in a timely manner, to be submitted with the report. The report will include California 
Department of Parks and Recreation Primary and Archaeological Site Forms for any newly discovered 
resources. 
 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 5 of 22 

 
Mitigation CR-10: As specified by California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, if human remains 
are found on the project site during construction or during archaeological work, the person responsible for 
the excavation, or his or her authorized representative, shall immediately notify the San Diego County 
Coroner’s office. Determination of whether the remains are human shall be conducted onsite and in situ 
where they were discovered by a forensic anthropologist, unless the forensic anthropologist and the Native 
American monitor agree to remove the remains to an offsite location for examination. No further excavation 
or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent remains shall occur 
until the Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin and disposition. A temporary construction 
exclusion zone shall be established surrounding the area of the discovery so that the area would be 
protected, and consultation and treatment could occur as prescribed by law. In the event that the remains 
are determined to be of Native American origin, the Most Likely Descendant, as identified by the Native 
American Heritage Commission, shall be contacted in order to determine proper treatment and disposition 
of the remains in accordance with California Public Resources Code section 5097.98. The Native American 
remains shall be kept in situ, or in a secure location in close proximity to where they were found, and the 
analysis of the remains shall only occur onsite in the presence of a Native American monitor. 
 
Mitigation GEO-1: To reduce impacts related to soil stability and expansive soils on the proposed 
residential development site, the tentative map grading plan shall include the recommendations contained 
in the Geotechnical Investigation (Appendix I-1) and the Geotechnical Update Report (Appendix I-2), or 
equivalent measures identified in a Final Geotechnical Report, prior to the issuance of grading permits. The 
recommendations regarding expansive soils and the existing known mine excavations are listed below.  

a. Potentially expansive clayey soils, where encountered, shall be thoroughly mixed with an 
abundance of sandy granular soils available from the project site bedrock excavations to 
manufacture a very low expansive mixture. Alternatively, expansive clayey soils shall be selectively 
buried within deeper site fills and away from the finish fill slope faces, with the upper pad grades 
and embankment surfaces capped with good quality sandy soils, as recommended in the 
Geotechnical Investigation (Appendix I-1). 
b. Mine-related excavations with ten feet minimum of competent bedrock overburden are 
determined not to be susceptible to future collapse (as inspected and approved by the project 
geotechnical consultant) and will be sealed and capped. The following procedures will be applied 
to the four known former mining shafts: 

1. Test Pit 4: Due to the shallow nature of the excavation, the mine tunnel shall be exposed 
in both directions with a large track hoe or suitable excavating equipment. The northern 
portion of the mine tunnel shall be exposed to its end and backfilled with 90 percent 
compacted soil. Should the north end of the mine excavation extend beyond the property 
line (and possibly beneath Bear Valley Parkway), the tunnel shall be exposed and 
backfilled with 90 percent compacted soil to the extent necessary or equivalent measure 
to provide soils stability on the residential development site and for proposed Bear Valley 
Parkway Frontage Improvements, as determined by a qualified geotechnical engineer in 
consultation with the City of Escondido engineering department. The south portion of the 
mine tunnel shall be continuously exposed to its end or until a minimum of ten feet of 
competent bedrock is exposed. The open mine excavation, if exposed with a minimum of 
ten feet of competent bedrock, will be capped as outlined in the Geotechnical Investigation 
(Appendix I-1).  
2. Test Pit 7: The nearly horizontal mine shaft and associated secondary mine excavations 
exposed at this location are located within a planned deep cut area and are expected to be 
completely removed as part of the cut grading operation. If the shaft continues below finish 
grade, it shall be completely excavated and backfilled with 90 percent compacted soil, as 
approved by the geotechnical engineer. 
3. Test Pit 9: The well-developed horizontal mine tunnel (adit) at this location is in a planned 
fill slope area. The entrance to this mine excavation shall be exposed and the overburden 
removed until there is a minimum of ten feet of competent bedrock above the mine 
excavation. The opening shall then be sealed as outlined in the Geotechnical Investigation 
(Appendix I-1). 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 6 of 22 

 
4. Test Pit 15: The mine excavation exposed at this location is in a planned deep fill area. 
The entrance to this mine excavation shall be exposed and the overburden removed until 
there is a minimum of ten feet of competent bedrock above the mine excavation. The 
excavation shall then be sealed as outlined in the Geotechnical Investigation (Appendix I-
1). 

 
Mitigation GEO-2: To reduce project impacts related to soil stability and expansive soils on the proposed 
SAP improvements site, the tentative map grading plan shall include the recommendations contained in 
the Geotechnical Investigation for Proposed Roadway Improvements (Appendix J), or equivalent measures 
identified in a Final Geotechnical Report, prior to the issuance of grading permits. The recommendations 
include the following: 

1. Over-excavation to suitable materials or ground stabilization shall be used. 
2. Over-excavation for treatment of bearing soil under the proposed wall foundations shall be 
extended to well-compacted fills or dense native ground and placed back as a properly compacted 
fill. 
3. To address surface drainage and storm water control, drainage swales shall be constructed 
along the top of all graded slopes and surface run-off shall be collected and directed to a selected 
location in a controlled manner. 

 
Mitigation HAZ-1: At least ten days prior to demolition or removal of existing on-site structures, the project 
applicant shall submit an Asbestos Demolition or Renovation Operational Plan (Notice of Intention) to the 
City Community Development Department. This plan shall be prepared by an asbestos consultant licensed 
with the California State Licensing Board and certified by Cal OSHA to conduct an asbestos inspection in 
compliance with Asbestos NESHAP requirements. The Asbestos NESHAP, as specified under Rule 40, 
CFR 61, Subpart M, (enforced locally by the San Diego APCD, under authority, per Regulation XI, Subpart 
M - Rule 361.145), requires the owner of an establishment set for demolition to submit an Asbestos 
Demolition or Renovation Operational Plan at least ten working days before any asbestos stripping or 
removal work begins (such as site preparation that would break up, dislodge or similarly disturb asbestos-
containing material.) Removal of all asbestos-containing material or potential asbestos-containing material 
on the project site shall be monitored by the certified asbestos consultant and shall be performed in 
accordance with all applicable laws, including Title 8 CCR Section 1529, Asbestos; OSHA standards; and 
the San Diego County APCD Rule 361.145, Standard for Demolition and Renovation. 
 
Mitigation HAZ-2: Demolition or removal of existing on-site structures constructed pre-1979 shall be 
performed by a Certified Lead Inspector/Assessor, as defined in Title 17, CCR Section 35005, and in 
accordance with all applicable laws pertaining to the handling and disposal of lead-based paint. Lead-based 
materials exposure is regulated by Cal OSHA. Title 8 CCR Section 1532.1 requires testing, monitoring, 
containment, and disposal of lead-based materials such that exposure levels do not exceed Cal OSHA 
standard. 
 
Mitigation NOI-1: Prior to approval of final project designs, the residential development applicant shall 
incorporate a perimeter block noise wall, or similar noise-attenuating structure, that fronts proposed lots 1–
5 into the residential development design. The noise wall shall be approximately 552 feet in length and 5 
feet high in front of lots 1–4 and 6 feet high in front of lot 5. Refer to Figure 3.8-1 for the location and heights 
of the noise wall. 
 
Mitigation NOI-2: Prior to construction, a qualified acoustical consultant shall review final site plans, 
building elevations, and floor plans to calculate expected interior noise levels, as required by state noise 
regulations. Project-specific acoustical analyses are required by Title 24 to confirm that the design results 
in interior noise levels reduced to 45 dBA or lower. The specific determination of what noise insulation 
treatments are necessary shall be completed on a unit-by-unit basis. Results of the analysis, including the 
description of the necessary noise control treatments, shall be submitted to the City along with the building 
plans, and shall be approved prior to issuance of a building permit. 
 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 7 of 22 

 
Building sound insulation requirements may include the provision of forced-air mechanical ventilation for 
residential units as recommended by the qualified acoustical consultant, so that windows can be kept closed 
at the occupant’s discretion to control noise. 
 
Special building techniques (e.g., sound-rated windows and building façade treatments) shall be 
implemented as recommended by the qualified acoustical consultant to maintain interior noise levels at or 
below acceptable levels. These treatments may include, but are not limited to, sound-rated windows and 
doors, sound-rated wall constructions, acoustical caulking, and protected ventilation openings. 
 
Mitigation NOI-3: At least 3 weeks prior to the start of construction activities, the construction contractor 
shall provide written notification to all residences located within 75 feet of the proposed construction 
activities informing them of the estimated start date and duration of daytime vibration-generating 
construction activities. This notification shall include information about the potential for nuisance vibration. 
The City shall provide a phone number for the affected residences to call if they have concerns about 
construction-related vibration. If additional houses are built within 75 feet of the proposed development site 
prior to completion of proposed construction, written notification shall be provided to these residences as 
well. 
 
Mitigation NOI-4: For construction activities within 75 feet of residences on Bear Valley Parkway, the 
construction contractor shall implement the following measures during construction: 

1. Stationary sources, such as temporary generators, shall be located as far from nearby vibration-
sensitive receptors as possible. 
2. Trucks shall be prohibited from idling along streets serving the construction site where vibration-
sensitive receptors are located. 
3. Demolition, earthmoving, and ground-disturbing operations shall be phased so as not to occur 
in the same time period. 

If additional houses are built within 75 feet of the proposed development site prior to completion of proposed 
construction, the measures shall be implemented for these residences as well. 
 
Mitigation NOI-5: Prior to grading activities, the construction contractor shall implement and monitor the 
noise reduction measures described below to the extent necessary to reduce construction noise levels to 
below an hourly average noise level of 75 dBA at any residential property line. Noise reduction measures 
are required for all construction within 145 feet of a residence. Any one or a combination of measures can 
be used as necessary. Typical measures that may be implemented include the following, as necessary, to 
achieve compliance with the City’s noise ordinance: 

• Use “quiet” gasoline-powered compressors or other electric-powered compressors, and use 
electric-powered rather than gasoline- or diesel-powered forklifts for small lifting. 
• Locate stationary noise sources, such as temporary generators, as far from nearby receptors as 
possible. 
• Use the best available noise control techniques (e.g., improved mufflers, equipment redesign, use 
of intake silencers, ducts, engine enclosures, and acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds) for 
construction equipment and trucks. 
• Muffle and enclose stationary noise sources within temporary sheds or incorporate insulation 
barriers. 
• Limit simultaneous operation of construction equipment or limit construction time within an hour 
to reduce hourly average noise level. 
• Implement temporary noise barriers, such as sound blankets, of a sufficient height and thickness 
around the perimeter of the construction area to minimize construction noise to 75 dBA as 
measured at the applicable property lines of the adjacent uses. 

To ensure compliance with the City’s Noise Ordinance, noise monitoring shall be conducted on the first day 
of typical construction. A 1-hour noise measurement shall be conducted in accordance with Section 17-228 
of the City’s Noise Ordinance at 50 feet from the most intensive construction activity. If it is determined that 
construction would have the potential to exceed the hourly construction noise level limit at any residential 
property, additional noise control measures shall be implemented as necessary and an additional noise 
measurement will be conducted to confirm compliance. 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 8 of 22 

 
 
Mitigation TR-1: To address operating deficiencies, a fair-share contribution will be made to realignment 
and signalization of the unsignalized intersection. It is proposed that the intersection be realigned such that 
Encino Drive is simplified to include one approach lane and one departure lane. Also, the median separating 
the approach and departure lanes is proposed to be reduced as Encino Drive is realigned to intersect with 
Bear Valley Parkway at a 90-degree angle. These proposed improvements are consistent with the designs 
shown in the SAP. 
 
General Conditions 

  
1. This Project is conditionally approved as set forth on the application and project drawings submitted to 

the City of Escondido, all designated as approved by the City Council on [placeholder until CC meeting], 
and shall not be altered without express authorization by the Director of Community Development. 
 

2. The Project shall be completed in substantial conformance to the plans approved, except as modified 
herein.  The Project shall be constructed and operated by the Applicant in accordance with the 
authorized use as described in the application materials and plans on file with the Office of the Clerk of 
the City of Escondido.  Any additional uses or facilities other than those approved with this permit, as 
described in the approved plans, will require a separate application and approval.  
 

3. Approval of all Project-related permits will expire 36 months after the approval of this Project, or as 
otherwise stipulated by an approved Development Agreement, unless the conditions have been met or 
an extension of time has been approved pursuant to the Municipal Code. 

 

4. The City reserves the right to modify or terminate the Development Agreement upon the failure or 
refusal to comply with the terms of the Agreement by the Developer. Unless amended or otherwise 
terminated, the Development Agreement is enforceable during its term by a party to the Agreement. 
The City Manager is authorized and directed to perform all acts authorized to be performed by the City 
Manager in the administration of the Development Agreement pursuant to the terms of the Development 
Agreement.  

 

5. Applicant shall and does hereby agree to indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless the City of 
Escondido, its Council members, officers, employees, agents, and representatives, from and against 
any and all liabilities, losses, damages, demands, claims and costs, including court costs and attorney’s 
fees incurred by the City arising, directly or indirectly, from (a) City’s approval and issuance of the series 
of actions that this Project comprises, and/or (b) City’s approval or issuance of any permit or action, 
whether discretionary or ministerial, in connection with the land use and activity contemplated described 
by this Project. This obligation survives until all legal proceedings have been concluded and continues 
even if the City’s approval is not validated.  

 

6. If any of the following conditions fail to occur, or if they are, by their terms, to be implemented and 
maintained over time, if any of such conditions fail to be so implemented and maintained according to 
their terms, the City shall have the right to revoke or modify all approvals herein granted; deny or further 
condition issuance of all future building permits; deny, revoke, or further condition all certificates of 
occupancy issued under the authority of approvals herein granted; record a notice of violation on the 
property title; institute and prosecute litigation to compel their compliance with said conditions or seek 
damages for their violation.  

 

7. If any condition for construction of any public improvements or facilities, or the payment of any fees in-
lieu thereof, imposed by this approval or imposed by law on this Project are challenged, this approval 
shall be suspended as provided in Government Code Section 66020. If any such condition is 
determined to be invalid, this approval shall be invalid unless the City Council determines that the 
project without the condition complies with all requirements of law.  

 
 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 9 of 22 

 
Tentative Subdivision Map 
 
1. The developer shall be required to pay all development fees of the City then in effect at the time and in 

such amounts as may prevail when permits are issued, including any applicable City-Wide Facilities 
fees. 

 
2. Three copies of a revised Tentative Map, reflecting all modifications and any required changes shall be 

submitted to the Planning Division for certification prior to submittal of grading plans, landscape plans 
and the final map. 

 
3. All construction and grading shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Escondido Zoning 

Code and requirements of the Planning Division, Engineering Division, Building Division, and Fire 
Department. 

 
4. The legal description attached to the application has been provided by the applicant and neither the 

City of Escondido nor any of its employees assume responsibility for the accuracy of said legal 
description. 

 
5. If blasting is required, verification of a San Diego County Explosives Permit and a copy of the blaster’s 

public liability insurance policy shall be filed with the Fire Chief and City Engineer prior to any blasting 
within the City of Escondido. 

 
6. All new utilities shall be underground. 
 
7. All project-generated noise shall comply with the City’s Noise Ordinance (Ord. 90-08) to the satisfaction 

of the Planning Division. 
 
8. All lots shall meet the minimum 10,000 SF net lot area and average lot width requirements of the Master 

Plan.  In no event shall the reduction of lot sizes for this clustered residential development exceed the 
amount of open space area within the development.  Conformance with these requirements shall be 
demonstrated on the Tentative Map submitted for certification, the grading plan and final map.  Non-
compliance with these minimum standards will result in revisions to the map.    

 
9. No street names are established as part of this approval.  A separate request shall be submitted prior 

to final map. 
 
10. This Tentative Subdivision Map shall expire concurrently with the term of the associated Development 

Agreement if a final map has not been approved or an extension of time has not been granted. 
 
11. The final map shall include a conservation easement over the biological open space lots.  The HOA 

shall be responsible to contract with a qualified biologist/resource manager to oversee management of 
these areas.   

 
12. Access roads and project grading must comply with SDG&E guidelines for any encroachment to, and 

into, right of way.  Any grading to be performed within SDG&E right of way requires a “permission to 
grade” letter.   

 
13. The City of Escondido hereby notifies the applicant that State Law (SB 1535) effective January 1, 2007, 

requires certain projects to pay fees for purposes of funding the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife.  If the project is found to have a significant impact to wildlife resources and/or sensitive habitat, 
in accordance with state law, the applicant should remit to the City of Escondido Planning Division, 
within two (2) working days of the effective date of this approval (the “effective date” being the end of 
the appeal period, if applicable), a certified check payable to “County Clerk”, in the amount of $3,218.00 
for a project with an Environmental Impact Report.  These fees include an authorized County 
administrative handling fee of $50.00.  Failure to remit the required fees in full within the time specified 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 10 of 22 

 
above will result in County notification to the State that a fee was required but not paid, and could result 
in State imposed penalties and recovery under the provisions of the Revenue and Taxation code.  
Commencing January 1, 2007, the State Clearinghouse and/or County Clerk will not accept or post a 
Notice of Determination filed by a lead agency unless it is accompanied by one of the following:  1) a 
check with the correct Fish and Wildlife filing fee payment, 2) a receipt or other proof of payment 
showing previous payment of the filing fee for the same project, or 3) a completed form from the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife documenting the Department’s determination that the project will have 
no effect on fish and wildlife.  If the required filing fee is not paid for a project, the project will not be 
operative, vested or final and any local permits issued for the project will be invalid (Section 711.4(c)(3) 
of the Fish and Game Code). 
 

14. All utility connections shall be designed to coordinate with the architectural elements of the site so as 
not to be exposed except where necessary.  Locations of pad mounted transformers, meter boxes, and 
other utility related items shall be included in the site plan submitted with the building permit application 
with an appropriate screening treatment.  Transformers, terminal boxes, meter cabinets, pedestals, 
ducts and other facilities may be placed above ground provided they are screened with landscaping. 

 
15. The open space recreation lot shall feature a mixture of active and passive recreation opportunities and 

amenities of quality commensurate to the proposed housing development, to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Community Development. 

 
16. All pedestrian passageways in the designated trail connection as depicted on the approved Tentative 

Subdivision Map shall have walkway non-slip surfaces, such as decomposed granite, to enable multi-
generational use, designed to prevent dust, and otherwise be designed to allow convenient use for 
outdoor activities. There shall be no obstructions above the open space except for devices to enhance 
its usability, such awning structures.  

 
Master Development Plan 
 
1. The Project includes a Fire Protection Plan which is located in Appendix K of the Project’s Final EIR 

and describes the wildland fire resistance features incorporated into the project. The key fire resistance 
features incorporated into the project are listed below: 

 The project shall maintain Fuel Modification Zones (FMZs) as described in Figure 5 (Fuel 
Modification Map) of the Fire Protection Plan. 

 On Lots 31 through 41, where final setback from structure to top of slope is less than 30 feet for 
two-story structures, a six-foot-tall, non-combustible, heat-deflecting view wall shall be provided at 
the top of slope/edge of lot, per the specifications noted in Section 6 of the Fire Protection Plan and 
to the satisfaction of the Planning Division and Fire Department.  The aforementioned heat-
deflecting landscape walls shall be constructed of opaque fire resistant material (such as masonry) 
and any glass or transparency material shall be modified to prevent bird collisions using materials 
recommended by the American Bird Conservancy or equivalent.   

 On Lots 31 through 41, windows on the wildland-exposed side of the residence shall be dual pane 
with both panes tempered, to the satisfaction of the Planning Division and Fire Department. 

 The foregoing wildland fire resistance features shall also apply to Lots 15, 16, 27 and 28. 
 

2. All requirements of the Public Art Partnership Program, Ordinance No. 86-70, shall be satisfied prior to 
building permit issuance.  The ordinance requires that a public art fee be added at the time of the 
building permit issuance for the purpose of participating in the City Public Art Program.   

 
3. All exterior residential lighting shall conform to the requirements of Article 35 (Outdoor Lighting) of the 

Escondido Zoning Code.  All residential outdoor lighting shall be provided with appropriate shields to 
prevent light from adversely affecting adjacent properties. 

 
4. A minimum ten-foot separation between detached residences shall be maintained at all times. 
 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 11 of 22 

 
5. Setbacks for primary and accessory structures shall be as described in the Details of Request and 

depicted on the Master Plan/Tentative Map.  The Administrative Adjustment process administered by 
the Planning Division may be utilized by homeowners to request encroachments into setback areas up 
to 25 percent of the required setback. 

 
6. No signage is approved as part of this permit.  A separate sign permit shall be required prior to the 

installation of any signs.  All proposed signage associated with the project must comply with the Master 
Plan where specified.  All other signs must comply with the City of Escondido Sign Ordinance (Article 
66, Escondido Zoning Code) standards for the RE (Residential Estates) zone. 

 
7. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the emergency access road width, pavement and gate 

specifications shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire Department. 
 

8. This Master Development Plan approval adopts development standards for area, coverage, light and 
air orientation, building height, sign placement and design, site planning, street furniture placement and 
design, yard requirements, open spaces, off-street parking, and screening, per Section 33-401(f) of the 
City of Escondido Zoning Code, and as described in the June 26, 2018 staff report under “Supplemental 
Details of Request”. 
 

9. All new home design or development and/or improvement shall comply with or meet the intent of the 
Master Development Plan criteria through methods listed in the standards and guidelines, as listed in 
the June 26, 2018 staff report, or through alternative methods that achieve the same objective.  The 
Master Development Plan standards and guidelines shall be used in conjunction with the Precise 
Development Plan and any other standards and guidelines, as applicable.   
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall obtain approval for a Precise Development 
Plan that shall be reviewed, considered, and approved by the Planning Commission.  The Precise 
Development Plan application submittal shall incorporate details provided for the Master Development 
Plan in regards to exterior property boundaries, proposed lot boundaries, topography, landscaping, 
open space, street widths and improvements, etc.  Additionally, the Precise Development Plan shall 
include details regarding the following: 

 Floor plans for all structures, including use of rooms, dimensions, and square footage.  No 
more than 85 percent of the lots shall contain two-story homes, to maintain consistency with 
General Plan residential policies.  Each residence shall include a two-car garage (minimum) 
with a minimum interior width of 19.5’ and a minimum interior depth of 20’ that is free and clear 
of obstructions. 

 Exterior elevation plans for all structures, including types and colors of materials, heights of 
buildings, and details for north, south, east, and west elevations.   

 Locations of all proposed structures, including dimensions of setbacks and building 
separations, as well as locations of any structures on adjacent properties within 50 feet of the 
property line. 

 Location, design, and treatment for all fences and walls. 
 
Grading and Grading Exemptions 
 
1. Exemptions from the Grading Ordinance are approved as part of this project, as shown on the Grading 

Exemption exhibit provided by the applicant and included within the June 26, 2018 staff report.  These 
exemptions include fill slopes within 50’ of a property line up to 64’ in height (on Open Space Lots A, 
B, and C), fill slopes beyond 50’ of a property line up to 65’ in height (Open Space Lots C, F, and G), 
and cut slopes up to 42’ in height (Lots 6 through 9, Lot 45, and Open Space Lots B and C).    

 
2. All project grading shall conform with the approved Tentative Subdivision Map. In cases where no 

grading is proposed at the time of the Tentative Parcel Map, or in cases where the grading plan later 
submitted is not consistent with the approved Tentative Parcel Map, the Applicant shall be required to 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 12 of 22 

 
obtain a substantial conformance determination or map amendment for grading prior to issuance of 
grading permits. 
 

3. A plan shall be submitted for approval by the Director of Community Development, the Engineering 
Services Department, and the Fire Department regarding the security treatment of the site during the 
construction phase, the on- and off -site circulation and parking of construction workers' vehicles, and 
any heavy equipment needed for the construction of the Project. 

 
4. All roadways shall be a minimum of 24 feet in width during construction and maintained free and clear, 

including the parking of vehicles, in accordance with the California Fire Code and the Escondido Fire 
Department. 

 
5. The Postmaster shall approve final location of mailbox kiosks associated with this Project prior to 

issuance of a precise grading permit.  
 

Landscaping  
 
1. Four copies of a detailed landscape and irrigation plan(s) shall be submitted prior to issuance of grading 

or building permits, and shall be equivalent or superior to the planting plan attached as an exhibit to the 
satisfaction of the Planning Division.  A plan check fee based on the current fee schedule will be 
collected at the time of the submittal.  The required landscape and irrigation plans(s) shall comply with 
the provisions, requirements and standards outlined in Article 62 (Landscape Standards) of the 
Escondido Zoning Code.  The plans shall be prepared by, or under the supervision of, a licensed 
landscape architect. 

 
2. Details of project fencing and walls, including materials and colors, shall be depicted on the landscape 

plans. 
 

 Outside of any and all fuel modification zones as depicted on the Tentative Subdivision Map or 
associated Fire Protection Plan, the Applicant shall install additional landscaping to screen any 
freestanding or retaining walls that are proposed, to the extent practicable, to the satisfaction 
of the Director of Community Development.  Any wall, fence or combination thereof exceeding 
six feet in height and facing any neighboring property or visible from the public right-of-way 
shall be subject to design review pursuant to the Escondido Zoning Code. Where a minimum 
two feet horizontal offset is provided, within which screening vegetation is provided to the 
satisfaction of the Director of Community Development, the fence/wall may not be considered 
one continuous structure for purpose of measuring height and may be exempted from design 
review provided none of the offset fences or walls exceed six feet in height. 
 

 All retaining and other freestanding walls, fences, and enclosures shall be architecturally 
designed in a manner similar to, and consistent with, the primary structures (e.g. stucco - 
coated masonry, split -face block or slump stone). These items shall be approved by the 
Director of Community Development prior to the issuance of building and /or grading permits. 

 
All masonry freestanding or retaining walls visible from points beyond the project site shall be 
treated with a protective sealant coating to facilitate graffiti removal. The sealant shall be of a 
type satisfactory to the Director of Community Development. The Applicant and/or HOA shall 
be responsible for the removal in a timely manner of any graffiti posted on such walls.  
 

 All landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy and thriving condition, free from weeds, trash, 
and debris. All irrigation systems shall be maintained to provide the optimum amount of water 
to the landscape for plant growth without causing soil erosion and runoff.  

 
3. Fencing shall preclude humans from traveling into the areas to be preserved as biological open space. 
 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 13 of 22 

 
4. All fencing for basin areas shall be set back at least five feet from back of sidewalk or edge of pavement 

to allow the appropriate integration of landscape screening to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 
 
5. Landscaping adjacent to preserved land shall not include species listed as highly or moderately invasive 

by the California Invasive Plant Council (Cal- IPC 2013). 
 
6. Plants on the Prohibited Plant List (Appendix D of the Fire Protection Plan) shall not be planted on the 

site unless otherwise approved by the Escondido Fire Department. 
 
7. All vegetation (including existing vegetation to be retained) shall be maintained in a flourishing manner, 

and kept free of all foreign matter, weeds and plant materials not approved as part of the landscape 
plan.  All irrigation shall be maintained in fully operational condition.   

 
8. The Homeowners Association (HOA) shall be responsible for maintenance of landscaping in all 

common areas and fuel modification zones, in compliance with the requirements detailed within the 
Fire Protection Plan (Appendix K of the Final EIR) and as determined by the Escondido Fire 
Department.  Prior to issuance of building permits, all fuel modification zones shall be permanently 
marked at the property line to delineate the zones and aid ongoing maintenance activities. 

 
9. All fuel modification zone vegetation management activities shall be completed annually by May 15 and 

more often as needed for fire safety, as determined by the Escondido Fire Department.   
 
10. Landscape plans for fuel modification zones shall be prepared in accordance with the concept plans 

provided with the project and the following criteria listed in the Fire Protection Plan for the project (Final 
EIR Appendix K) to the satisfaction of the Fire Department and the Planning Division.     

a. Non-fire resistant trees (including conifers, pepper trees, eucalyptus, cypress, Washingtonia 
palms and acacia species), shall not be planted on this site.  All fire resistant tree species 
(many species including oak) shall be planted and maintained at a minimum of ten feet from 
the tree’s drip line to any combustible structure. 

b. For streetscape plantings, fire resistant trees can be planted ten feet from edge of curb to 
center of tree trunk.  Care should be given to the type of tree selected, that it will not encroach 
into the roadway, or produce a closed canopy effect. 

c. Limit planting of large unbroken masses especially trees and large shrubs.  Groups should 
be two to three trees maximum, with mature foliage of any group separated horizontally by 
at least ten feet, if planted on less than 20 percent slope, and 20 feet, if planted on greater 
than 20 percent slope. 

d. If shrubs are located underneath a tree’s drip line, the lowest branch should be at least three 
times as high as the understory shrubs or ten feet, whichever is greater. 

e. Existing trees can be pruned ten feet away from roof, eave, or exterior siding, depending on 
the tree’s physical or flammable characteristics and the building construction features. 

f. All tree branches shall be removed within ten feet of a fireplace chimney or outdoor barbecue. 
 

11. The installation of the common area and right-of-way landscaping and irrigation shall be inspected by 
the project landscape architect upon completion.  He/she shall complete a Certificate of Landscape 
Compliance certifying that the installation is in substantial compliance with the approved landscape and 
irrigation plans and City standards.  The applicant shall submit the Certificate of Compliance to the 
Planning Division and request a final inspection. 

 
12. Street trees shall be provided along each of the site’s interior street frontages, in conformance with the 

Landscape Ordinance and the City of Escondido Street Tree List.  Trees within five feet of the pavement 
shall be provided with root barriers.  Street trees adjacent to retaining walls on Bear Valley Parkway 
shall be provided in accordance with the Master Plan. 

 
13. Street trees shall be permitted in roadside fuel management zones provided the following standards 

are maintained by the HOA.   



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 14 of 22 

 
a. For streetscape plantings, fire resistant trees can be planted ten feet from edge of curb to 

center of tree trunk.  Care should be given to the type of tree selected, that it will not encroach 
into the roadway, or produce a closed canopy effect. 

b. Crowns of trees located within defensible space shall maintain a minimum horizontal 
clearance of ten feet for fire resistant trees.   

c. Mature trees shall be pruned to remove limbs one-third the height or six feet, whichever is 
less, above the ground surface adjacent to the trees. 

d. Dead wood and litter shall be regularly removed from trees. 
e. Ornamental trees shall be limited to groupings of 2–3 trees with canopies for each grouping 

separated horizontally as described in Table 4907.3 from Escondido Fire Code. 
 
14. The CC&Rs for the proposed development shall require that the homeowner landscape installation on 

residential lots must be completed within six (6) months of close of escrow.   
 
15. The builder will be responsible for providing initial stabilization of the front yards, using hydro-seed 

and the homeowner shall be responsible for maintaining the method of stabilization through the 
completion of landscape improvements installed by the homeowner.   

 
CC&Rs  

 
1. Applicant shall establish a homeowner's association (HOA) and corresponding covenants, conditions 

and restrictions (CC&Rs).  Prior to recordation of the Final Map, two copies of the CC&Rs shall be 
submitted to the Planning Division for review and approval.  Except for those public improvements 
located in the public right-of-way, the CC&Rs shall contain provisions for the maintenance of any 
common landscaping, open space, walls, the emergency access road, common drainage facilities, fuel 
modification zones, etc. to the satisfaction of the Planning and Engineering Divisions.  A review fee 
established in the current fee schedule shall be collected at the time of submittal.  
 
Prior to issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall provide the Planning Division with a recorded 
copy of the official CC&Rs that have been approved by the Department of Real Estate and the Planning 
and Engineering Divisions. At a minimum, the CC&Rs shall contain the following provisions:  
 

a.  Notice and Amendment. A copy of any proposed amendment shall be provided to the City in 
advance. If the proposed amendment affects the City, City shall have the right to disapprove. 
A copy of the final approved amendment shall be transmitted to City within 30 days for the 
official record.  

b. Failure of Association to Maintain Common Area Lots and Easements. In the event that the 
Association fails to maintain the "Common Area Lots and/or the Association’s Easements," 
the City shall have the right, but not the duty, to perform the necessary maintenance. If the 
City elects to perform such maintenance, the City shall give written notice to the Association, 
with a copy thereof to the Owners in the Project, setting forth with particularity the 
maintenance which the City finds to be required and requesting the same be carried out by 
the Association within a period of 30 days from the giving of such notice. In the event that 
the Association fails to carry out such maintenance of the Common Area Lots and/or 
Association’s Easements within the period specified by the City’s notice, the City shall be 
entitled to cause such work to be completed and shall be entitled to reimbursement with 
respect thereto from the Owners as provided herein.  

c. Special Assessments Levied by the City. In the event the City has performed the necessary 
maintenance to either Common Area Lots and/or Association’s Easements, the City shall 
submit a written invoice to the Association for all costs incurred by the City to perform such 
maintenance of the Common Area Lots and or Association’s Easements; and pursue 
collection.  

d. Landscape Maintenance Responsibilities. The HOAs and individual lot or unit owner 
landscape maintenance responsibilities shall be established.  



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 15 of 22 

 
e. Homeowner improvements such as balconies, trellis, and decks. The CC&Rs shall set forth 

requirements for the HOA to review and approve all homeowner landscape and hardscape 
plans to ensure compliance with local, State and Federal laws. The CC&Rs shall state the 
individual lot or unit owner allowances and prohibitions regarding balconies, trellis, decks and 
other improvements as regulated by the Project approval.  

 

 
ENGINEERING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

TRACT SUB15-0002   661 BEAR VALLEY PKWY. 
 

GENERAL 

1. Improvement plans prepared by a Civil Engineer are required for all public street and utility 
improvements.    Grading/Private Improvement plans prepared by a Civil Engineer is required for all 
grading, drainage and private onsite improvement design. Landscaping Plans shall be prepared by a 
Landscape Architect. Traffic signal plans shall be prepared by a Traffic Engineer. The developer shall 
post securities in accordance with the City-prepared bond and fee letter based on a final estimate of 
grading and improvements cost prepared by the project engineer.  The project owner is required to 
provide performance, labor and material and guarantee and warrantee bonds for all public 
improvements and a Grading bond for all grading, landscaping and private improvements (not 
including buildings) prior to approval of the Grading/Private Improvement plan, Final Map, and 
Improvement Plans.  

2. As surety for the construction of required off-site and on-site improvements, bonds and agreements in 
forms acceptable to the City Attorney shall be posted by the developer with the City of Escondido prior 
to the approval of Grading Permit and/or Final Subdivision Map. 

3. No building Permits shall be issued prior to recordation of Final Map unless appropriate securities are 
deposited and agreements executed as approved by the City Engineer and City Attorney. 

4. Grading Permit may be issued prior to approval of the Final Map, upon completion of the following 
requirements; a) City Engineer approval of the Grading & Erosion Control plan, Drainage and Storm 
Water Quality Management Plan (SWQMP); b) review of the Landscaping & Irrigation Plans; c) 
Compliance with all Planning requirements related to project Grading; d) Post bonds and fees for, 
Erosion Control, Grading, Drainage, Landscaping and Irrigation improvements.  All private access and 
utilities easements encumbering the project property shall be quit claimed prior to approval of the 
Grading Plans or satisfactory documentation to allow the developer to grade in the areas encumbered 
by easements shall be provided to the City Engineer. 

5. The location of all existing on-site utilities shall be determined by the project engineer.  If a conflict 
occurs with proposed lots, these utilities shall be relocated. 

6. All public improvements shall be constructed in a manner that does not damage existing public 
improvements.  Any damage shall be determined by and corrected to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 

7. The project owner shall submit to the Planning Department a copy of the Tentative Map as presented 
to the Planning Commission and the City Council.  The Tentative Map will be signed by the Planning 
Department verifying that it is an accurate reproduction of the approved Tentative Map and must be 
included in the first submittal for plan check to the Engineering Department. 

8. If multiple Final Maps are to be recorded for this project, the City Engineer will determine the extent of 
public and private improvements to be constructed with each Final Map. 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 16 of 22 

 
9. If the project is constructed in multiple phases, the City Engineer will determine   the extent of on-site 

and offsite improvements required to be completed for each phase prior to issuance of occupancy for 
the units within the phase. 

STREET IMPROVEMENTS AND TRAFFIC 

1. Public and Private street improvements shall be designed in accordance with the City of Escondido 
Design Standards, Adopted Specific Alignment Plan for Bear Valley Parkway and requirements of the 
City Engineer.  

2. The project owner shall construct public and private street improvements for the following streets: 

                  

                           STREET                                       CLASSIFICATION 

        Bear Valley Parkway (BVP)     BVP Specific Alignment Plan (SAP)  
                                                                 (Proposed project improvements)  

               Interior Streets (A-D)                         Residential (Private) 

               Emergency Access Easement          Private Access Easement Rd. 
        and Public Trail      (24’ with curb& gutter + 10’ Trail)                            

3. The project owner shall be responsible for final design and construction of east side of Bear Valley 
Parkway, along project frontage, in accordance with the adopted Bear Valley Parkway Specific 
Alignment Plan (SAP) and to the requirement of the City Engineer. Bear Valley Parkway improvements 
shall include roadway widening in accordance with the SAP and resurfacing of the existing roadway 
(along project frontage) to center line with grind and overlay or type 2 slurry as determined by the City 
Engineer at the time of final improvement plans review. The project owner shall also be responsible 
for preparation and implementation of a signing and striping plan for the BVP improvements and 
upgrading existing signage to new standards. 

4. The project owner shall be responsible for design and construction of a traffic signal system at the 
intersection of Bear Valley Parkway and Zilatibor Ranch Road/ Street “A”. The project owner shall 
prepare and submit for approval by the City Engineer a complete traffic signal with signing and striping 
for review and approval by the City Engineer. The new traffic signal shall be interconnected with the 
existing traffic signal at the intersection of Bear Valley Parkway and Sunset/Ranchito. The project 
owner’s traffic engineer shall prepare a timing plan for the new traffic signal in coordination with the 
traffic signal at the intersection of Bear Valley Parkway and Sunset/Ranchito and implement the timing 
plan prior to signal operation.  

5. The project owner shall be responsible for resurfacing of the entire intersection of Bear Valley Parkway 
and Zilatibor Ranch Road/ Street “A” due to impact from construction of a new signal system to the 
requirements of the City Engineer. 

6. The developer will be responsible for overlay of any section of Bear Valley Parkway that will be subject 
to multiple utility trenches necessary to serve this project.  The determination of the extent of the 
overlay shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

7. Adequate horizontal sight distance shall be provided at all street intersections. 

8. Street lighting in accordance with Escondido Standard Drawing E-1-E shall be required on all onsite 
private streets.  It shall be the responsibility of the Home Owner’s Association to adequately maintain 
the street lighting system and such maintenance responsibility shall be clearly stated in the CC&R’s. 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 17 of 22 

 
9. If site conditions change adjacent to the proposed development prior to completion of the project, the 

developer will be responsible to modify his/her improvements to accommodate these changes.  The 
determination and extent of the modification shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

10. The project owner shall be responsible to provide the City Engineer with an onsite signing and striping 
plan for review and approval. The project owner shall construct all onsite signing and striping in 
accordance with the approved plan prior to project occupancy. 

11. The project owner will be required to provide a detailed detour and traffic control plan, for all 
construction within existing rights-of-way, to the satisfaction of the Traffic Engineer and the Field 
Engineer.  This plan shall be approved prior the issuance of an Encroachment Permit for construction 
within the public right-of-way. 

GRADING 

1. A site grading and erosion control plan shall be approved by the Engineering Department.  The first 
submittal of the grading plan shall be accompanied by 3 copies of the preliminary soils and 
geotechnical report.  The soils engineer will be required to indicate in the soils report and on the grading 
plan, that he/she has reviewed the grading and retaining wall design and found it to be in conformance 
with his or her recommendations. 

2. Erosion control, including desilting basins, silt fences, straw wattles, interim sloping planting, gravel 
bags, or other erosion control measures shall be provided to control sediment and silt from the project.  
The developer shall be responsible for maintaining all erosion control facilities throughout the 
development of the project. 

3. All proposed retaining walls shall be shown on and permitted as part of the site grading plan.   Profiles 
and structural details shall be shown on the site grading plan and the Soils Engineer shall state on the 
plans that the proposed retaining wall design is in conformance with the recommendations and 
specifications as outlined in the Geotechnical Report.    Structural calculations shall be submitted for 
review by a Consulting Engineer for all walls not covered by Regional or City Standard Drawings.      

4. The project owner shall be responsible for the recycling of all excavated materials designated as 
Industrial Recyclables (soil, asphalt, sand, concrete, land clearing brush and rock) at a recycling center 
or other location(s) approved by the City Engineer. 

5. A General Construction Activity Permit is required from the State Water Resources Board prior to 
issuance of Grading Permit and the WDID number shall be listed on the Grading plans. 

6. All driveway grades and profiles shall conform to current Escondido Design Standards and Escondido 
Standard Drawings. 

7. All blasting operations performed in connection with the improvement of the project shall conform to 
the City of Escondido Blasting Operations Ordinance. 

8. Unless specifically permitted to remain by the County Health Department, any existing wells within the 
project shall be abandoned and capped, and all existing septic tanks within the project shall be pumped 
and backfilled per County Health Department requirements. 

DRAINAGE 

1. Final on-site and off-site drainage improvements shall be designed and constructed in accordance 
with the City’s standards and to the requirements of the City Engineer, based on the approved drainage 
study prepared by the project owner’s engineer. The existing CMP storm drains to which project 
drainage connects to shall be inspected and repaired if needed to the requirements of City Engineer.  



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 18 of 22 

 
2. A Final Storm Water Quality Management Plan (SWQMP) in compliance with City’s latest adopted 

Best Management Practices Design Manual shall be prepared for all onsite and newly created 
impervious frontage and required offsite improvements and submitted for approval by the City 
Engineer together with the final improvement and grading plans. The Storm Water Quality 
Management Plan shall include hydro-modification calculations, treatment calculations, post 
construction storm water treatment measures and maintenance requirements.  

3. All onsite drainage systems, storm water treatment and retention facilities and their storm drains shall 
be private and maintained by the homeowners association.  Provisions stating the maintenance 
responsibilities shall be included in the CC&Rs. 

4. The project owner will be required to submit a signed, notarized and recorded copy of Storm Water 
Control Facility Maintenance Agreement by the home owners’ association to the City Engineer.  This 
Agreement shall be referenced and included in the CC&Rs.   

            WATER SUPPLY 

1. All water main locations and sizing shall be to the satisfaction of the Utilities Engineer.  Required water 
main improvements shall include construction of minimum 8-inch water mains (to serve single family 
residences), to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and Utilities Engineer.  All proposed water mains 
shall be sized to provide the required fire flow while still meeting City Standards.  Based on an 
estimated fire flow of 2,500 GPM, the westerly dead-end portions of proposed internal water main 
(everything south of node 16 in Streets A & D of the May 2015 Dexter Wilson Water System Analysis) 
shall be 12”, in order to meet maximum velocity requirements.  In conjunction with this Water System 
Analysis, all proposed water mains are to be designed at a minimum to meet AWWA C-900 DR 14 
Class 305 for PVC pipe. 

2. Water mains to serve the proposed development shall be looped through the site and connect to the 
existing water main in Bear Valley Parkway at two separate connection points.    

3. Fire hydrants together with an adequate water supply shall be installed at locations approved by the 
Fire Marshal. 

4. Because fire sprinklers are required by the Fire Department, a 1” minimum water service, 1” water 
meter, and back flow prevention device shall be required for each lot.  Water meters and back flow 
prevention devices shall not be installed within the driveway apron or private drive areas. 

5. No trees or deep rooted plants shall be planted within ten feet of any water service. 

6. All water mains, services, and appurtenances within the City of Escondido’s service area shall be 
installed per current City of Escondido Design Standards and Standard Drawings. 

SEWER 

1. All sewer main locations and sizing of mains shall be to the satisfaction of the Utilities Engineer.  
Required sewer main improvements include the extension of a minimum 8-inch main in Bear Valley 
Parkway, across property frontage from the connection point to the north end of property, to serve the 
project. No horizontal or vertical curves are allowed in sewer mains.  The connection point to the 
existing sewer system may need to move to the manhole in Bear Valley Parkway, south of Encino, in 
order to achieve minimum slopes on mains.  Also, construction of minimum 8-inch mains within the 
development are required to serve the project. 

2. Private 4” minimum PVC sewer laterals with standard clean-outs within 18” of the Public Utilities 
Easement shall be constructed for each Lot containing a single family residence and shown on the 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 19 of 22 

 
Improvement and Grading plans.  The construction of all sewer laterals shall be included in the 
improvement plans and bonding quantities.     

3. No trees or deep rooted bushes shall be planted within ten feet of any sewer lateral, or within 15’ of 
any sewer main. 

4. All sewer laterals will be considered a private sewer system.  The property owners and/or the Home 
Owners Association will be responsible for all maintenance of their individual sewer laterals to the 
sewer main.  Provisions stating this shall be included in the CC&Rs. 

5. All sewer mains, laterals, and appurtenances shall be installed per current City of Escondido Design 
Standards and Standard Drawings. 

      CC&R’s 

1. Copies of the CC&R’s shall be submitted to the Engineering Department and Planning Department for 
approval prior to approval of the Final Map.  The developer shall make provisions in the CC&R’s for 
maintenance by the home owners’ association of all project features including but not limited to private 
streets, including parkway landscaping and street lighting; drainage swales; all project onsite storm 
drain system, water quality and hydro-modification/detention facilities; sewer laterals; all facilities in 
common open spaces including, fencing, landscape and irrigation; emergency access easement and 
Bear Valley Parkway project frontage parkway landscaping and offsite green street features.  Above 
provisions must be approved by the Engineering and Planning Departments prior to approval of the 
Final Map.  

2. The CC&R shall make provisions in the CC&R recognizing that the City shall have the right, but not 
the obligation, to enforce those Protective Covenants set forth in this Declaration in favor of, or in which 
the City has an interest. In the event that the home owners’ association fails to maintain the project 
features, water quality and hydro-modification/detention facilities; sewer laterals; all facilities in 
common open space; private streets and Bear Valley Parkway parkways; and public utility and 
emergency access easements. 

If the City elects to perform such maintenance, the City shall give written notice to the home owners’ 
association, setting forth with particularity the maintenance which the City finds to be required and 
requesting the same be carried out by the home owners’ association within a period of 30 days from 
the giving of such notice. In the event that the home owners’ association fails to carry out the required 
maintenance within the period specified by the City’s notice, the City shall be entitled to cause such 
work to be completed and shall be entitled to reimbursement with respect thereto from the property 
owners as provided herein. 

In the event the City has performed the necessary maintenance on behalf of the home owners’ 
association, the City shall submit a written invoice to the Home Owners Association for all costs 
incurred by the City to perform such maintenance and pursue collection.  

3. The CC&R’s shall reference the recorded Storm Water Control Facility Maintenance Agreement and 
the approved SWQMP for the project. 

4. The CC&R’s must state that (if stamped concrete is used in the private street) the Home Owners 
Association is responsible for replacing the stamped concrete in kind if the City or its contractor has to 
trench the street for repair or replacement of an existing utility.  

5. The CC&Rs must state that the Home Owners Association assumes liability for damage and repair to 
City utilities in the event that damage is caused by the Home Owners Association or their contractors 
when repair or replacement of private utility or storm water facility is done.   



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 20 of 22 

 
6. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall provide the Planning and Engineering with a 

recorded copy of the official CC&Rs that have been approved by the Department of Real Estate and 
the City Planner.  

7. A copy of any future proposed amendments to the CC&R shall be provided to the City Planner in 
advance. If the proposed amendment affects the City, City shall have the right to disapprove. A copy 
of the final approved amendment shall be transmitted to City within 30 days for the official record. 

FINAL MAP - EASEMENTS AND DEDICATIONS 

1. The developer shall make all necessary dedications for public rights-of-way for public streets or public 
utilities and emergency access easements for the private streets according to the following street 
classifications. 

                  STREET                                             CLASSIFICATION 

          Bear Valley Parkway       Specific Alignment Plan  
                                                                           (Proposed project improvements))  

                 Interior Streets (A-D)                                Residential (Private w/ PUE) 

                 Emergency Access Easement              Private Access Easement (34’ wide) 
           and Public Trail       (24’ Emergency Access and 10’  
                                                                           Public Trail easements)           

                                 
2. The project owner shall prepare, submit and process for City Engineer approval a Final Map to 

subdivide this Project. 

3. The applicant shall provide the City Engineer with a Subdivision Guarantee and Title Report covering 
the subject property. 

4. All necessary right-of-ways, public utilities and emergency access easements shall be granted on the 
Final Map. 

5. All easements, both private and public, affecting subject property shall be shown and delineated on 
the Final Map. Necessary right-of-ways, public utilities and emergency access easements shall be 
granted on the Final Map. 

6. A Public Utility Easement shall be granted over the Private Street.  The public utility easement shall 
extend a minimum of five feet beyond the improved, curb-to-curb roadway width.  When sidewalks are 
required, the public utility easement shall extend a minimum of four feet behind the back of sidewalk. 

7. Private Drainage Easements shall be shown on the Final Map and granted to the Home Owners 
Association upon transfer of title for all private drainage facilities including brow ditches (five feet wide 
minimum) and storm drain pipes (ten feet wide minimum) needed to convey storm water within the 
project.  

8. The developer is responsible for making the arrangements to quitclaim all easements of record which 
conflict with the proposed development prior to approval of the final map.  If an easement of record 
contains an existing utility that must remain in service, proof of arrangements to quitclaim the easement 
once new utilities are constructed must be submitted to the City Engineer prior to approval of the Final 
Map. If an easement of record contains an existing access that could not be quit claimed, grading 
permit will not be issued for lots in which construction will conflict with existing access rights unless 
the developer provides the City Engineer satisfactory documentation prior to issuance of Grading 
Permit or Final Map approval. 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 21 of 22 

 
9. Prior to the recordation of a Final Map, the Applicant shall reference on the map any parcels or lots 

that benefit the public, which includes all trail and park facilities, in a manner meeting the approval of 
the Director of Community Development. 

10. The project owner shall be responsible for obtaining any easements or letters of permission from 
property owners subject to project’s construction impact to their driveways or yards.  

11. Necessary public utility easements for sewer, water, storm drain, etc. shall be granted to the City on 
the Final Map.  The minimum easement width is 20 feet.  For a single utility line and 24 feet for an 
Emergency Access road. Easements with additional utilities shall be increased to the requirements of 
the Utilities Engineer. 

12. The project owner shall provide the City Engineer with a Subdivision Guarantee and Title Report 
covering subject property. 

REPAYMENTS, FEES AND CASH SECURITIES 

1. The project owner shall be required to pay all development fees, including any repayments in effect 
prior to approval of the Final Subdivision Map. All development impact fees are paid at the time of 
Building Permit. 

2. The project owner shall provide the City Engineer with fair share contribution towards future Bear 
Valley Parkway corridor improvements in the amount of $34,000 prior to approval of the Final Map. 
Fair share contribution is required to offset project’s minor impact on intersection of Bear Valley 
Parkway and Encino Dr. and segment of Bear Valley Parkway between Sunset Dr. and Las Palmas 
Ave that are currently operate at unacceptable level of service. Fair share contribution will be applied 
to future signalization of Bear Valley Parkway and Las Palmas Avenue and improvement of Bear 
Valley Parkway between Sunset and Las Palmas Ave. to Major Road standards. 

4. A sewer repayment in the amount of $6,310.62 is due to the City of Escondido for existing sewer 
improvements that contribute to serving this project per Sewer Repayment File No. 50 and approved 
by City Council Resolution 74-100. 

5. A water repayment in the amount of $8,162.92 is due the City of Escondido for existing water 
improvements that contribute to serving this project per Water Repayment File No. 50 and approved 
by City Council Resolution 74-100. 

6. A water repayment in the amount of $4,062.16 is due to the City of Escondido for existing water 
improvements that contribute to serving this project per Water Repayment File No. 69 (Mutual WD). 

7. A cash security shall be posted to pay any costs incurred by the City to clean-up eroded soils and 
debris, repair damage to public or private property and improvements, install new BMPs, and stabilize 
and/or close-up a non-responsive or abandoned project.  Any moneys used by the City for cleanup or 
damage will be drawn from this security and the grading permit will be revoked by written notice to the 
developer until the required cash security is replaced. The cleanup cash security shall be released 
upon final acceptance of the grading and improvements for this project. The amount of the cash 
security shall be $50,000. 

UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING AND RELOCATION 

1. The project owner is responsible for undergrounding of overhead utilities along project frontage or 
payment of undergrounding in lieu fee when undergrounding of the overhead utilities is not feasible. 



Resolution No. 2018-122 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 22 of 22 

 
2. The existing S.D.G&E 69KV electric lines along project frontage are exempt from undergrounding by 

payment of undergrounding in lieu fee ($467/l.f. per 2017 fee schedule). Total electric undergrounding 
in lieu fee is estimated at $514,188 for 1,587 l.f. of overhead electric lines along project frontage. The 
project owner may underground or choose to pay undergrounding in lieu fee for telephone and cable 
lines ($83/l.f. for telephone and $60/l.f. for cable, per 2017 fee schedule) in addition to electric in lieu 
fee, to avoid undergrounding of overhead utilities. Total telephone and cable undergrounding in lieu 
fee is estimated at $226,941. The project owner shall be responsible for the cost of relocation of all 
existing overhead utilities lines and poles along project frontage to allow for construction of Bear Valley 
Parkway frontage improvements. 

3. All new dry utilities to serve the project shall be constructed underground. 

4. The developer shall sign a written agreement stating that he has made all such arrangements as may 
be necessary to coordinate and provide utility construction, relocation and undergrounding. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-17 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE CITYWIDE ZONING MAP TO 
CHANGE THE DESIGNATION OF THE 40.62-ACRE 
PROJECT SITE FROM RE-20 TO PD-R, A MASTER 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN, AND A DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT TO SUPPORT THE WOHLFORD 
RESIDENTIAL PROJECT PROPOSAL  

 
APPLICANT:  Speith & Wohlford, Inc. 
CASE NOS.:  SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 

 The City Council of the City of Escondido, California, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN 

as follows: 

SECTION 1. The City Council makes the following findings:  

a) Speith & Wohlford, Inc. ("Applicant") submitted a verified land use 

development application on property located in the southeast portion of the City, along 

the east side of Bear Valley Parkway, across from Encino Drive. The Project site is 

approximately 40.62 acres in size and currently has an address of 661 Bear Valley 

Parkway, Escondido CA 92025, legally described as Exhibit “D” to City Council 

Resolution No. 2018-120, which is incorporated herein by this reference as though fully 

set forth herein.  Said verified application was submitted to, and processed by, the 

Planning Division of the Community Development Department as Planning Case Nos. 

SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, and ENV 15-0001 and seeks approval of a Rezone, 

Master Development Plan, Development Agreement, Tentative Subdivision Map, 

Grading Exemptions, and Specific Alignment Plan relating to the Project site.  

b) The Planning Division of the Community Development Department 

completed its review and scheduled a public hearing regarding the application before 



 

the Planning Commission for June 26, 2018.  Following the public hearing on June 26, 

2018, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 6122, which recommended 

that the City Council, among other things, approve the Project's Rezone, Master 

Development Plan, and Development Agreement. 

SECTION 2. An original copy of the proposed Rezone, Master Development 

Plan, and Development Agreement and all other related Project materials are on file in 

the Office of the City Clerk, with a copy of each document submitted to the City Council 

for its consideration.  The City Clerk, whose office is located at 201 North Broadway, 

Escondido CA 92025, is hereby designated as the custodian of the documents and 

other materials which constitute the record of proceedings upon which the City 

Council's decision is based, which documents and materials shall be available for public 

inspection and copying in accordance with the provisions of the California Public 

Records Act. 

SECTION 3. The City Council did on August 15, 2018, hold a duly noticed 

public hearing as prescribed by law. Evidence was submitted to and considered by the 

City Council, including, without limitation: 

a) Written information including all application materials and other written 

and graphical information posted on the project website. 

b) Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public. 

c) The City Council staff report, dated August 15, 2018, which along with its 

attachments, is incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein, 

including the Planning Commission's recommendation on the request. 

d) Additional information submitted during the public hearing. 



 

SECTION 4.  Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, a Final 

Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2016111060) relative to the Project was 

prepared and the City Council has certified it, along with adopting the CEQA Findings of 

Fact and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program per City Council Resolution 

No. 2018-120. 

SECTION 5. That, upon consideration of the Findings of Fact, attached as 

Exhibit “A”, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best public 

interest to approve the Master Development Plan, which is attached to the August 15, 

2018, City Council staff report, and is incorporated herein by this reference as though 

fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 6.  The Zone District Map of the City of Escondido is hereby 

amended to change the zoning on the subject site from RE-20 (Residential Estates – 

20,000 square foot minimum lot size) to Planned Development-Residential (PD-R), as 

set forth in Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth 

herein.   

SECTION 7. The Planning Division of the Community Development 

Department provided a process for review and consideration of the Development 

Agreement in accordance with state law, California Government Code sections 65864 – 

65869.5, and Planning Commission and the City Council reviewed the proposed 

Development Agreement for compliance with technical requirements and consistency 

with the applicable city policies.  Upon consideration of the staff report; Planning 

Commission recommendation; Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “A” to this 

Ordinance and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein, the 



 

Development Agreement is hereby approved, as set forth substantially to the same 

form on file with the Office of the City Clerk, and attached as Exhibit "C," and 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 8.   All references within this Ordinance to "Applicant," "Developer," 

or "Subdivider" shall be equally applicable to the current property owner and to any 

successors-in-interest or assigns, whether such successors of assigns own, control, or 

otherwise have development authority for all, a portion, or portions of that property 

included within the Project site. 

SECTION 9.  SEPARABILITY. If any section, subsection sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this Ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 

and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions. 

SECTION 10. That as of the effective date of this ordinance, all ordinances or 

parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 11.  Concurrently with this Ordinance, the City Council is taking a 

number of actions in furtherance of the Project, as generally described by the August 

15, 2018 City Council staff report.  No single component of the series of actions made 

in connection with the Project shall be effective unless and until it is approved by an 

Ordinance or Resolution and is procedurally effective within its corporate limits as a 

statute in the manner provided by state law.  Therefore, this Ordinance shall become 

effective after final passage and publication as required by law, and operative only if 

City Council Resolution Nos. 2018-120 and 2018-122 are approved. 



 

SECTION 12.  The City Council authorizes all subsequent action to be taken by 

City Officials consistent with this Ordinance.   

SECTION 13.  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of 

this Ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be prepared in accordance with 

Government Code Section 36933, to be published one time within 15 days of its 

passage in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the County and 

circulated in the City of Escondido. 

SECTION 14.  The Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of 

the passage.   



Ordinance No. 2018-17 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” TO ORDINANCE NO. 2018-17 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
 

Rezone Determinations: 
 

1. The proposed Rezone would not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of the City 
because the development standards and building requirements allowed under the Rezone would 
be subject to all local and State regulations including, but not limited to, Air Pollution Control District 
regulations, Public Works Department regulations, Health Department regulations, Zoning Code 
standards, Fire Department standards, and Building and Safety Division regulations. The proposal 
meets the purpose of the Municipal and Zoning Codes as it would be consistent with the established 
rules of the proposed zoning districts. The Project site has been thoroughly analyzed for applicable 
environmental impacts related to this proposed development (Environmental Impact Report, State 
Clearinghouse #2016111060), and as appropriate, the Final EIR recommends measures to 
mitigate potential impacts. 
 

2. The property involved is suitable for the uses permitted by the proposed zone.  The proposed 
Rezone would change the zoning of the subject property from RE-20 (Residential Estates; 20,000-
SF minimum lot size) to PD-R (Planned Development-Residential). The change of zone is proposed 
in conjunction with a Preliminary and Master Development Plan that would allow clustering of 55 
single-family residential lots ranging from 10,005 SF to 24,557 SF in size, as well as approximately 
20.02 acres of open space.  No General Plan Amendment is necessary for the project, since the 
density of the residential development conforms to the standards of the existing E2 (Estate II) land 
use designation, and the E2 land use designation is consistent with the proposed PD-R zone per 
Land Use Zoning Policy 2.3 and Figure II-32 of the General Plan. 
 

3. The uses proposed for the subject property would not be detrimental to surrounding properties 
since the site is located in an established residential area containing a range of similar residential 
uses at a relatively similar size. All public services and utilities to serve the Project would remain 
as identified in the General Plan or applicable Municipal and Zoning Codes.  The open space 
system serves as a natural physical barrier, which provides ample distances from adjacent 
residential areas and proposed residential land uses, and protects slopes, biological resources, 
and fuel modification zones.  Proposed development standards and design guidelines provide a 
clear design concept and are compatible with the character of buildings on adjoining and nearby 
properties. 
 

4. The proposed change is consistent with the adopted General Plan.  The proposed residential 
density does not exceed the maximum allowed for the E2 land use designation.  The purpose of 
the Planned Development (PD) zone is to encourage development of parcels with comprehensive 
site planning and building design; provide a flexible regulatory procedure by which the basic public 
purposes of the General Plan and development policies may be accomplished for specific parcels; 
encourage creative approaches to land use through variation in siting of buildings and appropriate 
mixing of various uses and design of facilities; promote and create public and private open space 
as an integral part of land development design; encourage private development of older areas of 
the City or areas which are not conducive to development under traditional zoning designations; 
and enhance and preserve property with unique features, such as historical significance, biological 
resources, or unusual topography and landscape features.  Upon approval of the proposed 
Rezone, zoning for the entire property would be PD-R and the proposed Master Development Plan 
would be consistent with the intent of the General Plan and Municipal Code.  The project site has 



Ordinance No. 2018-17 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
a unique set of design challenges and spatial complexities with regard to lot orientation, circulation, 
and transitional areas from adjacent properties.  The Master Development Plan provides an 
opportunity to address these complexities while also promoting the design and creation of new 
housing with neighborhood compatibility for consistency with General Plan policies and addressing 
site organization and urban form, setbacks, and building transitions.   
 

5. The proposed Rezone does not establish a residential density below 70 percent of the maximum 
permitted density of any lot or parcel of land previously zoned R-3, R-4, or R-5.   
 

6. The relationship of the proposed changes is not applicable to any specific plans. 

 
Planned Development Determinations: 
 

1. The location, design, and residential density of the proposed Planned Development is consistent 
with the goals and policies of the Escondido General Plan and any applicable specific plan or with 
any policies adopted by, or being considered by the Escondido city council, or in the process of 
being prepared and adopted.  The proposed project would create 55 single-family lots with net 
sizes ranging from 10,005 SF to 24,557 SF, with an average net lot size of 11,645 SF or 0.27 acre.  
While the General Plan designation of Estate II (E2) requires a minimum lot size of 20,000 SF, this 
minimum lot size may be reduced to 10,000 SF when the project site is included within a planned 
development or specific plan, per General Plan Residential Clustering Policy 5.1.  The project 
includes 20.04 acres of open space to protect slopes, sensitive biological habitat, and fuel 
modification zones, and to provide recreational amenities and stormwater management facilities; 
per Residential Clustering Policy 5.7, these are acceptable uses for permanent open space in a 
planned development.  Per Residential Clustering Policy 5.9, the reduction in residential lot sizes 
proposed under this Planned Development does not exceed the open space provided.  The project 
does not exceed the density allowed for the E2 designation, since it proposes 55 units, while the 
E2 designation allows 73 units.   

 
2. The proposed location allows the Planned Development to be well integrated with its surroundings.  

The project site is surrounded by residential neighborhoods characterized by single-family homes 
on lots ranging from roughly a quarter-acre to several acres in size.  Proposed development 
standards are largely consistent with those assigned to the City’s R-1 (Single Family Residential) 
zone.  While the applicant has chosen to defer application for a Precise Development Plan to a 
later date, some general design guidelines have been provided which state that the new homes 
would incorporate a balance of single-story elements and feature natural colors and materials to 
coordinate with the surrounding environment.   

 
3. All vehicular traffic generated by the Planned Development will be accommodated safely and 

without causing undue congestion upon adjoining streets.  A traffic impact analysis was prepared 
for the project and a mitigation measure has been proposed in the EIR to require the applicant to 
make a fair-share contribution toward the signalization and realignment of the Encino/Bear Valley 
intersection.  The project also proposes a Specific Alignment plan to add a second northbound lane 
and other improvements to the portion of Bear Valley Parkway between Sunset/Ranchito Drive and 
the north end of the development site, and signalization the project entry has been proposed as a 
project feature.   

 
4. The proposed location and design allows residents within the zone to be adequately serviced by 

existing or proposed public facilities and services and does not provide an undue or negative impact 
on existing public facilities and services.  All utilities intended for the site are already in place or can 
be extended to serve the site.  Police and fire services are available and sufficient for the 
development, as described in the June 26 2018 staff report.   

 



Ordinance No. 2018-17 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
5. The overall design of the proposed Planned Development produces an attractive, efficient and 

stable environment.  Design guidelines have been proposed to require single-story elements, with 
the use of decorative accents and natural colors and materials in the new residences.  Recreational 
amenities have been proposed for the development, including a pocket park and walking trail.  A 
conceptual landscape plan has been provided that includes attractive and regionally-appropriate 
plantings for fuel modification zones, HOA areas, bioretention basins, the pocket park, and along 
interior streets.   

 
6. The Planned Development is well integrated with its settings, does not require excessive 

earthmoving or grading, or destruction of desirable natural features, nor is visually obstructive or 
disharmonious with surrounding areas and facilities, and does not substantially harm major views 
from adjacent properties.  While grading will be necessary to construct the project, the development 
has been designed to coordinate with the existing topography of the site, and the project’s effects 
on views from surrounding streets and residences has been analyzed within the project’s EIR.   
 

7. The uses proposed have a beneficial effect not obtainable under existing zoning regulations, and 
any departure from existing ordinance requirements shall be warranted by the design and the 
amenities incorporated in the Planned Development in accord with adopted city policy.  While the 
site’s existing RE-20 zoning does allow construction of single-family residences, the proposed 
Planned Development would allow a development of the same overall density as an RE-20 
development, but with clustered lots that avoid constraints such as steep slopes and sensitive 
biological habitat.  The Planned Development would include permanent open space for protection 
of a majority of these slopes and habitat, as well as for recreational amenities to benefit the 
development’s residents. 

 
Development Agreement Determinations: 
   

1. The proposed Development Agreement is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land 
uses, and programs specified in the General Plan.  The Project site is located within the Estate II 
(E2) land use designation of the General Plan, where density is limited to two dwelling units per 
acre for slopes under 25 percent, one dwelling unit per acre for slopes between 25 and 35 percent, 
and one dwelling unit per acre for slopes over 35 percent.  The topography of the site would allow 
for 73 units under the above ratios.  The project proposes to build 55 units, and therefore is 
consistent with the maximum density permissible for the E2 land use designation.  The purpose of 
the Development Agreement is to define terms for completion and funding of street improvements 
to Bear Valley Parkway, as shown in a Specific Alignment Plan proposed in conjunction with this 
residential development.  The Project development proposal promotes amenities beyond those 
expected under a conventional development, and achieves greater flexibility in design and context-
sensitive use of land.  General Plan Street Network Policy 7.2 allows for Specific Alignment Plans 
for unique situations when standard road widening is not adequate for future needs, or when special 
conditions/constraints exist which require a detailed implementation plan.  The applicant has 
proposed to install several improvements to Bear Valley Parkway along the east side of the road 
between Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the north end of the development site, to include a second 
northbound travel lane, sidewalk, curb, gutter, and relocation of an existing bicycle lane; however, 
the proposed road width would not conform to Major Road standards as defined by the General 
Plan and the City of Escondido Design Standards and Standard Drawings so approval of a Specific 
Alignment Plan is required.   

 
2. The proposed Development Agreement is compatible with the uses authorized in, and the 

regulations prescribed for, the land use district in which the real property is located all other 
provisions of Chapter 33.  As described above, the project proposes to build 55 units, and therefore 
is consistent with the maximum density permissible for the E2 land use designation.  The project 
also proposes a Rezone to PD-R and a Master Development Plan to allow for residential lot 
clustering.  In conjunction with these proposals, a Specific Alignment Plan would install several 
improvements to Bear Valley Parkway along the east side of the road between Sunset/Ranchito 



Ordinance No. 2018-17 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Drive and the north end of the development site, to include a second northbound travel lane, 
sidewalk, curb, gutter, and relocation of an existing bicycle lane.  The proposed Development 
Agreement would define terms for acquisition of right-of-way for improvements located off the 
development site (i.e., between Sunset/Ranchito Drive and the southern boundary of the residential 
development), as well as reimbursement of costs for these off-site improvements.     

 
3. The proposed Development Agreement is in conformity with public convenience, general welfare, 

and good land use practices.  New street improvements outlined in the Specific Alignment Plan 
include one additional northbound vehicle lane on Bear Valley Parkway between Sunset/Ranchito 
Drive and Choya Canyon Road, as well as curb, gutter, sidewalk, and stormwater management 
features such as vegetated swales and tree wells.  An existing bicycle lane would be retained, 
though it would be shifted to the east to accommodate the widened road right-of-way.  These 
improvements would benefit all users of Bear Valley Parkway, and per the Development 
Agreement, the portion along the frontage of the development site would be provided by the 
applicant or developer at no public cost.   

 
4. The proposed Development Agreement will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and general 

welfare of the City.  An additional northbound lane on Bear Valley Parkway will increase the 
capacity of the road in this area, and a new sidewalk on the east side of the road will provide 
pedestrian access in an area that does not currently enjoy it, and will provide connectivity to an 
existing sidewalk south of Sunset/Ranchito Drive.  The Specific Alignment Plan includes 
stormwater features, such as vegetated swales and tree wells, to prevent runoff from the road from 
damaging neighboring properties.   

 
5. The Development Agreement is consistent with the provisions of State law (Government Code, 

Sections 65864 – 65869.5) to develop in accordance with project approvals and existing laws.  
These Government Code Sections outline requirements related to the contents of agreements, the 
applicability of an agreement and on the public hearing and approval process.  The proposed 
Development Agreement is consistent with Government Code Section 65864, which states that the 
lack of certainty in the approval of development projects can result in a waste of resources and 
escalated housing costs while discouraging comprehensive planning, because the proposed 
Development Agreement provides certainty to the applicant regarding fees required and 
construction obligations for associated public improvements for a period of five years. In addition, 
the agreement complies with Article 58 of the Escondido Zoning Code, which outlines the 
procedures and requirements for the review, approval and amendment of development 
agreements. 
 

6. The proposed Development Agreement would not adversely affect the orderly development of 
property or the preservation of property values since the project would be developed in 
conformance with the existing E-2 designation of the General Plan, and in conformance with the 
General Plan’s policies for planned developments.  In addition, the agreement does not allow a use 
that would not be permitted by the Zoning Code.  The agreement specifies the duration of the 
agreement, the terms of the agreement, responsibility for obtaining right-of-way for off-site SAP 
improvements, and reimbursement for these improvements. 

 
 
 
 
esponsible 
Party 
Timing of Verification 
Certified 
Completion 
Comments 



 
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “B” 
Page 1 of 2 

 
EXHIBIT “B” TO ORDINANCE NO. 2018-17 

 
REZONE 

 
CHANGE OF ZONING 

AT 661 BEAR VALLEY PARKWAY, ESCONDIDO, CA 
SUB 15-0002 / PHG 15-0004 / ENV 15-0001 

 
Each parcel associated with the proposed Rezone: 
 

APNs Existing Zone Proposed Zone 

237-131-01 RE-20 PD-R 

237-131-02 RE-20 PD-R 

 
 
I.  Official Zoning Map 
 
That the Official Zoning Map, also known as the Zoning Map of the City, is amended as shown.  
All parcels will carry the Planned Development-Residential (PD-R) Zoning Designation.  The 
existing, complete Map being amended is on file with the Office of the City Clerk.  
 

 
 

237-131-01 

237-131-02 



 
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “B” 
Page 2 of 2 

 
II.  Clerical Tasks 
 
The City Clerk be hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, article 
numbers, and section numbers in the event that the codification of this Rezone reveals that there 
is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and 
possible accidental repeal of existing provisions. 



Ordinance No. 2018-17 
Exhibit “C” 

Page 1 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn   

 

EXHIBIT “C” TO ORDINANCE NO. 2018-17 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
  



Ordinance No. 2018-17 
Exhibit “C” 

Page 2 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -2-  

 

 
 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

CITY CLERK, CITY OF 

ESCONDIDO 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

CITY CLERK 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

201 N. BROADWAY 

ESCONDIDO, CA 92025 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS SPACE FOR RECORDER'S USE ONLY 

APN:  XXX-XXX-XX 

Recording Fees Exempt Per Government Code Section 27383 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

for 661 Bear Valley Parkway 

between 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

and 

[Entity]  

____________, 2018 

 



Ordinance No. 2018-17 
Exhibit “C” 

Page 3 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -3-  

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between the City and Owner. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5 and Articles 58 and 68 of the 

City's Zoning Code authorize the City to enter into binding development agreements with 

persons or entities having legal or equitable interests in real property for the purpose of 

establishing certainty in the development process for both the City and the property owner, and 

to enable specific terms regarding property development, to be negotiated and agreed upon; and 

WHEREAS, the purposes of the Agreement are to eliminate uncertainty in the planning and 

development of the Project by assuring Owner that it may develop the Property, in accordance 

with existing laws, subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement; assure the 

orderly installation of necessary improvements and the provision for public services appropriate 

for the development of the Project; and enable the City to obtain substantial public benefits by 

virtue of the Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, 

the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

Definitions 

1. "Amendment" refers to any written amendment to this Agreement approved by the City 

Council as provided in Article II, Section 3.   

2. "Annual Review" refers to the Owner's demonstration of compliance with the terms of 

this Agreement every 12 months. 

3. "Assignee" refers to an assignee of this Agreement in accordance with Article II, 

Section 2 and approved by the City in writing. 

4. "Director" refers to the Director of Community Development. 

5. "CEQA" refers to the California Environmental Quality Act. 

6. "City" refers to the City of Escondido, its City Council, its mayors and council members, 

past and present, and employees and agents. 

7. "Cure Period" refers to the period of time in which a default may be cured, which will 

be 30 days. 

8. "Development Fees" refers to the development related fees as provided in the City's Fee 

Guide and referred to as development fees. 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 4 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -4-  

 

9. "Differing Site Condition" means unknown physical conditions at the site of any 

unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized 

as inherent in work of the character provided for in the contract. 

10. Effective Date.  The effective date of the Agreement shall be the day that is 30 days after 

the City Council's adoption of an ordinance approving this Agreement. 

11. "Entitlements" refers to all approvals and permits necessary or incidental to the 

development of the Project or any portion thereof, whether discretionary or ministerial, including 

but not limited to, specific plans, tentative or final tract map approvals, whether standard or 

vesting, conditional use permits, variances, project plans, grading permits, building permits, and 

this Agreement and includes all conditions of approval regarding any particular Entitlement. 

12. "Exaction" refers to any fee, tax, requirement, condition, dedication, restriction, or 

limitation imposed by the City upon the development of the Property at any time in accordance 

with the Existing Laws. 

13. "Existing Laws" refers to the ordinances, resolutions, codes, rules, regulations, general 

plan, stormwater regulations and official policies of the City governing the development of the 

Property, including, but not limited to, the permitted uses of the Property, the density or intensity 

of use, the design, improvement and construction standards and specifications for the Project, 

including the maximum height and size of proposed buildings, and the provisions for reservation 

and dedication of land for public purposes, in effect on the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

14. "Future Exaction" refers to Exactions imposed after the Effective Date, whether by 

ordinance, initiative, resolution, rule, regulation, policy, order or otherwise. 

15. "Future Laws" refers to all ordinances, resolutions, codes, rules, regulations, and official 

policies implemented by the City after the Effective Date, whether by ordinance, initiative, 

resolution, rule, regulation, policy, order or otherwise.  Future Laws includes changes to the 

Existing Laws. 

16. "General Fees" refers to all general development fees which the City may levy pursuant 

to Government Code Sections 66000 et seq.  ("the Mitigation Fee Act"), including, but not 

limited to, application fees, processing fees, utility connection fees, inspection fees, capital 

facilities fees, development impact fees, traffic impact fees, park fees and such other similar fees 

as may be enacted from time to time and generally applied throughout the City, excluding 

Development Fees. 

17. "General Plan" refers to the City's General Plan in effect on the Effective Date. 

18. "Minor Modifications" refers to minor modifications regarding the performance of this 

Agreement that are consistent with the Entitlements and have minimal impacts to the City's 

operations in terms of timing, performance, or value. 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 5 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -5-  

 

19. "Modification" refers to a modification approved by the City Council as provided in 

Article VI, Section 5. 

20. "Offsite Improvements" refers to the Public Benefit offsite improvements as defined in 

Section I.B of Exhibit B to this Agreement. 

21. "Operating Memorandum" refers to addenda to this Agreement to document changes or 

adjustments in the performance of this Agreement as specified in Article III, Section 7. 

22. "Owner" refers to [entity], who has legal or equitable interest in the real property which 

is the subject of this Agreement. 

23. Party.  City or Owner may be referred to individually as Party or collectively as Parties. 

24. "Project" shall mean and refer to all improvements described in the Entitlements and this 

Agreement. 

25. "Property" shall mean the certain real property located in the County of San Diego, State 

of California as described in the Exhibit A. 

26. "Public Benefits" shall refer to the consideration given by Owner to the City, as 

described in Exhibit B attached hereto, in return for the City's good faith performance of all 

applicable terms and conditions in this Agreement. 

27. "Public Improvements" refers to any public improvements required to be constructed as 

conditions of approval to the Entitlements or as additionally provided in this Agreement. 

28. "Review Letter" refers to a letter from the City regarding a statement of Owner's 

compliance with this Agreement, following a positive Annual Review by the City. 

29. "Term" shall refer to the term of this Agreement as provided in Article II, Section 1. 

ARTICLE II 

General Provisions 

1. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date 

and shall continue for (five) 5 years unless terminated, modified, amended or extended as 

permitted by this Agreement.  After the expiration of the Term, this Agreement shall be deemed 

terminated and of no further force or effect.  This Agreement shall terminate with respect to any 

lot and such lot shall be released and no longer subject to the Agreement, without the execution 

or recordation of any further document, when a certificate of occupancy has been issued for the 

building(s) on the lot. 

2. Assignment.  The rights and obligations of Owner under the Agreement may be assigned 

by Owner as part of an assignment of the Property, only after receiving written approval from the 

City.  Owner shall provide (thirty) 30 days advance written notice to the City of any requested 

assignment.  The City shall have the right to ensure that the proposed assignee has the financial 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 6 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -6-  

 

capability to complete and fulfill any uncompleted requirements relating to the Public Benefits 

and Public Improvements.  Any assignment agreement must be in writing and expressly provide 

that (a) the assignment shall be subject to this Agreement; and (b) the Assignee assumes all of 

Owner's rights and obligations with respect to the Property, or portion thereof, assigned. 

3. Amendment of Agreement.  The Agreement may be amended in writing by the mutual 

consent of the Parties in accordance with Article 58, Chapter 33 of the Escondido Zoning Code 

as well as any applicable state or federal law The Agreement shall include any amendment 

properly approved and executed.  Minor Modifications in the manner of performance shall not 

constitute an Amendment to the Agreement and may be accomplished through an Operating 

Memorandum. 

4. Enforcement.  Unless amended or terminated as provided herein, this Agreement is 

enforceable by either Party or its successors and assigns, notwithstanding any Future Laws, 

which alter or amend the Existing Laws. 

5. Defense and Indemnification. 

a. Owner agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless, City, and provide and pay 

all costs for a defense of and judgment against the City, including any award for attorney's fees 

and litigation costs, in any legal action filed in a court of competent jurisdiction by a third party 

challenging the Project, or any component thereof, or this Agreement. 

b. Owner shall further indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its officers, 

employees and agents from and against any and all liabilities, claims, actions, causes of action, 

proceedings, suits, administrative proceedings, damages, fines, penalties, judgments, orders, 

liens, levies, costs and expenses of whatever nature, including reasonable attorneys' fees and 

disbursements, arising out of any violation, or claim of violation of the San Diego Municipal 

Storm Water Permit (Order No. R9-2015-0001) of the California Regional Water Quality 

Control Board Region 9, San Diego, as amended or extended, which the City might suffer, incur, 

or become subject by reason of or occurring as a result of or allegedly caused by the construction 

of the Project. 

c. The City shall have no liability to the Owner or any other person for, and Owner 

shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless the City from and against, any and all 

liabilities, claims, actions, causes of action, proceedings, suits, damages, judgments, liens, levies, 

costs and expenses of whatever nature, including reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements, 

which the City may suffer or incur or to which the City may become subject as a result of or 

allegedly caused by the payment of prevailing wages for construction of any of the Public 

Benefits or Public Improvements. 

d. If any action or proceeding is brought against the City by reason of any of the 

matters against which Owner has agreed to indemnify the City as provided above, Owner, upon 

notice from the City, shall defend the City at Owner's expense by counsel acceptable to City, 

such acceptance not to be unreasonably withheld.  The City need not have first paid for any of 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 7 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -7-  

 

the matters to which the City is entitled to indemnification in order to be so indemnified.  The 

provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

6. Third Party Challenges.  In the event the validity, applicability, or implementation of 

the Agreement is challenged by means of legal proceedings by any party other than the City and 

Owner, it shall be the City's option, at its sole and absolute discretion, whether to undertake the 

defense of such challenge.  If the City determines not to defend such challenge, it shall be the 

option of Owner, to defend the validity, applicability, or implementation of this Agreement in the 

proceeding at Owner's sole expense.  The City and Owner agree to cooperate in the defense of 

any such challenges. 

7. Notices.  All notices or communication between the City and Owner pursuant to the 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given by personal delivery, overnight delivery 

service, certified or registered mail, facsimile or telecopy to the addresses set forth below.  The 

addresses may be changed by giving (ten) 10 days written notice. 

A. City 

City of Escondido  

Attention:  Director of Community Development 

201 N. Broadway  

Escondido, CA 92025 

 

with a copy to: 

 

City Attorney 

201 N. Broadway 

Escondido, CA 92025 

B. Owner 

[Entity] 

Attention:  [Name] 

[Address] 

with a copy to: 

[Name] 

[Address] 

8. Conflict of State or Federal Laws.  If state or federal laws or regulations enacted after 

the Effective Date prevent compliance with any provision of this Agreement or require changes 

in any Entitlements, those laws or regulations shall be controlling and the Parties shall make a 

good faith, reasonable attempt to modify this Agreement to comply both with the intent of the 

Agreement and with the new laws or regulations. 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 8 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -8-  

 

The City shall timely assist Owner in securing any permits, including permits from other public 

agencies, which may be required as a result of the modifications, suspensions, or alternate 

courses of action. 

ARTICLE III 

Development of the Property 

1. Applicable Rules, Regulations, and Policies.  Owner shall have the vested right, to the 

fullest extent allowed by law, to develop the Property in accordance with the Entitlements, 

Existing Laws and this Agreement.  During the Term, the Entitlements, Existing Laws and this 

Agreement shall control the overall design, development and construction of the Project.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the City from applying 

changes occurring from time to time in the uniform codes published in Title 24 of the California 

Code of Regulations and adopted by the City, including local amendments, in effect when the 

building permits are issued. 

2. Future Laws.  Future Laws shall not apply to the Project except as expressly provided in 

this Agreement.  Future Laws may be applied to the Project if they are not in conflict with the 

Existing Laws.  Owner may give the City written notice of its election to have any Future Law 

applied to the Property, in which case such Future Law will be considered an Existing Law for 

purposes of this Agreement. 

3. Future Discretionary Reviews.  Except as set forth in this Agreement, the City shall 

retain its discretionary rights in reviewing applications for Entitlements.  Owner's applications 

for Entitlements and the City's review thereof, must comply with the Existing Laws and with the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall not impose any conditions upon 

Entitlements that are more restrictive than or inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement or the 

Existing Laws, except as required by state or federal law.  The City may conduct, in accordance 

with CEQA and the Existing Laws, an environmental review for Entitlements.  The City may 

impose, if required by CEQA, additional mitigation measures to mitigate significant adverse 

environmental effects that were not previously considered, or were found to be infeasible to 

mitigate at the time of approval of this Agreement.  Nothing herein is intended to require or 

authorize additional CEQA environmental review or mitigation measures beyond that otherwise 

required by CEQA. 

4. Permitted Uses and Density.  The Agreement shall vest the right to develop the 

Property to the fullest extent allowed by law with respect to the permitted uses of land, density 

and intensity of uses, and the rate or timing and phasing of development as described in the 

Entitlements which are hereby incorporated as if fully set forth in this Agreement.  The permitted 

uses, density, and intensity of use of the Project, the maximum height and size of proposed 

buildings and provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes, shall 

substantially conform to those specified in the Entitlements, Existing Laws and this Agreement.  

All other aspects of the Project that are not specified in the Entitlements shall be determined by 

the Existing Laws, except as expressly provided herein. 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 9 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -9-  

 

5. Time for Construction and Completion of the Project.  Owner cannot predict when or 

the rate or the order in which the Property or the parcels will be developed, if at all.  Such 

decisions depend upon numerous factors that are not within the control of the Owner, such as 

market orientation and demand, interest rates, absorption, completion, and other similar factors.  

Therefore, Owner shall have the right to develop the Property in phases, in such order, at such 

rate, and at such times as Owner deems appropriate in Owner's business judgment, subject only 

to the provisions of this Agreement and the Entitlements.  Owner shall be entitled to apply for 

and receive approval of permits, building permits, and other Entitlements for use at any time and 

for any or all portions or phases of the Project, provided that application is made in a manner 

consistent with this Agreement and the Entitlements. 

The City may require, and will process, all customary plans and agreements generally applicable 

to developers in the City for similar works of onsite or offsite improvements.   

6. Moratorium.  No City-imposed moratorium or other limitation (whether relating to the 

rate, timing or sequencing of the development or construction of all or any part of the Property, 

whether imposed by ordinance, initiative, resolution, policy, order or otherwise, and whether 

enacted by the City Council, an agency of the City, the electorate, or otherwise) affecting parcel 

or subdivision maps (whether tentative, vesting tentative, or final), building permits, occupancy 

certificates or other entitlements to use or service (including, without limitation, water and 

sewer) approved, issued or granted within the City, or portions of the City, shall apply to the 

Property to the extent such moratorium or other limitation is in conflict with this Agreement; 

provided, however, the provisions of this Section shall not affect the City's compliance with 

moratoria or other limitations mandated by other governmental agencies or court-imposed 

moratoria, as established by the initiative process, or as otherwise established by law. 

7. Operating Memoranda.  The Parties acknowledge that the provisions of this Agreement 

require cooperation between the City and Owner, and that the refinements and further 

development of the Project hereunder may demonstrate that changes are appropriate with respect 

to the details of performance of the Parties hereunder.  The Parties desire, therefore, to retain a 

certain degree of flexibility with respect to those items covered in general terms under this 

Agreement.  If and when, from time to time during the Term, the Parties find that such Minor 

Modifications are necessary or appropriate, they may effectuate such Minor Modifications 

through Operating Memoranda approved by the Parties, which, after execution, shall be attached 

hereto as addenda and become a part hereof, and may be further changed and amended from time 

to time as necessary with further approval by the City and Owner.  No such Operating 

Memorandum shall require prior notice or hearing, or constitute an amendment or modification 

to this Agreement; and in the case of the City, such Operating Memorandum may be acted upon 

by the City Manager or his designee.  Failure of the Parties to enter into any such Operating 

Memorandum shall not affect or abrogate any of the rights, duties or obligations of the Parties 

hereunder or the provisions of this Agreement.  An Operating Memorandum may be recorded as 

an addendum to this Agreement. 

8. Term of Map(s) and Other Project Approvals.  Pursuant to California Government 

Code Section 66452.6(a), the term of the subdivision map that is processed on all or any portion 

of the Property and the term of each of the Entitlements shall be extended for a period of time 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 10 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -10-  

 

through the Term of the Agreement.  The extension pursuant to Government Code 

Section 66452.6(a) shall be in addition to any other available extensions pursuant to applicable 

law.  Should this Agreement be terminated, the Owner shall have thirty (30) days to submit an 

application for the extension of any portion of an approved tentative map. 

9. Infrastructure Capacity.  Subject to Owner's proportionate contribution to 

infrastructure and the Public Benefits provided by Owner, in accordance with the requirements 

of the Entitlements, the City hereby acknowledges that it will have sufficient capacity in its 

infrastructure services and utility systems, including, without limitation, traffic circulation, flood 

control, sanitation service and, except for reasons beyond the City's control, sewer collection, 

sewer treatment, water supply, treatment, distribution and service, to accommodate the Project.  

To the extent that the City renders such services or provides such utilities, the City hereby agrees 

that it will serve the Project and that there shall be no restriction on connections or service for the 

Project except for reasons beyond the City's control. 

10. Easements.  Easements dedicated for pedestrian use shall be permitted to include public 

easements for underground improvements, including but not limited to, drainage, water, sewer, 

gas, electricity, telephone, cable and other utilities and facilities, so long as they do not 

unreasonably interfere with pedestrian use. 

11. Public Improvements.  Owner agrees to design and construct the improvements as 

provided in Exhibit B to this Agreement.  The Owner's requirement to design and construct the 

improvements and the City's obligation to reimburse Owner, in Exhibit B, shall survive the 

termination of this Agreement, provided that notwithstanding any other provision in this 

Agreement, the Parties' obligations under this Section 11 shall terminate upon the expiration of 

the tentative subdivision map. 

12. Fees.  The Owner shall pay the Development Fees and General Fees in the amounts in 

effect at the time Owner submits payment of the fees unless otherwise explicitly provided in this 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 

Provision of Public Benefits 

1. Description of Public Benefits.  Owner shall provide the City with the Public Benefits, 

as further described in Exhibit B, as consideration for the City's good faith performance of all 

applicable terms and conditions in this Agreement. 

2. Occupancy Contingent on Construction of Public Improvements.  Owner 

acknowledges that the City shall not grant a certificate of occupancy for any building constructed 

on the Property prior to the construction of all improvements described in Exhibit B.  This 

contingency for occupancy shall survive the termination of this Agreement, provided that the 

contingency for occupancy shall terminate upon expiration of the tentative subdivision map. 

3. Recordation of Final Map Contingent on Security for Public Benefits.  Prior to 

recordation of the Final Map, Owner must enter into an improvement agreement or agreements 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 11 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -11-  

 

which will detail Owner's construction obligations for Public Improvements and the Public 

Benefits, and will require Owner to provide financial security for completion of construction, in 

a form or forms as approved by the City Attorney. 

4. Processing During Third Party Litigation.  The filing of any third party lawsuit(s) 

against the City or Owner relating to this Agreement, any Entitlements, or to other development 

issues affecting the Property shall not delay or stop the development, processing or construction 

of the Project or approval of Entitlements, unless the third party obtains a court order preventing 

the activity. 

ARTICLE V 

Annual Review 

1. Owner Responsibilities.  At least every (twelve) 12 months during the Term, Owner 

shall demonstrate good faith substantial compliance with the major provisions of the Agreement 

and provide, to the best extent possible, the status and timing of development of the Project and 

related public improvements to the City for an Annual Review.  If requested by the City, Owner 

shall provide any additional detail or information necessary to demonstrate good faith 

compliance with any particular provision of this Agreement identified by the City. 

2. Opportunity to be Heard.  Owner shall be permitted an opportunity to be heard orally 

and in writing at any noticed public hearing regarding its performance under this Agreement.  

Owner shall be heard before each appropriate board agency or commission and the City Council 

at any required public hearing concerning a review of performance under this Agreement. 

3. Information to be Provided to Owner.  The City shall mail to Owner a copy of staff 

reports and related exhibits concerning Agreement performance, a minimum of (ten) 10 calendar 

days prior to consideration and review by the City Council. 

4. Annual Review Letter.  If Owner is found to be in substantial compliance with this 

Agreement after the Annual Review, the City shall issue, upon written request by Owner, a 

Review Letter to Owner stating that, based upon information known or made known to the City 

Council, the City Planning Commission, and/or the City Manager, this Agreement remains in 

effect and Owner is in compliance.  Owner may record the Review Letter in the Official Records 

of the County of San Diego. 

5. Failure of Annual Review.  The City's failure to perform an Annual Review of Owner's 

substantial compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall not constitute or be 

asserted as a default by Owner. 

ARTICLE VI 

Delay, Default, Remedies, and Termination 

1. Notice and Cure of Default.  In the event of a material default, the Party alleging a 

default shall give the defaulting Party a notice of default in writing.  The notice of default shall 

specify the nature of the alleged material default.  During the Cure Period, the Party charged 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 12 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -12-  

 

shall not be considered in breach.  If the default is cured within the Cure Period, then no breach 

shall be deemed to exist.  Any notice given pursuant to the preceding sentence shall specify the 

nature of the alleged failure and, where appropriate, the manner in which such alleged failure 

satisfactorily may be cured. 

2. Waiver.  Failure or delay in giving notice of default shall not constitute a waiver of any 

other material default.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, a failure or 

delay in asserting any rights or remedies as to any default shall not operate as a waiver of any 

default or of any rights or remedies otherwise available to a Party or deprive a Party of the right 

to institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem necessary to protect, 

assert, or enforce any rights or remedies it may have. 

3. Default by Owner.  The Director may recommend the review and termination of this 

Agreement to the City Council upon an occurrence of a material default that is not cured within 

the Cure Period.  The foregoing does not limit any of the City's other remedies upon a material 

breach of this Agreement by the Owner. 

4. Default by the City.  Upon a material default by the City, that is not cured within the 

Cure Period, Owner, without limiting any of its other remedies, shall not be obligated to 

complete any of its obligations under this Agreement. 

5. Termination or Modification.  Any termination or modification of this Agreement shall 

be done in accordance with Article 58, Chapter 33 of the Escondido Zoning Code as well as any 

applicable state or federal law.  Owner shall have sixty (60) days from the Effective Date to sign 

the Agreement or the Agreement shall automatically expire. 

ARTICLE VII 

Encumbrances and Releases on Property 

1. Discretion to Encumber.  This Agreement shall not prevent or limit Owner, in any 

manner, from encumbering the Property or any portion of the Property or any improvement on 

the Property by any mortgage.  The City acknowledges that lenders providing financing may 

require modifications to this Agreement and the City agrees, upon request, from time to time, to 

meet with Owner and/or representatives of lenders to negotiate in good faith any lender request 

for modification provided any modification does not will not affect the timely completion or 

fulfillment of any requirements in the Entitlements or this Agreement relating to the Public 

Benefits. 

ARTICLE VIII 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

1. Rules of Construction.  The singular includes the plural; the masculine gender includes 

the feminine; "shall" is mandatory; "may" is permissive. 

2. Severability.  If any non-material provision of this Agreement shall be adjudged by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or illegal, it shall in no way affect, impair, or 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 13 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -13-  

 

invalidate any other provision of this Agreement.  If any material part of the Agreement is 

adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or illegal, the Parties shall take 

all steps necessary to modify the Agreement to implement the original intent of the Parties in a 

valid and binding manner.  These steps may include the waiver by either of the Parties of their 

right under the unenforceable provision.  If, however, this Agreement objectively cannot be 

modified to implement the original intent of the Parties and the Party substantially benefited by 

the material provision does not waive its rights under the unenforceable provision, the executory 

portions of the Agreement shall become void. 

3. Entire Agreement.  Except as expressly referred to herein, this Agreement constitutes 

the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this 

Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all other negotiations and previous agreements between 

the Parties with respect to that subject matter. 

4. Waivers.  All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and signed 

by the appropriate agents of the City or of Owner. 

5. Recording.  The City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded with the 

Office of the County Recorder of San Diego County, California within (ten) 10 days following 

the Effective Date.  Upon the completion of performance of this Agreement or its revocation or 

termination, a statement evidencing completion, revocation, or termination signed by the 

appropriate agents of Owner and the City shall be recorded in the Official Records of San Diego 

County, California. 

6. Project as a Private Undertaking.  It is specifically understood by the Parties that the 

Project is a private development and that Owner shall have the full power and exclusive control 

of the Property subject to the provisions of this Agreement.  Any improvements completed 

remain the property of the Owner unless the City has explicitly accepted any improvement. 

7. Captions.  The captions of the Agreement are for convenience and reference only and 

shall not define, explain, modify, construe, limit, amplify or aid in the interpretation, 

construction or meaning of any of the provisions of the Agreement. 

8. Consent.  Where the consent or approval of a Party is required or necessary under this 

Agreement, the consent or approval shall not be withheld unreasonably. 

9. The City's Ongoing Statutory Authority.  Except as expressly stated, nothing in this 

Agreement shall limit the City's authority and responsibility under the California Constitution 

and applicable California statutes to act in the best interests of the public health, safety, and 

welfare, and nothing in this Agreement is intended to limit in any way the legislative discretion 

otherwise afforded the Escondido City Council under state or federal law. 

10. Covenant of Cooperation.  The Parties shall cooperate with and assist each other in the 

performance of the provisions of the Agreement including assistance in obtaining permits for the 

development of the Property which may be required from public agencies other than the City.  

The covenant of cooperation shall include, to the maximum extent permitted by law, that the 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 14 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -14-  

 

City shall use its best efforts to prevent any ordinance, measure, moratorium or other limitation 

from invalidating, prevailing over or making impossible any provision of the Agreement, and the 

City shall cooperate with Owner to keep this Agreement in full force and effect.  Owner reserves 

the right to challenge any such ordinance, measure, moratorium, or other limitation in a court of 

law if it becomes necessary to protect the development rights vested in the Property pursuant to 

this Agreement. 

11. Further Actions and Instruments.  Each of the Parties shall cooperate with and provide 

reasonable assistance to the other in the performance of all obligations under this Agreement and 

the satisfaction of the conditions.  Upon the request of either Party, the other Party shall promptly 

execute, with acknowledgment or affidavit if reasonably required, and file or record such 

required instruments and writings and take any actions as may be reasonably necessary under the 

terms of this Agreement to carry out the intent and to fulfill the provisions of the Agreement or 

to evidence or consummate the transactions contemplated herein. 

12. Successors and Assigns.  Subject to Article II Section 2 above, the burdens of this 

Agreement shall be binding upon, and the benefits of this Agreement inure to, all successors-in-

interest and assigns of the Parties. 

13. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each and every 

term and condition hereof. 

14. Applicable Laws.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with 

the laws of the State of California.  All statutory references are to California statutes. 

15. No Waiver of Existing Rights or Applicable Laws.  This Agreement shall not 

constitute a waiver of any of Owner's existing rights or applicable laws, nor shall it limit or 

expand Owner's right to challenge any General Fee as being contrary to applicable law or to 

challenge any existing or Future Exaction as being in excess of Exactions permitted by 

applicable law. 

16. Authorization.  Each person executing this Agreement hereby warrants and represents 

that he/she has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to bind his/her respective entity to 

the provisions hereof.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 

which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original. 

17. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement and each and every provision hereof is 

for the exclusive benefit of the Parties hereto and not for the benefit of any third party. 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

  



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 15 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -15-  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement: 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO    CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 

Sam Abed      Diane Halverson 

Its:   Mayor      Its:   Clerk 

[entity] 

By:  [entity] 

By: _____________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Its: _____________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

By: _____________________________ 

Michael R. McGuiness 

  City Attorney 

[entity] 

By: _____________________________ 

name, Esq. 

Attorney for Owner 

  



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 16 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -16-  

 

Exhibit A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Real property in the City of Escondido, County of San Diego, State of California, described as 

follows: 

  



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 17 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -17-  

 

Exhibit B 

I. PUBLIC BENEFITS AND IMPROVEMENTS 

A. BEAR VALLEY PARKWAY FRONTAGE.  Owner shall design and construct a 

2,937-foot stretch of Bear Valley Parkway by adding one north-bound lane along the 

project frontage together with construction of curb and gutter and a 5-foot-wide 

concrete sidewalk.   

B. CONTRIBUTION.  The Owner shall deposit $215,000 (“Contribution”) with the 

City for its use not later than the date upon which security must be posted for the 

Offsite Improvements.  The Contribution shall be adjusted as set forth herein to 

reflect the annual increase, if any, in the Los Angeles Construction Cost Index 

("CCI") when compared to the previous year.  The adjustments shall commence on 

the third anniversary of the Effective Date hereof to reflect any increase in the CCI 

between the third and fourth anniversaries of the Effective Date, and continue 

annually thereafter until the Offsite Improvements are complete.  Owner shall deposit 

with the City appropriate CCI adjustment payments concurrently with the posting of 

security for the Offsite Improvements, and annually thereafter until the Offsite 

Improvements are complete.  The CCI adjustment payments, if any, shall be added to 

the Contribution for purposes of this Section I.B and Section II.A, below.  The 

Contribution shall be subject to any reductions as provided in Section II.A.  Any 

reduction in the Contribution, as set forth in Section II.A, below, will be refunded to 

Owner upon completion of the Offsite Improvements. 

C. OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS.  Owner shall design and construct a 528 - foot 

stretch of Northbound Bear Valley Parkway from the south edge of the residential 

development to Ranchito Drive in accordance with the BVP Specific Alignment Plan, 

which includes but is not limited to storm water improvements in accordance with 

green street designs, curb, gutter and a 5-foot-wide concrete sidewalk.  Owner shall 

ensure necessary storm water improvements in accordance with the USEPA Green 

Streets guidelines and handbooks are established to full growth to perform as 

designed as determined by the City Engineer, prior to turning over the maintenance 

responsibility to an HOA to be maintained in perpetuity and contained in the Project's 

CC&Rs.  Should the adjacent parcel, APN No. XXX-XX-XXX, be developed the 

HOA shall have no further maintenance responsibility, and the City will assign such 

responsibility for maintenance to the property owner in accordance with City 

standards and policies. 

D. RIGHT OF WAY.  The Owner and City recognize that certain additional right of 

way is needed for construction of these Offsite Improvements.  Owner shall prepare 

the plats and legal descriptions for the necessary right of way for the Offsite 

Improvements, which must be approved by the City.  Owner shall use its best efforts 

to acquire the right of way.  If Owner is unable to acquire the right of way despite its 

best efforts, Owner must give the City written notice of the Owner's inability to 

acquire the right of way before the Owner's submission of improvement plans and 



  
Ordinance No. 2018-17 

Exhibit “C” 
Page 18 of 18 

 

868318.02/SD 

374629-00001/8-8-18/jac/scn -18-  

 

securities for the Public Improvements.  The City may seek to acquire the right of 

way after receiving said notice from the Owner.  If the City elects to do so, the City 

will have nine (9) months to acquire the necessary right of way after approval of the 

improvement plans and the posting of security for the Public Improvements. 

II. FEE CREDITS AND REIMBURSEMENTS 

A. REIMBURSEMENT FOR OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS.  The City will 

reimburse the Owner for the Reimbursable Costs as provided in this Section II.A.  

The Owner shall publically bid the offsite improvement project to qualified 

contractors.  The City will confirm the lowest responsible and responsive bid price 

("Bid Price").  In addition to the Bid Price, the City will also reimburse Owner for 

permit fees and engineering, design, and mitigation costs on a pro rata basis for the 

Offsite Improvements (“Other Costs”).  Collectively, the Bid Price and the Other 

Costs make up the Reimbursable Costs.  Upon substantial completion of the Offsite 

Improvements, the City will reimburse Owner $98,000 within thirty (30) days of a 

written request from Owner.  The remaining Reimbursable Costs will be paid by the 

City on or before 4 years from the notice of completion for the Offsite Improvements.  

Reimbursable Costs must be incurred after the Effective Date.  The Contribution 

provided above shall be reduced, and any excess refunded to Owner, as set forth in 

Section I.B above, to the extent that the Contribution exceeds fifty percent (50%) of 

the Reimbursable Costs.   

By way of example only, in the event the Reimbursable Costs are $450,000, and the 

Contribution amounts to $230,000 (original $215,000 Contribution plus $15,000 CCI 

adjustment), then the Contribution would be reduced to $225,000 (50% of the 

Reimbursable Costs) and the City would reimburse Owner an additional $5,000 

pursuant to Section I.B, above.  Using the preceding example, in the event 

Reimbursable Costs were $470,000 rather than $450,000, there would be no reduction 

in the Contribution (Contribution does not, in this example, exceed 50% of 

Reimbursable Costs). 

B. REIMBURSEMENT FOR RIGHT OF WAY.  The City will reimburse the Owner 

for the actual costs of acquisition for the right of way acquired by the Owner, in an 

amount not to exceed the appraised value of the necessary right of way.  Any 

reimbursable costs in this Section II B must be incurred after the Effective Date and 

are separate and apart from the limits on reimbursements contained in Section II A. 

III. TIMING AND COOPERATION 

A. The City and Owner agree to cooperate towards the requirements in this Agreement 

including a permitting and construction schedule. 

 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Public Hearing Item No. 9   August 15, 2018   File No. 0810-20 
 
SUBJECT: Amendments to the Escondido Zoning Code and Downtown Specific Plan to 

Conditionally Permit Drive-Through Restaurants and Conditional Use Permit for a 
New Drive-Through Restaurant at 350 W. Valley Parkway (PHG 17-0014, PHG 
17-0015, and ENV 17-0003) 
 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department, Planning Division 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is requested that the City Council introduce Ordinance No. 2018-18, to amend Article 1 (Definitions) 
of the Escondido Zoning Code to define drive-through businesses and to amend the Downtown Specific 
Plan to allow drive-through restaurants, subject to a conditional use permit, in the Gateway Transit (GT) 
and Centre City Urban (CCU) Districts.  Ordinance No. 2018-18 also includes the adoption of a Final 
Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program (MMRP).  It is also requested that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2018-124, 
approving a Conditional Use Permit for a proposed drive-through restaurant located at 350 W. Valley 
Parkway.      
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
 
On June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission adopted Planning Commission Resolution No. 6121, 
recommending that the City Council approve the proposed Zoning Code and Downtown Specific Plan 
amendments and Conditional Use Permit, by 5-1 (Watson opposed) vote.  The June 6, 2018, Planning 
Commission meeting minutes and staff report are included for reference as Attachment 1 and 
Attachment 2 to this report, respectively.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
 
The project includes three components. The first component modifies Article 1 (Definitions) of the 
Escondido Zoning Code to provide a code definition for drive-through businesses. The second 
component is an Amendment to the Downtown Specific Plan to allow drive-through restaurants within 
the Center City Urban (CCU) and Gateway Transit (GT) Districts, which currently prohibits this type of 
use.  The third component of the project is a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow the construction of 
a 1,900-square-foot Starbucks coffee shop with drive-through, at 350 West Valley Parkway. The 
proposed Specific Plan Amendment enables the review and consideration of the site development plan 
application and would authorize future development of drive-through restaurants within the Centre City 
Urban and Gateway Transit Districts of the Downtown Specific Plan area with issuance of a CUP.  Upon 
issuance of a CUP and completion of the project, the existing Starbucks franchise operating at 320 
West Valley Parkway would relocate to the new facility.  The vacated building would remain vacant or 
be leased to another permitted business or land use activity. The proposal also includes the adoption 
of the IS/MND and MMRP for the project. 



Zoning Code and Downtown Specific Plan Amendments and Conditional Use Permit 
August 15, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Currently there are five (5) drive-through businesses in the Centre City Urban District of the Downtown 
Specific Plan and one (1) in the Gateway Transit District.  Four (4) of these businesses are related to 
the fast-food industry, including Albertos, KFC, Taco Bell, and McDonalds.  However, the Specific Plan 
does not permit drive-through restaurants and these existing uses do not conform with the zoning 
requirements.  Any new drive-through restaurant proposed within the Specific Plan would have to 
amend the plan to authorize this type of land use activity.   
 
The Planning Division received a request from Helf Pavilion, LLC, to develop a drive-through coffee 
facility at 350 W. Valley Parkway.  Per Chapter VIII of the Downtown Specific Plan, amendments to 
said Specific Plan require initiation by the City Council prior to submittal of a formal application.  The 
City Council provided direction to staff on February 14, 2018 to process the application. 
 
The proposed Downtown Specific Plan Amendment request would allow drive-through restaurants in 
the Centre City Urban District and Gateway District of the Downtown Specific Plan, subject to a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  In consideration of potential concerns about the concentration, location, 
and certain characteristics associated with new drive-through establishments, language has been 
added to the Specific Plan to help control the intensity of this land use category type and to ensure its 
compatibility with surrounding commercial uses, as outlined in the draft specific plan amendment 
language (attached to this report as Exhibit “B” of Ord. 2018-18).  Zoning Code Article 16, Section 33-
341 was adopted by Ordinance No. 2018-07R, earlier this year, which provided additional regulation of 
drive-through facilities, citywide.  Additional revisions would be made to various sections of the 
Downtown Specific Plan and the City’s Zoning Code as part of this amendment.   
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Currently, drive-through businesses are not defined in the City’s Zoning Code or the Downtown Specific 
Plan.  Drive-through businesses are permitted and regulated in the City’s commercial zones (Article 16, 
Section 33-341) and are prohibited in the Downtown Specific Plan.  The Zoning Code Amendment 
proposes to define drive-through businesses.  The Specific Plan Amendment proposes to add a new 
land use category type in the Downtown Specific Plan to conditionally permit drive-through restaurants 
(as a primary use) in the Center City Urban District and Gateway Transit Districts.  Conditionally 
permitted land uses are subject to review by the City’s Zoning Administrator or Planning Commission 
through a public hearing.    
 
The CUP has been requested in order to build an establishment as a drive-through restaurant (i.e. 
Starbucks) at 350 W. Valley Parkway. The proposed drive-through restaurant consists of a 1,900 
square foot building within a 4.58-acre commercial shopping center (consisting of a cinema, retail shops 
and restaurants) on the north side of West Valley Parkway between Escondido Boulevard and Center 
City Parkway.  The proposed use is not anticipated to generate noise, traffic, or other impacts that 
would be detrimental to adjacent properties or uses.  Building mass, architectural style and plantings 
are designed to be compatible with commercial development in the surrounding area.  The completion 



Zoning Code and Downtown Specific Plan Amendments and Conditional Use Permit 
August 15, 2018 
Page 3 
 
of the project would result in a new building, one that is in scale with the site and the surrounding 
vicinity.  The proposed building meets all of the development standards for the subject zone.  The 
proposed drive-through will have ingress and egress points internal to the parking lot of the commercial 
center.  Sufficient stacking area is provided to ensure that the drive-through will function without 
impairing on-site or off-site circulation.  The landscape plan provides a variety of existing and/or 
proposed trees, shrubs and groundcovers that will enhance the commercial center and provide 
adequate screening of the parking lot area, the drive-through facilities and the new trash enclosure.  
Staff and the Planning Commission believe the proposed drive-through business is compatible with the 
surrounding industrial uses and appropriate for the site, and therefore recommend approval of the 
proposed CUP.   Conditions of approval have been proposed to ensure that the proposed use is 
compatible with existing and future commercial uses within the center. 
 
ENVIROMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
In accordance with the authority and criteria contained in the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), State Guidelines, and City Guidelines for the implementation of CEQA, the City analyzed the 
project and determined that the project will not have a significant impact on the environment.  Based 
on this finding, a Final Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) prepared in 
compliance with all requirements contained in the CEQA and Article 47 (Environmental Quality 
Regulations) of the Escondido Zoning Code.  Mitigation measures were developed to reduce potential 
impacts to tribal cultural resources.  The project applicant has agreed to implement all mitigation 
measures identified in the Final IS/MND in order to reduce all potentially significant environmental 
impacts top a less-than significant level, in accordance with the Mitigation Monitoring Reporting 
program (MMRP) prepared for the project.  A copy of the Final IS/MND can be found at the following 
link:   
 
https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/starbucks/MNDStarbucksDriveThroug
h.pdf 
 
A Notice of Availability and Intent to Adopt a IS/MND for the project was properly posted and distributed 
in accordance with CEQA on April 24, 2018. The CEQA-mandated 20-day review period concluded on 
May 14, 2018.  No public comments were received.  
 
PUBLIC INPUT: 
 
No public comments have been received and there were no public speakers at the Planning 
Commission hearing on June 26, 2018.  The Commission had further discussion with City Staff 
regarding concerns and questions with security for the shopping center and the outdoor seating area 
for Starbucks, no additional conditions were needed.       
 
  

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/starbucks/MNDStarbucksDriveThrough.pdf


Zoning Code and Downtown Specific Plan Amendments and Conditional Use Permit 
August 15, 2018 
Page 4 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development     Mike Strong, Assistant Director of Planning 

8/9/2018 9:35 a.m.          8/9/2018 9:32 a.m. 
 
ATTACHEMENTS: 
 
1. Attachment 1 - June 26, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
2. Attachment 2 - June 26, 2018 Planning Commission Staff Report  
3. Resolution No. 2018-124 
4. Resolution No. 2018-124 - Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C” 
5. Ordinance No. 2018-18 
6. Ordinance No. 2018-18 - Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C”, and “D” 



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 2

















































































 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-124 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO APPROVE A 
DRIVE-THROUGH BUSINESS AT 350 WEST 
VALLEY PARKWAY 

 
Applicant:  Eddie Goldberg 
 
Planning Case Nos. PHG17-0015 and ENV17-0003 
 

WHEREAS, the project applicant, Eddie Goldberg, representing Helf Pavilion, 

LLC, has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to construct of a 1,900-square-foot 

Starbucks coffee shop with drive-through, at 350 West Valley Parkway, Assessor’s Parcel 

Number 229-332-45, more particularly described in Exhibit “C,” attached to this 

Resolution and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth.  Said 

Conditional Use Permit application (Planning Case No. PHG17-0014) was filed in 

conjunction with a proposed Zoning Code Amendment and a proposed Downtown 

Specific Plan Amendment application; and   

WHEREAS, the application package in its entirety (Planning Case Nos. PHG17-

0014, PHG17-0015, and ENV17-0003) was submitted to, and processed by, the Planning 

Division of the Community Development Department in accordance with the rules and 

regulations of the Escondido Municipal and Zoning Codes, and the applicable procedures 

and time limits specified CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.); and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Division of the Community Development Department 

completed its review of the project and scheduled a public hearing regarding the complete 

application (consisting of Planning Case Nos. PHG17-0014, PHG17-0015, and ENV17-

0003) before the Planning Commission on June 26, 2018.  The Planning Commission 



 

 

did, on June 26, 2018, consider, and by Resolution No. 6121, recommend to the City 

Council the approval of, among other things, a Conditional Use Permit for a drive-through 

business at 350 West Valley Parkway; and 

WHEREAS, a notice was published and mailed as required by the Escondido 

Zoning Code and applicable State law, and that the City Council held a regularly 

scheduled public hearing on August 15, 2018, regarding the proposed project, and that 

all persons desiring to speak did so; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 

regulations, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (City File No. ENV17-0003) relative to the 

project in its entirety was prepared and issued to evaluate project-related impacts and 

identify mitigation measures in accordance with the CEQA and the City Council has taken 

action to adopt it, along with the associated Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program 

(MMRP) per City Council introduction of Ordinance No. 2018-18.  The record of these 

proceedings are located in the Office of the Clerk, located at the City of Escondido, 201 

North Broadway, City Hall; and 

WHEREAS, on August 15, 2018, the City Council of the City of Escondido 

introduced City Council Ordinance No. 2018-18 to change the land use allowances for 

drive-through restaraunts within the Centre City Urban and Gateway Transit Districts of 

the Downtown Specific Plan, and to enable potential adoption of the proposed drive-

through business at 350 West Valley Parkway.  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 



 

 

2. That the Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein 

by this reference as though fully set forth herein, are hereby made by this City Council, 

and represent the City Council’s careful consideration of the record. The findings of this 

City Council on Exhibit "A" shall be the final and determinative Findings of Fact on this 

matter. 

3. That upon consideration of the staff report (a copy of which is on file in the 

Office of the City Clerk), the findings and applicable law, the City Council finds that the 

project is consistent with the General Plan and adopts the Final Mitigated Negative 

Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program prepared for the Project 

4. That upon consideration of the staff report (a copy of which is on file in the 

Planning Division); the comments provided at the Planning Commission public hearing 

on June 26, 2018; public testimony presented at the City Council hearing; the findings of 

fact; and applicable law, the City Council finds that the project is consistent with the 

General Plan and hereby approves the Conditional Use Permit for the drive-through 

business, subject to the Conditions of Approval attached as Exhibit “B” to this Resolution, 

and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. 

5. That concurrently with this Resolution, the City Council is taking a number 

of actions in furtherance of the project, as generally described by the August 15, 2018, 

City Council staff report.  No single component of the series of actions made in connection 

with the project shall be effective unless and until it is approved by an Ordinance or 

Resolution and is procedurally effective within its corporate limits as a statute in the 

manner provided by state law. Therefore, this Resolution shall become effective and 

operative only if City Council Ordinance No. 2018-18 is approved; and effective and 



 

 

operative on the day immediately subsequent to the date that Ordinance No. 2018-18 

becomes effective. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, pursuant to Government Code Section 

66020(d)(1): 

1.  NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the project is subject to certain fees 

described in the City of Escondido’s Development Fee Inventory on file in both the 

Community Development Department and Public Works Department. The project is also 

subject to dedications, reservations, and exactions, as specified in the Conditions of 

Approval. 

2.  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the 90-day period during which to 

protest the imposition of any fee, dedication, reservation, or other exaction described in 

this Resolution begins on the effective date of this Resolution and any such protest must 

be in a manner that complies with Government Code Section 66020 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED/FINDINGS OF FACT 

PHG17-0015 and ENV17-0003 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
 

1. Granting the CUP for the proposed drive-through business (Starbucks) is based on 
sound principles of land use and would not create a nuisance, cause deterioration of 
bordering land uses, or create special problems for the area in which it is located 
because the use would be constructed within an existing commercial shopping center 
within the Downtown Specific Plan (Center City Urban District).  The demand for parking 
does not exceed the supply of available spaces.  Conditions of Approval would be 
applied to ensure that the drive-through business does not disrupt the current 
commercial uses and activities on site.   

 
2. The CUP would not adversely affect or be inconsistent with any community or 

neighborhood plans in effect for the site or surrounding area.  Said CUP is being 
processed in conjunction with a Specific Plan Amendment, which enables the approval 
of the CUP.  

 
3. The CUP would assist in achieving the goals and polices in the General Plan. 

 
4. The public health, safety and welfare would not be adversely affected by the proposed 

CUP because the drive-through business would be regulated by the conditions of 
approval and certain design standards and other permit related criteria, which 
encompasses new specific conditions or standards, as amended through this proposed 
amendment. 
 

5. The proposed CUP would provide a necessary and desirable service to the downtown 
community without adversely affecting the surrounding area or the city as a whole.  
 

6. The CUP would become effective on the effective date of the proposed Zoning Code 
and Specific Plan Amendment. 

 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

PHG 17-0015 
 

Mitigation Measures: 

 

1. The approval of the Conditional Use Permit, Planning Code No. PHG17-0015 and ENV 

17-0003 is granted subject to the approval of the Final IS/MND and is subject to all Project 

features and mitigation measures contained therein. Applicant shall implement, or cause 

the implementation of the Final IS/MND Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, 

provided as Exhibit “D" to Ordinance No. 2018-18, which is incorporated herein by 

reference as though fully set forth herein.  

 

General: 

 

1. All uses, hours of operation, and activities shall be substantially consistent with the Details 

of Request on-file with the Planning Division, and as described within this report.  Any 

substantial changes to the hours of operation shall subject to review and written approval 

by the Director of Community Development or his/her designee.   

 

2. All uses shall be conducted entirely within the existing building. 

 

3. Appropriate fire access and ADA compliant paths of travel shall be maintained, as may be 

required by the Fire Department and Building Division.  

 

4. The developer shall be required to pay all development fees of the City then in effect at 

the time and in such amounts as may prevail when building permits are issued, including 

any applicable City-Wide Facilities fees. 

 

5. The legal description attached to the application has been provided by the applicant and 

neither the City of Escondido nor any of its employees assume responsibility for the 

accuracy of said legal description. 

 

6. The City of Escondido hereby notifies the applicant that the County Clerk’s office requires 

a documentary handling fee of $50.00 in order to file a Notice of Determination for the 

project (environmental determination for the project).  In order to file the Notice of 

Exemption with the County Clerk, in conformance with the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15062, the applicant shall remit to the City of Escondido 

Planning Division, within two working days of the final approval of the project (the final 

approval being the hearing date of the Planning Commission or City Council, if applicable), 

a certified check payable to the “San Diego County Clerk” in the amount of $2,330.75.  

The filing of a Notice of Determination and the posting with the County Clerk starts a 35-

day statute of limitations period on legal challenges to the agency’s decision that the 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 2 of 8 

 

project is exempt from CEQA.  Failure to submit the required fee within the specific time 

noted above will result in the Notice of Exemption not being filed with the County Clerk, 

and a 180-day statute of limitations will apply. 

 

7. This Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void unless utilized within 12 months 

of the effective date of approval.   

 

8. One trash enclosure and enclosed area dedicated for recyclable materials shall be 

provided, and shall be screened from public view.  The design, size, location, appropriate 

access and method of roofing of the enclosure shall be detailed on the building plans and 

approved by the Planning and Engineering Divisions.  

 

9. As approved by the City Staff Design Review on April 19, 2018, 2016 and revised May 24, 

2018 the elevations, design, colors, landscaping and materials for the project shall be as 

shown on the color elevations and as modified by these conditions.    

 

10. All new ground level, wall-mounted, and/or roof mounted equipment (including air 

conditioning units) and appurtenances shall be screened from public view to the 

satisfaction of the Planning Division.  The preferred method of screening is by wall, 

landscape, or parapet wall or other architectural feature, which shall be clearly 

demonstrated on the building plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

 

11. All new and existing perimeter fencing/walls shall be shown on the revised plans and 

landscape plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.   

 

12. The hardscape area shown on the plans dated May 24, 2018 should be of decorative 

paving and shown on the revised plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

 

13. All new exterior lighting shall be arranged so as not to reflect upon adjoining property or 

streets.  Exterior lighting shall conform to Article 35 of the Zoning Code.  Outdoor lighting 

plans and lamp information shall be included in the building plans.  

 

14. All new utility service shall be underground. 

 

15. This project shall conform to the Public Art Partnership Program, Article 37 of the 

Escondido Zoning Code.   

 

16. No outside storage is approved for this site.  

 

17. No expansion of the drive-through business would be allowed without a conditional use 

permit modification.    

 

18. Approval of this conditional use permit in no way implies approval of any sign or sign 

location.  A separate permit is required.   

 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 3 of 8 

 

19. Outdoor dining area for the overall pad area shall be limited to 300 SF.  After the first 300 

SF, parking shall be provided in accordance with Article 39, “Off Street Parking Ordinance” 

for the additional outdoor dining area. 

 

20. Drive-through aisles shall have a minimum twelve (12) foot width on curves and a 

minimum eleven (11) foot width on straight sections and shall be shown on the revised 

site plan to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.   

 

21. No utilities shall be released for any purpose or Certificate of Occupancy issued until all 

requirements of the Planning, Engineering, and Building Divisions have been completed. 

 

22. The plans submitted for building permit shall include notes or details containing the 

necessary work involved in complying with these project conditions 

 

Landscaping: 

 

1. If the proposed rehabilitated landscaping totals 2,500 SF or more, or new landscaped 

areas total 500 SF or more, a Landscape Documentation Package shall be prepared by, 

or under the supervision of, a licensed design professional and shall conform to the 

Escondido Zoning Code, Article 62 and the California Department of Water Resources 

Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO).  The plans shall indicate any 

existing trees or landscaping that is to remain as well as new landscape areas.  

 

2. All existing and proposed landscaping shall be permanently maintained in a flourishing 

manner.  Any landscaping that is removed shall be replaced and noted on the site plan to 

the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

 

3. All areas in this proposed development, which are not used for structures, parking, 

driveways, approved storage, or walkways, shall be landscaped. 

 

4. The landscape plan shall be revised to reflect the current site plan and to show all locations 

of fire hydrants, transformers, utility boxes, driveways, utility easements and other 

easements of record. 

 

5. Appropriate screening landscaping shall be required around any transformers and shall 

be shown on the landscape plan to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.  

 

6. The outdoor seating area shall incorporate landscaping and shown on the final landscape 

plans to the satisfaction of the Planning division.    

 

7. Trees located within six-feet of pavement shall be provided with root barriers. 

 

8. Tree wells, shall have a minimum dimension of four (4) by four (4) feet square and shall 

contain one tree, fifteen (15) gallon in size and six (6) feet in height. 

 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 4 of 8 

 

9. Terminal islands shall be a minimum of five (5) feet wide and shall contain at least one (1) 

tree for each row of parking spaces for which the island terminal is serving. 

 

10. Finger islands shall be a minimum of five (5) feet wide and shall contain at a minimum of 

one (1) tree, fifteen (15) gallon in size and six (6) in height. 

 

11. Existing tree wells within the center shall contain one tree, fifteen (15) gallon in size and 

six (6) feet in height.  Several trees have been removed and shall be replaced and noted 

on the landscape plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.   

 

12. Additional landscaping and vines shall be grown onto walls and fences to soften their 

appearance, particularly the trash enclosure in the southeast corner of the site to the 

satisfaction of the Planning Division.  

 

13. Additional landscaping consisting of trees and shrubs along W. Valley Parkway shall be 

provided to help screen the drive-through.  Plant material shall be identified on the final 

landscape plan(s) to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.    

 

14. Details of the green garden wall to help screen the drive-through shall be shown on the 

revised landscape plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.   

 

15. All new and existing perimeter fencing/walls shall be shown on the final landscape plans.  

   

16. The revised site plan and/or landscape plan shall incorporate measures to the satisfaction 

of the Planning Division, which screen peripheral views of parking areas particularly from 

the streets.  Possible screening measures may include a combination of screen walls, 

fencing, or landscaping in connection with berming. 

 

17. All required landscape improvements shall be installed and all vegetation growing in an 

established, flourishing manner prior to occupancy.  The required landscape areas shall 

be free of all foreign matter, weeds and plant materials not approved as part of the 

landscape plan. 

 

18. The installation of the landscaping and irrigation shall be inspected by project design 

professional upon completion.  He/she shall complete a Certificate of Landscape 

Compliance certifying that the installation is in substantial compliance with the approved 

landscape and irrigation plans and City standards.  The applicant shall submit the 

Certificate of Compliance to the Planning Division and request a final inspection. 

 

19. All landscaping shall be permanently maintained in a flourishing manner.  All permanent 

irrigation shall be maintained in fully operational condition.   

 

  



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 5 of 8 

 

Building: 

 

1. Approval and subsequent development is subject to all conditions and requirements of the 

California Building Code and Building Division.  

 

2. The project shall comply with the 2016 California Building Code  

 

3. Check clearances in restrooms per Title 24 accessibility requirements. 

 

4. When the occupant load exceeds 49, 2 exits are required, separated by at least ½ the 

diagonal dimensions of the space.  The required exits may not exit thru the kitchen.  Note: 

occupancy noted as A2 on sheet A1.0, no occupant load shown. 

 

5. Path of travel from the public way shown thru the vehicle drive aisle for the restaurant.  

Please consider an alternate path.  

 

Fire:  No Comments 

ENGINEERING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

IMPROVEMENTS 

 

1. All onsite and offsite improvements shall be constructed in a manner that does not damage 

existing public improvements.  Any damage shall be determined by and corrected to the 

satisfaction of the Director of Engineering Services. 

 

2. Pedestrian access routes shall be provided into the project to the satisfaction of the Building 

Official and the Director of Engineering Services. 

 

SITE DRAINAGE  

 

1. A grading plan together with erosion control details prepared by a Registered Civil Engineer 

is required for all onsite improvements and shall be submitted separately to the Engineering 

Department. Grading plans are subject to approval by the Planning, Fire and Engineering 

Departments. 

 

2. All private driveways and parking areas shall be paved with a minimum of 3” AC over 6” of 

AB or 7” PCC over 6” AB.  All paved areas exceeding 15% slope or less than 1.0% shall be 

paved with PCC. 

 

3. Erosion control, including riprap, interim sloping planting, gravel bags, or other erosion 

control measures shall be provided to control sediment and silt from the project.  The 

developer shall be responsible for maintaining all erosion control facilities throughout the 

development of the project. 

 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 6 of 8 

 

4. A Final Storm Water Quality Management Plan (SWQMP) in compliance with the City’s 

latest adopted Storm Water Standards (BMP Manual) shall be prepared for all onsite, newly 

created impervious frontage, and required offsite improvements and submitted for approval 

together with the final improvement and grading plans.  The Storm Water Quality 

Management Plan shall include hydro-modification calculations, treatment calculations, post 

construction storm water treatment measures and maintenance requirements. 

 

5. All proposed retaining walls shall be shown on and permitted as part of the site grading plan.   

Profiles and structural details shall be shown on the site grading plan and the Soils Engineer 

shall state on the plans that the proposed retaining wall design is in conformance with the 

recommendations and specifications as outlined in the report.    Structural calculations shall 

be submitted for review by a Consulting Engineer for all walls not covered by Regional or 

City Standard Drawings.     Retaining walls or deepened footings that are to be constructed 

as part of building structure will be permitted as part of the Building Dept. plan review and 

permit process. 

 

6. The on-site trash enclosure areas shall drain toward a landscaped area and include a roof 

over the enclosure in accordance with the City’s Storm Water Management requirements 

and to the satisfaction of the Director of Engineering Services. 

 

7. A Storm Water Control Facility Maintenance Agreement (SWCFMA) shall be executed by 

the property owner(s) and filed with the County Recorder’s Office.  All storm drains 

constructed with this project shall be considered private.  The responsibility for maintenance 

of these storm drains and all post construction storm water treatment facilities shall be that 

of the property owner. 

 

8. The developer shall be responsible for the recycling of all excavated materials designated 

as Industrial Recyclables (soil, asphalt, sand, concrete, land clearing brush and rock) at a 

recycling center or other location(s) approved by the Director of Engineering Services. 

 

9. The Developer shall be responsible to repair or replace any driveway approach, curb and 

gutter, sidewalk, or other damages as a result of construction activities associated with this 

project. 

 

10. After the approval of the site grading and erosion control plan, and prior to the start of 

construction of the grading improvements, the developer will be required to obtain a Grading 

Permit and Encroachment Permit from the Engineering Field Office. 

 

11. A current preliminary title report shall be submitted with the grading plans. 

 

All site grading and erosion control plans shall be prepared by a Registered Civil Engineer.  

A separate submittal to the Engineering Department is required for the site grading and 

erosion control plans.  Plans will not be forwarded from the Building Department.   

  



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 7 of 8 

 

UTILITIES  

 

1. Separate sewer laterals shall be installed from the public main to each building and shall be 

6” PVC minimum with a standard clean-out at the property line or easement line.  All sewer 

laterals shall be installed at right angle to the main in conformance with the City’s Design 

Standards. 

 

2. No trees or deep rooted plants shall be planted within 10’ of sewer mains, sewer laterals, 

water mains, and water services. 

 

3. Any new development whose wastewater discharge may contain pollutants not normally 

found or in concentrations in excess of those normally found in domestic wastewater shall 

require a wastewater discharge permit according to the Escondido Municipal Code, Chapter 

22, Article 8.  New users shall apply at least ninety (90) days prior to connecting to or 

contributing to the City's wastewater system and a permit must be obtained prior to 

commencement of any discharge to the system. 

 

WATER SUPPLY 

 

1. Fire hydrants and fire service lines shall be installed at locations approved by the Fire 

Marshal and adequate public water mains and/or service laterals shall be installed per 

improvement plans submitted to and approved by the Director of Engineering Services and 

Director of Utilities. 

 

2. An engineered improvement plan prepared by a Registered Civil Engineer is required for all 

public water improvements. The developer shall post security and fees for these 

improvements and an improvement plan shall be approved by the City of Escondido prior to 

issuance of any building permits.  All required fire service and /or fire hydrant improvements 

shall be constructed prior to issuance of final occupancy by the City. 

 

3. No trees or deep rooted plants shall be planted within 10’ of water mains and water service. 

 

EASEMENTS 

 

1. All existing and proposed easements, both private and public, affecting subject property 

shall be shown and labeled on the grading plans and improvement plans if required.  All 

structures shall be constructed or located outside all public and private easements. 

 

CASH SECURITY AND FEES 

 

1. A cash security shall be posted to pay any costs incurred by the City to clean-up eroded 

soils and debris, repair damage to public or private property and improvements, install new 

landscaping and BMPs, and stabilize and/or close-up a non-responsive or abandoned 

project.  Any moneys used by the City for cleanup or damage will be drawn from this 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 8 of 8 

 

security, and the grading permit will be revoked by written notice to the proper owner until 

the cash securities are replaced. The cleanup security shall be released upon final 

acceptance of the grading and improvements for this project. The amount of the cash 

security shall be 10% of the total estimated cost of the grading, drainage, landscaping, and 

best management practices items of work with a minimum of $5,000 up to a maximum of 

$50,000, unless a higher amount is deemed necessary by the Director of Engineering 

Services. 

 

2. The developer will be required to pay all development fees of the City then in effect at the 

time, and in such amounts as may prevail when building permits are issued. 

 

UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING 

 

1. The developer shall sign a written agreement stating that he has made all such 

arrangements as may be necessary to coordinate and provide utility construction, relocation 

and undergrounding.  All new utilities shall be constructed underground.  

 

 



Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “C” 

Page 1 of 3



82°35'07" E, A DISTANCE OF 138.10'; THENCE N 07°24'53" E, A DISTANCE OF 135.09'; THENCE N 63°09'03" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 353.03'; THENCE S 30°19'19" E, A DISTANCE OF 184.51';THENCE S 89°56'42" W, A DISTANCE OF 
23.30'; THENCE S 00°03'18" E, A DISTANCE OF 12.52'; THENCE S 89°56'42" W, A DISTANCE 83.41'; THENCE N 
00°00'48" W, A DISTANCE OF 38.54'; TO THE BEGINNING OF A REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 5.00', A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 56°24'07" AND A LENGTH OF 4.92'; TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF A TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.22', A CENTRAL 
ANGLE OF 52°43'44" AND A LENGTH OF 14.01'; THENCE S 03°28'41" W, A DISTANCE OF 3.85'; THENCE N 
86°31'19" W, A DISTANCE OF 26.00';THENCE S 03°28'41" W, A DISTANCE OF 2.00'; THENCE N 86°31'07" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 109.73'; THENCE S 00°02'14" E, A DISTANCE OF 34.95'; THENCE S 44°57'46" W, A DISTANCE OF 
2.83'; THENCE S 00°02'40" E, A DISTANCE OF 49.04'; THENCE S 89°58'34" W, A DISTANCE OF 30.39'; THENCE S 
03°28'41" W, A DISTANCE OF 30.07'; THENCE S 89°57'46" W, 576.33' TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

EXCEPTING THEREOF: 

PARCEL2: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PARCEL 4 OF PARCEL MA.P NO. 19842, IN' THE CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO MAP THEREOF FILED IN 
THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY SEPTEMBER 19,2005 AS FILE NO. 2005-
0806806, OFFICIAL RECORDS THENCE N 89°57'46" E, A DISTANCE OF 118.59'; THENCE N 00°02'14" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 45.17' TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINN1NG, THENCE N 00°02'14" W, A DISTANCE OF 80.67'; 

, THENCE N 89°57'46" E, A DISTANCE OF 134.36' TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE 
SOUTHEASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 253.00', A CENTRAL ANGEL OF 15°24'33", A RADIAL BEARIN'G OF N 
62°26'57" W; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE A LENGTH OF 68.04'; THENCE S 00°02114" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 16.85'; THENCE S 89°57'46" W, A DISTANCE OF 111.34' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

*ABOVE METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES AND NOT 
INTENDED TO REPLACE DEEDED LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF RECORD. 

PARCELB: 

EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS OF WAY GRANTED BY THE FOLLOWIN'G INSTRUMENTS IN AND TO THE 
PREMISES, AREAS AND FACILITIES THEREIN RESPECTIVELY DESCRIBED, IN'CLUDIN'G WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS TO USE ALL C011MON AREAS AND FACILITIES SPECIFIED IN 
SAID INSTRUMENTS; AND EASEMENTS AND UTILITIES, ENCROACHMENTS, PARTY WALLS AND OTHER 
PURPOSES ALL AS THEREIN MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED: 

CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT, BETWEEN STANDARD CABINET 
WORKS INC., ET ALAND MONTGOMERY WARD REALTY CORPORATION, A CORPORATION, DATED APRIL 
6, 1966 AND RECORDED JULY 19, 1966, RECORDER'S FILE NO. 116725, AS MODIFIED BY FIRST AMENDlv.IENT 
DATED DECEMBER 21, 1966 AND RECORDED MARCH 22, 1967, RECORDER'S FILE NO. 39274 ANDRE
RECORDED JULY 12, 1967, RECORDER'S FILE NO. 1017?7, AS MODIFIED BY SECOND AMENDlv.IENT 
RECORDED FEBRUARY 10, 1970, RECORDER'S FILE NO. 24887. ALL OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAN DIEGO 
COUNTY. A THIRD REA AMENDMENT WAS RECORDED JUNE 3, 1991 AS FILE NO. 1991-0260733, OFFICIAL 
RECORDS. A FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND RECIPROCAL EASElv.IENT 
AGREEMENT WAS RECORDED JANUARY 6, 1992 AS FILE NO. 1992-0006132, OFFICIAL RECORDS. 

PARCELC: 

NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS FOR PEDESTRIAN INGRESS, EGRESS AND ACCESS OVER, UPON, AND 
ACROSS SUCH "OWNER'S EXTERIOR OWNED AREA" AND THE RIGHT OF ACCESS NECESSARY TO ALLOW 
THE "MANAGER" TO CARRY OUT ITS DUTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ITS MAINTENANCE 
DUTIES, UPON THE "COMMON AREA" AND THE "EXTERIOR OWNED AREAS", PURSUANT AND SUBJECT TO 

Page 2 of 3 

Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “C” 

Page 2 of 3



THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THE "COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS AND RECIPROCAL 
EASEMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEtv1ENT" RECORDED AUGUST 2, 2006, AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2006-
0548493 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS. 

APN: 229-332-43, 229-332-44, 229-332-45 

Page 3 of 3 

Resolution No. 2018-124 
Exhibit “C” 

Page 3 of 3



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING ARTICLES 1 OF THE ESCONDIDO 
ZONING CODE AND THE DOWNTOWN 
SPECIFIC PLAN CODE PERTAINING TO 
DRIVE-THROUGH BUSINESSES AND THE 
ADOPTION OF A FINAL INITIAL STUDY AND 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
(IS/MND) AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND 
REPORTING PROGRAM (MNRP) 
 
Planning Case No. PHG17-0014 and ENV17-
0003 
 
 

 The City Council of the City of Escondido, California, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN as 
follows:  
 
 SECTION 1. The project applicant, Eddie Goldberg, representing Helf Pavilion, 

has applied for amendments to the Zoning Code and Downtown Specific Plan to change 

the land use allowances for drive-through restaraunts within the Centre City Urban and 

Gateway Transit Districts of the Downtown Specific Plan.   

 SECTION 2. The Planning Division of the Community Development Department 

completed its review of the project and scheduled a public hearing regarding the 

application before the Planning Commission on June 26, 2018.  Following the public 

hearing on June 26, 2018, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 6121, which 

recommended that the City Council, among other things, approve the project's proposed 

Zoning Code and Specific Plan amendments. 

 SECTION 3. That proper notices of a public hearing have been given and public 

hearings have been held before the Planning Commission and City Council on this issue. 



 

 

 SECTION 4. The City Council has duly reviewed and considered all evidence 

submitted at said hearings, including, without limitation: 

a. Written information; 

b. Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public; 

c. The staff report, dated August 15, 2018, which along with its attachments is 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein, including 

the Planning Commission recommendation on the request, and 

d. Additional information submitted during the Public Hearing.  

 SECTION 5. That the City Council has independently reviewed and considered 

the Final Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (“IS/MND”) prepared for this 

project, in conformance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and 

Article 47 of the Escondido Zoning Code, and has considered the information contained 

therein, prior to acting upon or approving the project.  The City Council finds that the 

IS/MND, attached hereto as Exhibit “C,” has been completed in compliance with CEQA, 

consistent with state and local guidelines implementing CEQA.  The City Council further 

finds that the IS/MND represents the independent judgement and analysis of the City as 

lead agency for the project and, based on the whole record before it (including the Initial 

Study and any comments received), and that there is no substantial evidence that the 

project will have a significant effect on the environment.  All environmental issues have 

been addressed and mitigation measures have been identified that would reduce all 

potential impacts to a less-than-significant level.    

 SECTION 6. Concurrently with this Ordinance, the City Council is taking a 

number of actions in furtherance of the project, as generally described by the August 15, 



 

 

2018, City Council staff report.  No single component of the series of actions made in 

connection with the Project shall be effective unless and until it is approved by an 

Ordinance or Resolution and is procedurally effective within its corporate limits as a 

statute in the manner provided by state law.  Therefore, this Ordinance shall become 

effective after final passage and publication as required by law, and operative only if City 

Council Resolution No. 2018-124 is approved. 

 SECTION 7. That upon consideration of the staff report; Planning Commission 

recommendation; Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “A” to this Ordinance and 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein; and all public 

testimony presented at the hearing held on this project, the City Council does hereby 

adopt the IS/MND and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and the Zoning 

Code and Downtown Specific Plan amendments for the project.  Article 1 of the Escondido 

Zoning Code and Permitted and Conditional Use Table (Figure 2) of the Downtown 

Specific Plan are amended as set forth in Exhibit “B” to this Ordinance and incorporated 

by reference as though fully set forth herein.  The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 

Program, which is appended hereto as Exhibit “D,” is made a part hereof by this reference, 

with respect to the significant environmental effects identified in the IS/MND, and the City 

Council hereby makes the provisions of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

as conditions of approval for the project, as incorporated therein Resolution No. 2018-

124.   

 SECTION 8. SEPARABILITY.  If any section, subsection sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 



 

 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions.   

 SECTION 9. That pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081.6(a)(2) 

and CEQA Guidelines Section 15074(c), all documents and other materials which 

constitute the record of proceedings are located at the City of Escondido, City Hall. The 

City Clerk, whose office is located at 201 North Broadway, Escondido CA 92025, is 

hereby designated as the custodian of the documents and other materials which 

constitute the record of proceedings upon which the City Council' s decision is based, and 

which documents and materials shall be available for public inspection and copying in 

accordance with the provisions of the California Public Records Act. 

 SECTION 10. That as of the effective date of this ordinance, all ordinances or 

parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 11. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of 

this Ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be prepared in accordance with 

Government Code Section 36933, to be published one time within 15 days of its passage 

in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the County and circulated 

in the City of Escondido.  



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 3 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED/FINDINGS OF FACT 

PHG17-00014 and ENV17-0003 
 

Zoning Code and Specific Plan amendments 

 

1. The public health, safety and welfare would not be adversely affected by the 

proposed Zoning Code and Specific Plan amendments.  The proposed Zoning 

Code Amendment provides for a new definition in the Zoning Code.  The proposed 

Specific Plan Amendment revises the permitting authority for drive-through 

restaurants.  The proposed Specific Plan Amendment, establishing special use 

regulations, through the application of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) would not 

be detrimental to surrounding properties because the proposed changes are to 

accommodate needed land use activities, while controlling their prospective use to 

ensure neighborhood capability and land-use related buffering.  Proposed and 

future projects must comply with any applicable laws and standards.  This includes 

the Building Code, the Fire Code, and any property standards bylaws.  

 

2. The proposed Zoning Code and Specific Plan amendments would not be 

detrimental to surrounding properties because conditions of approval would be 

applied through the future review and consideration of CUPs for this particular use 

type that would help control for negligible impacts on surrounding properties.  Any 

compatibility issues would be analyzed and addressed as part of the CUP process 

on a case-by-case basis. 

 

3. The proposed Zoning Code and Specific Plan amendments would be consistent 

with the goals and polices of the General Plan because the amendment would not, 

in and of itself, result in the development or any other material change to the 

environment.  The proposed Specific Plan Amendment would not diminish the 

Quality of Life Standards of the General Plan, nor adversely impact community 

health or natural resources.       

 

4. The proposed Zoning Code Amendment would not affect nor conflict with any 

adopted specific plans. 

 

Environmental Review: 

  

1. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, (CEQA, Public Resources 

Code Section 21000 et. seq.), and its implementing regulations (the State CEQA 

Guidelines), 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et. seq., the City of 

Escondido is the lead agency for the project (“Project”), as the public agency with 

the principal responsibility for approving the proposed grading permit to facilitate 

the construction of drive-through establishment and parking, located at 350 W. 

Valley Parkway.  



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

2. An Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Project was 

prepared, published, circulated and reviewed in accordance with the requirements 

of CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and the local environmental procedures.  A 

Notice of Availability and Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 

project was properly posted and distributed in accordance with CEQA Guidelines 

Section 15072 and 15073. 

 

3. The findings of this review are that the Initial Study identified effects related to tribal 

cultural resources that might be potentially significant, but revisions in the project 

plans and/or mitigation and avoidance/minimization measures agreed to by the 

project applicant would provide mitigation to a point where potential impacts are 

reduced to less than a significant level.  The project would not degrade the quality 

of the environment; substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, or 

cause the fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels.  The 

project would not threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community or substantially 

reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal.  

The project would not eliminate important examples of the major periods of 

California history or prehistory.  The project would not materially degrade levels of 

service of the adjacent streets, intersections, or utilities.  The project would not 

have impacts that are cumulatively considerable, and would not have effects that 

would cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or 

indirectly.  Therefore, the proposed project would not have a significant individual 

or cumulative impact on the environment.  

 

4. That the bulk, scale, density and overall character of the proposed development is 

compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and with the natural, cultural, scenic 

and open space resources of the area.  The proposed development respects and 

preserves the natural landform, vegetation, and wildlife of the project site, and any 

potential impacts to sensitive/protected vegetation communities and wildlife are 

properly mitigated. The development does not substantially alter the natural 

appearance and landform of the hillside and ridges, and the location and design of 

the proposed development will protect the safety of current and future residents, 

and will not create a significant threat to life and property due to slope instability, 

fire, flood, mudflow, erosion or other hazards.  All grading associated with the 

project has been minimized to the extent possible, preserving the character of the 

property while utilizing appropriate erosion control practices. 

 

  



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
5. CEQA requires that a Final IS/MND be prepared and considered by the public 

decision makers prior to taking action on a project. The Final IS/MND provides the 

lead agency (City) with an opportunity to respond to comments received on the 

Draft IS/MND during the public review period and to incorporate any additions or 

revisions to the draft document that are needed to clarify or supplement information 

contained in the draft IS/MND.  The Final IS/MND document includes the 

responses to comments received during the public review period. 

 

6. The decision-making body of the Lead Agency shall adopt the proposed IS/MND 

only if:  

 

-  It finds on the basis of the whole record before it that there is no substantial 

evidence the project will have a significant effect on the environment, and  

 

-  The IS/MND reflects the Lead Agency's independent judgment and analysis.  

 

7. In connection of the approval of a project involving the preparation of an IS/MND 

that identifies one or more significant environmental effects, CEQA requires the 

decision-making body to incorporate feasible mitigation measures.  That would 

reduce those significant environmental effects to a less-than-significant level.  

Whenever a lead agency approves a project requiring the implementation of 

measures to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment, CEQA also 

requires a lead agency to adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program to 

ensure compliance with the mitigation measures during project implementation.  

The IS/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP), collectively 

constitute the environmental documentation under and pursuant to CEQA, the 

CEQA Guidelines, and local environmental procedures relating to the project, and 

shall be referred to herein collectively as the "CEQA Documents." 

 

8. The City Council has received the material record supporting all of the CEQA 

Documents for the project.  The City Council has independently reviewed and 

considered the IS/MND and related MMRP for the project and intends to take 

actions on the project in compliance with CEQA and state and local guidelines 

implementing CEQA. 

 

9. The City Council, finds that there is no substantial evidence that the project or any 

of its aspects could result in significant adverse impacts related to the CEQA 

Documents.  All previously identified impacts have been mitigated to less than a 

significant level.  The mitigation measures set forth are fully enforceable and will 

be implemented using the MMRP.  The City Council also finds that the mitigation 

measures listed in the MMRP will not cause any potentially significant effects of 

their own. 

 



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 1 of 3 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

PROPOSED ZONING CODE AND SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT LANGUAGE 

PHG 17-0014 and ENV 17-0003 

 

SECTION I. 

 

Amend the various Zoning Code sections to read as specified below (The changes are listed in order by section number, with strikeout 

typeface illustrating deletions and underline typefaces illustrating new text.  

 

Article 1, Section 33-8, Definitions.  This section shall be amended to incorporate the following definition: 

 

Drive-through business- is defined as any building, establishment, or facility that provides a specified “drive-through” lane or driveway 

where customers receive a service or purchase goods while remaining in a motor vehicle in designated stacking aisles.  Products or 

services are typically provided or dispensed through an attendant at a service window, order kiosk, and/or an automated machine.    

Drive-through businesses may operate as the primary use, such as in restaurants, eating establishments and coffee shops or accessory 

use of a business in combination with other uses, such as pharmacies, financial institutions, personal service shops, and other retail 

or customer-based service uses.  A drive-through business does not include an automated car-wash service or gas pump island; 

however, they may be regulated similarly. 

 

SECTION II. 

 

Amend the various Downtown Specific Plan sections to read as specified below (The changes are listed in order by section number, 

with strikeout typeface illustrating deletions and underline typefaces illustrating new text.  

 

  



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 2 of 3 

 

Downtown Specific Plan, Figure II-2, Permitted and Conditional Uses.  The table and footnote shall be amended to read as 

follows: 
 
 

 

FIGURE II-2 

PERMITTED AND CONDITIONAL USES 
 

LAND USE HD* PV CCU GT M SG* CN 

GENERAL RETAIL (continued) 

Carpet and floor covering and installations P6   P  P3 P6 

Large appliance sales P7 P P P P1 P3 P6 

Home Furnishings with retail display (not including "mattress only", carpet, and 
discount furniture stores) 

P P P P P1 P3 P6 

Hardware, paint, glass, tools, home improvement P P P P P1 P1, P3 P6 

Medical equipment sales/rentals and supplies P7  P P P1 P3 P6 

Outdoor vending machines  P      

EATING AND DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS 

All types of eating establishments providing meal service from an on-site operating 
commercial-grade kitchen, and / or dessert service from an on-site operating commercial-
grade freezer / refrigerator facility with, or without, incidental sale of alcohol (including 
micro-breweries and outdoor dining, but with no drive-through), with no live amplified 
entertainment or dancing 

P P P P P P3, 
P11 

  

Drive-through Business   

  C12** C12**    

Eating establishments (as defined above) with indoor amplified entertainment and/or 
dancing 

P P P P P C3  

Wine- and beer-tasting establishments (only with retail sales involving related merchandise 
that includes a significant portion of the sales area)  

P P P P P P3  

Drinking establishments, bars and nightclubs serving alcohol with or without live 
entertainment and / or dance 

C C C C C C3  



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “B” 

Page 3 of 3 

 

NOTES: 

P = Permitted   C = Conditional Use Permit required    

1 Under 3,000 square feet. 
2 Within Grand Avenue’s “retail-core area” use is not permitted on ground floor facing Grand Avenue unless 

located behind a solid wall, and such wall shall be located at least 25% of the building depth back from the 
front, with a minimum of 25 feet of front retail depth, whichever is more. Primary entrance to this use must be 
from the alley.  No signage facing Grand Avenue is permitted. 

3 Only permitted on Escondido Boulevard. 
4 Only permitted within a multi-tenant building, and shall not occupy more than 30% of the gross floor area. 
5 Only in conjunction with an approved residential project. 
6 Only permitted on Pennsylvania Avenue and the north side of Valley Parkway between Kalmia and Ivy 

Streets. 
7 Not allowed along Grand Avenue on ground floor within the “retail core area.” 
8 Residential and mixed-use projects are permitted in specified areas, subject to a Planned Development 

approval in Article 19 of the Zoning Code. 
9 No residential uses permitted between Woodward Avenue, Washington Avenue, Escondido Boulevard and 

Broadway. 
10 Not allowed along Grand Avenue on ground floor between Grand and adjacent alleys. 
11 Permitted on Local Historic Register properties. 
* Existing automobile dealerships are a non-conforming use. Conversion of these sites to a new and 

substantially different use shall require plot plan review or a Conditional Use Permit subject to the provisions in 
the Permitted Use Matrix. 

12   Drive-through establishments shall be permitted with a Conditional Use Permit, subject to the provisions in 
Article 16, Section 33-341. 

 **   The use which contains a drive-through facility as a primary use shall be located on a site having minimum 
frontage of one-hundred feet on a Circulation Element Street as indicated in the City’s General Plan, and must 
have a minimum separation of 500 feet from any other business that operates a drive-through as a primary 
use.       

DOWNTOWN DISTRICTS: 

HD Historic Downtown 
PV Park View 
CCU Centre City Urban 
GT Gateway Transit 
M Mercado 
SG Southern Gateway 
CN Creekside Neighborhood 
 
 

NOTE:   Should a conflict arise between this 
matrix and the land-use district text, 
the land use district text discussion 
shall take precedence in determining 
the appropriateness of the land use. 

 



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “C” 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

IS/MND 

ENV17-0003 
 

Due to the number of pages of Exhibit C, a link has been provided to review the document 

electronically. 

  

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/starbucks/MNDStarbucksDriveTh

rough.pdf 

 

A hardcopy of Exhibit C is available for review in the Office of the City Clerk during normal 

business hours. To obtain a copy, please the City Clerk at (760) 839-4617.  
 

 

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/PDFs/Planning/starbucks/MNDStarbucksDriveThrough.pdf


Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 1 of 6 

 

ATTACHMENT “D” 

MITIGATION MONITORING REPORT 

CASE NO: ENV17-0003 
 
PROJECT NAME:  Mitigated Negative Declaration 
      
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project includes three components. The first component modifies Article 1 (Definitions) of the 
Escondido Zoning Code to define drive-through establishments. The second component is an Amendment to the Downtown Specific 
Plan to allow drive-through restaurants within the Center City Urban (CCU) and Gateway Transit (GT) Districts, which currently 
prohibits this type of use.  The third component of the project is a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow the construction of a 1,900-
square-foot Starbucks coffee shop with drive-through, at 350 West Valley Parkway. The proposed Specific Plan Amendment enables 
the review and consideration of the site development plan application and would authorize future development of drive-through 
establishments within the Centre City Urban and Gateway Transit Districts of the Downtown Specific Plan area with issuance of a 
CUP.  Upon issuance of a CUP and completion of the project, the existing Starbucks franchise operating at 320 West Valley Parkway 
would relocate to the new facility.  The vacated building would remain vacant or be leased to another permitted business or land 
use activity.  The proposal also includes the adoption of a Final Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and 
reporting program for a drive-through establishment. 
 
APPROVAL BODY/DATE: 
PROJECT LOCATION:   350 W. Valley Parkway (APN 229-332-45)   
PROJECT MANAGER:  Darren Parker, Associate Planner (760)-839-4553 
CONTACT PERSON:   Eddie Goldberg 
PHONE NUMBER:       
 
Mitigation Measures to be implemented 
 

NATURE OF IMPACT MITIGATION MEASURE IDENTIFICATION.  NO. 

LOCATION IN DOC. 

RESPONSIBILITY 

FOR IMPLEMENT. 
CERTIFIED 

INITIAL 

DATE 

COMMENTS 

 

CUL 1 The City of Escondido Planning Division (“City”) 

recommends the applicant enter into a Tribal Cultural 

Resource Treatment and Monitoring Agreement (also 

known as a pre-excavation agreement) with a tribe that is 

traditionally and culturally affiliated with the Project 

Location (“TCA Tribe”) prior to issuance of a grading 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6). Mitigation Measure #1  

Applicant   



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 2 of 6 
 

permit. The purposes of the agreement are (1) to provide the 

applicant with clear expectations regarding tribal cultural 

resources, and (2) to formalize protocols and procedures 

between them.  Applicant/Owner and the TCA Tribe for the 

protection and treatment of, including but not limited to, 

Native American human remains, funerary objects, cultural 

and religious landscapes, ceremonial items, traditional 

gathering areas and cultural items, located and/or 

discovered through a monitoring program in conjunction 

with the construction of the proposed project, including 

additional archaeological surveys and/or studies, 

excavations, geotechnical investigations, grading, and all 

other ground disturbing activities. 

CUL 2 Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the applicant shall 

provide written verification to the City that a qualified 

archaeologist and a Native American monitor associated 

with a TCA Tribe have been retained to implement the 

monitoring program. The archaeologist shall be responsible 

for coordinating with the Native American monitor. This 

verification shall be presented to the City in a letter from the 

project archaeologist that confirms the selected Native 

American monitor is associated with a TCA Tribe. The 

City, prior to any pre-construction meeting, shall approve 

all persons involved in the monitoring program 

Tribal Cultural Resources 

(5).  Mitigation Measure 

#2   

Applicant   

CUL 3 The qualified archaeologist and a Native American monitor 

shall attend the pre-grading meeting with the grading 

contractors to explain and coordinate the requirements of 

the monitoring program 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure #3 

Applicant   

CUL 4 During the initial grubbing, site grading, excavation or 

disturbance of the ground surface, the qualified 

archaeologist and the Native American monitor shall be on 

site full-time.  The frequency of inspections shall depend on 

the rate of excavation, the materials excavated, and any 

discoveries of tribal cultural resources as defined in 

California Public Resources Code Section 21074. 

Archaeological and Native American monitoring will be 

discontinued when the depth of grading and soil conditions 

no longer retain the potential to contain cultural deposits. 

The qualified archaeologist, in consultation with the Native 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure #4 

Applicant   



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 3 of 6 
 

American monitor, shall be responsible for determining the 

duration and frequency of monitoring 

CUL 5 In the event that previously unidentified tribal cultural 

resources are discovered, the qualified archaeologist and the 

Native American monitor shall have the authority to 

temporarily divert or temporarily halt ground disturbance 

operation in the area of discovery to allow for the evaluation 

of potentially significant cultural resources. Isolates and 

clearly non-significant deposits shall be minimally 

documented in the field and collected so the monitored 

grading can proceed 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure #5 

Applicant   

CUL 6 If a potentially significant tribal cultural resource is 

discovered, the archaeologist shall notify the City of said 

discovery. The qualified archaeologist, in consultation with 

the City, the TCA Tribe and the Native American monitor, 

shall determine the significance of the discovered resource. 

A recommendation for the tribal cultural resource’s 

treatment and disposition shall be made by the qualified 

archaeologist in consultation with the TCA Tribe and the 

Native American monitor and be submitted to the City for 

review and approval. 

 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure #6 

Applicant   

CUL 7 The avoidance and/or preservation of the significant tribal 

cultural resource and/or unique archaeological resource 

must first be considered and evaluated as required by 

CEQA. Where any significant tribal cultural resources 

and/or unique archaeological resources have been 

discovered and avoidance and/or preservation measures are 

deemed to be infeasible by the City, then a research design 

and data recovery program to mitigate impacts shall be 

prepared by the qualified archaeologist (using professional 

archaeological methods), in consultation with the TCA 

Tribe and the Native American monitor, and shall be subject 

to approval by the City. The archaeological monitor, in 

consultation with the Native American monitor, shall 

determine the amount of material to be recovered for an 

adequate artifact sample for analysis. Before construction 

activities are allowed to resume in the affected area, the 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure #7 

Applicant   



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 4 of 6 
 

research design and data recovery program activities must 

be concluded to the satisfaction of the City 

CUL 8 As specified by California Health and Safety Code Section 

7050.5, if human remains are found on the project site 

during construction or during archaeological work, the 

person responsible for the excavation, or his or her 

authorized representative, shall immediately notify the San 

Diego County Coroner’s office. Determination of whether 

the remains are human shall be conducted on-site and in situ 

where they were discovered by a forensic anthropologist, 

unless the forensic anthropologist and the Native American 

monitor agree to remove the remains to an off-site location 

for examination. No further excavation or disturbance of the 

site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 

adjacent remains shall occur until the Coroner has made the 

necessary findings as to origin and disposition. A temporary 

construction exclusion zone shall be established 

surrounding the area of the discovery so that the area would 

be protected, and consultation and treatment could occur as 

prescribed by law. In the event that the remains are 

determined to be of Native American origin, the Most 

Likely Descendant, as identified by the Native American 

Heritage Commission, shall be contacted in order to 

determine proper treatment and disposition of the remains 

in accordance with California Public Resources Code 

section 5097.98. The Native American remains shall be 

kept in-situ, or in a secure location in close proximity to 

where they were found, and the analysis of the remains shall 

only occur on-site in the presence of a Native American 

monitor 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure #8 

Applicant   

CUL 9 If the qualified archaeologist elects to collect any tribal 

cultural resources, the Native American monitor must be 

present during any testing or cataloging of those resources. 

Moreover, if the qualified Archaeologist does not collect 

the cultural resources that are unearthed during the ground 

disturbing activities, the Native American monitor, may at 

their discretion, collect said resources and provide them to 

the TCA Tribe for respectful and dignified treatment in 

accordance with the Tribe’s cultural and spiritual traditions.  

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure #9 

Applicant   



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Any tribal cultural resources collected by the qualified 

archaeologist shall be repatriated to the TCA Tribe. Should 

the TCA Tribe or other traditionally and culturally affiliated 

tribe decline the collection, the collection shall be curated 

at the San Diego Archaeological Center. All other resources 

determined by the qualified archaeologist, in consultation 

with the Native American monitor, to not be tribal cultural 

resources, shall be curated at the San Diego Archaeological 

Center 

CUL 10 Prior to the release of the grading bond, a monitoring report 

and/or evaluation report, if appropriate, which describes the 

results, analysis and conclusion of the archaeological 

monitoring program and any data recovery program on the 

project site shall be submitted by the qualified archaeologist 

to the City. The Native American monitor shall be 

responsible for providing any notes or comments to the 

qualified archaeologist in a timely manner to be submitted 

with the report. The report will include California 

Department of Parks and Recreation Primary and 

Archaeological Site Forms for any newly discovered 

resources 

Tribal Cultural Resource 

(6)- Mitigation Measure 

#10 

Applicant   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
  



Ordinance No. 2018-18 
Exhibit “D” 

Page 6 of 6 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ENFORCEABLE COMMITMENT 
Case No.: ENV17-0003 

 

 



- 1 - 
 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 
Updated August 9, 2018 

 

 

 

 
 
 

August 22, 2018 
4:30 p.m.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Bid Award for CityWorks PLL Project Development and Implementation 

(R. Van De Hey) 
 
The CityWorks PLL Project is a four-part project that includes the conversion from TrakIt to the implementation, 
configuration, and data conversion to CityWorks PLL, the implementation of the Timmons Group Public Facing 
Portal compatible with CityWorks PLL, the purchase of Hyland OnBase software licensing, and the 
implementation of OnBase which will allow for plan review and document management for CityWorks PLL. Once 
complete, the CityWorks PLL Project will allow the City of Escondido to better manage projects, mapping, 
permits, inspections, fee collections, and a wide variety of other activities related to permitting, planning, and 
engineering review. Detailed workflows are designed within to create workplace efficiencies as well as track the 
project’s process from application to completion.  

 Resolution Establishing the Property Tax Rate and Fixed Charge Assessments 
for Bonded Indebtedness for Fiscal Year 2018-19 
(S. Bennett) 
 
Each year, a property tax rate is established to generate an amount of revenue from the property tax base that 
is sufficient to pay the General Obligation Bond debt service (principal and interest) for the current tax year.  

 First Amendment to the Public Services Agreement for Right of Way Landscape 
Maintenance Services with Steven Smith Landscaping Inc. 
(J. Goulart) 
 
On May 5, 2017, RFP No. 18-02, Right of Way Landscape Maintenance Services, was mailed to fourteen (14) 
landscape contractors for the maintenance of seventy (70) City-owned facilities, right of ways, and medians. 
On June 28, 2017, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2017-89, authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute a Public Services Agreement with Steven Smith Landscaping Inc. for Right of Way Maintenance 
Services. RFP No. 18-02 specifies an initial term for one-year with four (4) additional one-year contract options. 
Outsourcing landscape maintenance has proven to be a cost effective means of providing this valuable public 
service.  

 Student Success Initiative Grant Application 
(J. Axelrod) 
 
City Council is being asked to approve an application to the Pacific Library Partnership 2018-19 Student Success 
Initiative program.  

  

AGENDA ITEMS AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

CHECK WITH THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT 839-4617 



- 2 - 
 

August 22, 2018 
Continued  

CONSENT CALENDAR Continued 
 Kit Carson Park Wetland Permits Mitigation Areas Consultant Bid Award 

(C. McKinney) 
 
City of Escondido Utilities established two wetland mitigation areas at Kit Carson Park near Eagle Scout Lake in 
2012 and 2017. The two adjacent areas total about six acres and allow for ongoing maintenance of drainage 
channels (Regional General Permit (RGP) 94, Spruce Street Channel) and the sewer outfall (RGP 87). The 
establishment, maintenance, and biological monitoring of the mitigation areas are governed by multiple permits 
that require specialized expertise that the consultant will provide through approximately June 2021.  

 Disposition of 1751 Citracado Parkway, Mountain Shadows Mobile Home Park – 
Lot Number 99, Real Property to R.A. Rossi, Inc.  
(J. Procopio) 
 
An offer has been received for the privately-owned mobile home coach to be removed and City-owned lot 
number 99 within the Mountain Shadows Mobile Home Park be sold. The offer has been determined to represent 
fair market value and the parties now desire to move forward with the transaction through escrow. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 Short-Form Rent Review Board Hearing for Casa Grande Estates 

(B. Martin) 
 
The application meets all the eligibility criteria for submittal of a short-form rent increase application. The 
amount requested covers a 24-month period of consideration from December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2017. 
Seventy-five percent of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the period of 3.574 percent. The average 
space rent for the 96 spaces subject to rent control is $590.32. The average requested increase per space is 
approximately $20.10.  

 Commitment of HOME CHDO Funds and Approval and Authorization for Release 
of Request for Proposals for Affordable Housing Purposes 
(B. Martin) 
 
The City has approximately $236,220 of HOME CHDO and $915,000 of non-CHDO HOME funds that must be 
used for affordable housing purposes. 2016 HOME CHDO funds must be fully committed through September 
30, 2018. Final recommendations for the award of non-CHDO funds will be brought to Council for award in 
November 2018.  

CURRENT BUSINESS 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (D. Halverson) 
 
 

August 29, 2018 
NO MEETING (5th Wednesday) 

 
 
 



 

1 
 

August 9, 2018 
 
FEATURED THIS WEEK 
 
One Stop Systems Expands Design, Manufacturing and Test Facilities in Escondido! 
Escondido’s One Stop Systems, Inc. has signed a six-year lease that expands its 
headquarters by more than a third. Read more about their expansion here: 
https://www.nasdaq.com/press-release/one-stop-systems-expands-design-manufacturing-and-
test-facilities-20180803-00622 

 
 

DOC FC Heat & Escondido Soccer Club Creates Documentary to Air in China 

A teenage film crew shot footage from around the City and interviewed various local dignitaries 
to put together their documentary to send to China which will air on Chinese television and be 
shown to the mayor of Dalian and council members of Beijing. View their work here: 
https://youtu.be/P7oql29UEL0 
 
Stay Connected to Your City! 
The City publishes five monthly newsletters on a variety of topics. To learn more or to opt in, 
visit our new one-stop sign up page by clicking the image below. 
 

 
 



 

 2 

New Recreation Guide for Fall 
The 2018 Fall Recreation Guide covering September – December 2018 is now in print and 
registration for classes and activities is open. Check your mailbox or visit 
https://recreation.escondido.org/guide.aspx to browse the offerings for all ages, interests, and 
ability levels.  

 
 

Visit Escondido Featured on 101 Things To Do In San Diego 
Escondido is proud to be one of the top activities in the County! Learn more here: 
https://101thingstodosw.com/san-diego/activities/visit-escondido/ 
 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Major Projects Update 
 
The following major projects are being reviewed and coordinated by Planning, Engineering, Fire, 
Building and Utilities.  The list of projects below encompasses recent project updates and/or 
milestones from last week.   
 
Commercial / Office: 
 
1. Escondido Research and Technology Center (ERTC) – West (Developer: James McCann) 

2181 Citracado Parkway – A plan for a new two-story, 57,000 SF, 52-bed Palomar 
Rehabilitation Institute was submitted as a Plot Plan on July 31, 2017. The Plot Plan approval 
letter was issued on February 7, 2018. A second grading plan check was submitted by the 
applicant on April 16, 2018, and the grading permit is ready to be issued once bonds are 



 

 3 

posted and fees paid.  The Building Division provided the applicant a fee calculation for the 
development impact fees on July 11, 2018. 
 

2. Talk of the Town Gas Station/Convenience Store (Developer: Munthar Ghazal) 400 
Brotherton Road – A proposed CUP modification to add a gas station next to the carwash 
and use part of the vacant restaurant building for a related convenience store was submitted 
on March 7, 2018. The applicant submitted revised plans on May 24, 2018, and has had a 
follow-up meeting with Fire. Comments were sent back to the applicant on June 22, 2018. 
The applicant recently notified staff they were considering alternative uses for the commercial 
building and would be back in touch. 

 
3. Ritz Theater “The Grand” (Developer: New Venture Church) 301, 309 E. Grand Avenue – A 

proposed CUP to renovate the existing Ritz Theater and adjacent commercial building to 
provide for a variety of assembly uses including performing arts and religious services. A 
café, offices and classroom studios are also included. The application was submitted on May 
17, 2018. The applicant submitted revised plans on July 3, 2018.  The Historic Preservation 
Commission considered historic-related design issues on July 19, 2018, and provided 
direction to the applicant. Planning provided comments from all departments to the applicant 
on July 31, 2018. Preparation of the environmental documents is underway. The applicant 
requested expedited processing through the Business Enhancement Zone regulations at a 
City Council Economic Development Subcommittee meeting on August 9, 2018. 

 
Industrial 

 
1. Escondido Self-Storage Facility (Developer: Brandywine Homes, Inc.) 2319 Cranston Dr. – 

Updated building plans were resubmitted into plan check on July 24, 2018.  The final map is 
tentatively scheduled to be considered by City Council on September 19, 2018. All fees have 
been paid to Engineering and bonds have now been posted. 
 

City Projects 
 
1. Micro-Filtration Reverse Osmosis (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) SE 

corner Ash/Washington – The City Council approved a contractual agreement with Black and 
Veatch for design-build engineering services on April 4, 2018. The design-build engineer will 
complete final design and help select and manage a design-build contractor for construction 
of the project. A project design kick-off meeting occurred on June 13, 2018. 

 
2. Lake Wohlford Replacement Dam (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – A 

Draft EIR was prepared and issued for a 45-day public review period that began on October 
4, 2016 and closed on November 17, 2016. A field visit with staff from the state and federal 
wildlife agencies took place on May 11, 2017, to review biological mitigation requirements 
including an agency request for full mitigation for emergent vegetation at the eastern end of 
the lake that came into existence since the lake level was reduced for safety reasons. Staff 
sent a follow-up letter to the wildlife agencies on June 29, 2017, seeking clarification on the 
proposed biological mitigation requirements. Additional information is being compiled by the 
City’s biological consultants based on recent conversations with the agencies. 

 



 

 4 

Institutional 
 
1. Escondido Assisted Living (Developer: Tigg Mitchell, Mitchell Group) 1802 N. Centre City 

Parkway – This CUP application for a 71,300 SF three-story, assisted living and memory 
care facility with 90 total units was submitted on October 31, 2017. The City Council 
authorized review of a General Plan Amendment request on March 21, 2018, which was 
necessary to review the request to allow a third floor for the building. The applicant has been 
actively engaged with Fire, Engineering and Planning staff and has provided several 
revisions intended to address identified issues with the most recent project revision received 
on June 25, 2018. SB 18 consultation with a local Native American band occurred on July 24, 
2018. Draft environmental documents are expected to be submitted next week. 

 
Residential 

 
1. Wohlford Subdivision (Developer: Jack Henthorne) 55 lots at 661 Bear Valley Pkwy. – The 

Planning Commission voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the project on June 26, 2018. A 
City Council hearing has been scheduled for August 15, 2018. 

 
2. Safari Highlands Ranch (SHR) (Developer: Jeb Hall, Concordia Homes) 550 lots east of 

Rancho San Pasqual – A Notice of Availability for the Draft EIR was issued on October 16, 
2017 for public review and comment. The comment period ended on January 2, 2018. Staff 
transmitted all the comment letters and emails to the Draft EIR consultant for review and to 
prepare a response to each comment.  The Draft EIR and appendices have been posted 
on the City’s website at the following link:   

 
https://www.escondido.org/safari-highlands-ranch-specific-plan.aspx 
 
It is expected the responses to comments will generate related revisions to the project 
design. The applicant’s engineer is currently working to incorporate those revisions into the 
proposed tentative map. 
 

3. 18 lots at 701 San Pasqual Valley Rd (Developer: Bob Stewart) – Staff comments on the 
revised tentative map were issued the last week of July 2017. Staff is currently reviewing 
revised plans submitted by the applicant on April 5, 2018.  Planning staff met with the 
applicant on June 27, 2018 to discuss remaining issues. The applicant met with the Fire 
Department the following week. The applicant resubmitted a revised pdf version of the plans 
that was given a courtesy review by staff. 

 
4. The Villages at Escondido Country Club (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West, Inc.) 380 

residences – The City Council voted 3-2 to approve the project on November 15, 2017. A 
lawsuit challenging the project approval was filed in Superior Court on behalf of the 
Escondido Country Club Homeowners (ECCHO) on December 15, 2017. The City has 
agreed to review construction plans for the project while the lawsuit is pending, but not issue 
any construction permits. The applicant submitted rough grading plans, drainage 
improvement plans and utility relocation plans for all three villages on May 7, 2018. 
Engineering plan check comments were issued on June 5, 2018. Planning comments also 
were issued the second week of June. Landscape plans were submitted on June 5, 2018. 
The applicant submitted the final map, revised grading plans and other improvement plans 
on July 9, 2018. Comments on the revised plans were sent to the applicant on August 3, 



 

 5 

2018. Engineering met with the applicant’s engineer on August 7, 2018, to review those 
comments. 

 
The approved tentative subdivision map, Final EIR and appendices, Specific Plan and other 
related information can be accessed on the City’s website at the following link:  

 
https://www.escondido.org/ecc.aspx 

 
5. North Avenue Estates (Developer: Casey Johnson) 34 lots at North Ave./Conway Dr. –The 

City Council approved the project on January 10, 2018. The LAFCO application for 
annexation was submitted to LAFCO on February 20, 2018. LAFCO has prepared and 
distributed a draft staff report, and the County Department of Environmental Health is 
reviewing the submitted geotechnical data per LAFCO request.  Final engineering plans were 
submitted on May 24, 2018. Comments were returned to the applicant on July 5, 2018.  

 
6. Aspire (106 condo units on Municipal Lot 1) (Developer: Addison Garza, Touchstone 

Communities) – The proposal consists of a six-story mixed-use development across from 
City Hall on Parking Lot 1. The project was initially submitted for entitlement processing on 
June 23, 2017. Subsequent meetings with the applicant and staff have been on-going, and 
the most recent resubmittal of the project plans was received on May 10, 2018. Fire is 
awaiting confirmation that Maple Street will support the weight of their apparatus. A Traffic 
Impact Analysis has been provided and Planning is awaiting submittal of the rest of the 
environmental documentation for review. 

 
7. The Ivy (95 condo units at 343 E. 2nd) (Developer: Addison Garza, Touchstone 

Communities) - The condo project was initially submitted for entitlement processing on June 
23, 2017. Subsequent meetings with the applicant and staff have been on-going, and the 
most recent resubmittal of the project plans was received on May 10, 2018. The applicant 
has proposed changing circulation through the adjacent alley to one-way southbound; and a 
field demonstration of fire truck turning radii at the site occurred on May 2, 2018. Fire has 
now indicated they support the project design. An environmental initial study and Draft 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) were submitted for review on June 11, 2018. 
Comments on the MND were sent to the applicant and consultant on July 30, 2018.  
Planning met with the applicant and consultant to discuss the comments on August 9, 2018. 

 
8. Grand Avenue Apartments (Developer: Norm LaCaze, Escondido Venture 99, LLC) 15 apt. 

units at 1316 E. Grand Ave. – A planned development application proposing 15 multi-family 
units in one three-story building on a vacant 0.51-acre lot was submitted for entitlement 
processing on September 22, 2017. Several follow-up meetings with staff were held to 
discuss the outstanding issues regarding the project design and revised plans were 
submitted in early April. Planning Fire, Engineering and Utilities comments on the revised 
plans were sent to the applicant on April 25, 2018. Planning and Engineering met with the 
applicant on May 31, 2018 to discuss the comments. Utilities met with the applicant on June 
12, 2018, and resolved that no new hydrants or water main extensions will be required on the 
site, but there may be a need to upsize an existing hydrant to meet fire flow standards. 
Revised plans are expected to be submitted to Planning next week. 

 
9. Quince Street Senior Housing (Developer: Matt Jumper, 220 Quince, L.P.) 145 apartment 

units at 220 N. Quince St.– The five-story affordable senior housing apartment project was 



 

 6 

submitted on November 21, 2017. Four meetings with the applicant team and multiple city 
departments have occurred since the project submittal to discuss project design issues, with 
the most recent meeting occurring on July 12, 2018. Utilities conducted a fire flow test at the 
site on June 26, 2018. Fire and Utilities have provided comments on latest site constraints 
exhibit that was received on July 23, 2018. 

 
10.Sager Ranch/Daley Ranch Resort Specific Plan (Developer: J. Whalen Associates, Inc., 

Sager Ranch Partners) 203 housing units and 225-room resort hotel on 1,783-acres, just 
north and east of Dailey Ranch – This proposed residential and resort hotel annexation and 
specific plan project was received on March 2, 2018. The project submittal has been deemed 
incomplete and a letter from staff requesting additional project related information was sent to 
the applicant on April 4, 2018. Requested information includes annexation exhibits, proposed 
general plan amendment text, a proposed Transfer of Development Rights Program, 
environmental initial study, and a fiscal impact analysis. Planning met with the applicant on 
May 17, 2018 to discuss items listed in the letter. A follow-up meeting to discuss engineering 
issues occurred on June 27, 2018. The applicant met with Escondido Fire and Valley Center 
Fire on August 1, 2018 to discuss fire protection issues. 

 
 A project webpage containing draft documents and plans has been added to the Planning 

Division’s website at the following link:  
 
 Daley Ranch Resort Specific Plan - City of Escondido 
 
11. Nutmeg Condo General Plan Amendment (Developer: Jim Simmons, CCI) 137 townhome 

condo units on 7.7 acres on both sides of Nutmeg between I-15 and Centre City Parkway – 
This proposed multi-family residential development includes a GPA from Office to Urban III 
(up to 18 du/acre) as well as a vacation of approximately one acre of public right-of-way for 
use in the project. The project application was received on June 15, 2018. Comments from 
Planning, Fire, Engineering, Utilities and Traffic Engineering were provided to the applicant 
on July 13, 2018. A follow-up meeting with the applicant to discuss the comments occurred 
on July 31, 2018.  Engineering has indicated that a specific alignment plan will be required to 
address the street radius on Nutmeg in the vicinity of the project. 

 
12. Oak Creek (Builder: KB Homes) 65 single-family residential lots on approximately 44 acres at 

Felicita Road and Hamilton Lane – This planned residential development project was 
originally approved by the City Council in March of 2015, and a three-year extension of time 
was recently granted. The original developer, New Urban West, has secured permits from 
CDFW, ACOE and RWQCB.  Grading, drainage and storm water management plans were 
submitted for first plan check on July 25, 2018. A Response Plan for remediation of a small 
area of hazardous soil was submitted to Planning on August 1, 2018.  

 
13. Accessory Dwelling Units – Planning staff is currently working on five applications for 

accessory dwelling units.  14 accessory dwelling units have been approved so far this year. 
Three accessory dwelling units were approved last year. 



 

 7 

Building Division: 
 
The following graph shows the value of permits collected year-to-date compared to last year at 
this time. 

$0 $10 $20 $30 $40 $50 $60 $70 $80 $90

Millions

Permit Values

2018 2017

 
 
The following graph shows the number of permits issued year-to-date compared to last year at 
this time. 
 

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

Permit Application

Solar Permits

Building Permits

2018 2017

 
1. The Building Division issued 89 permits (including 27 solar photovoltaic) last week with a 

total valuation of $346,589. 
 

2. Our building inspectors responded to 201 inspection requests for the week.  



 

 8 

 
3. The Meadowbrook three-story apartment building with underground garage at 2081 Garden 

Valley Glen is preparing the building for final inspection. The fire stopping in the lobby was 
inspected on August 2, 2018. 

 
4. The student housing complex for Westminster Seminary at 1725 Bear Valley Pkwy has 

received final inspection approval for Buildings A, D, F, and G.  Building B has received a 
partial final inspection approval for four units.  

 
5. The Emanuel Faith Church education building at 639 E 17th Ave is preparing for final 

inspection and temporary electrical service has been released. The foundation and 
underground electric for the parking lot lights have been approved. No change from the 
previous. 
 

6. The Veterans Village residential project at 1540 S Escondido Blvd has received exterior 
lath approval for Building 1, and lath and drywall approval for Building 2. No change from 
the previous. 
 

7. The new drive-thru restaurant at 720 N. Center City Pkwy, the new retail building at 730 N. 
Centre City Pkwy and the new drive-thru restaurant at 700 N. Centre City Pkwy have 
received underground water service piping inspection and are preparing for a final 
inspection of the exterior shell buildings. Construction of the interior tenant improvements 
has started. The foundations and underground electric for the parking lot lighting have been 
approved. No change from the previous. 

 
8. The Latitude 2, apartment buildings at 610-650 N. Center City Pkwy have daily inspections 

for framing, electrical and plumbing, floor and roof sheathing, and drop ceiling framing. No 
change from the previous. 
 

9. The new two story church sanctuary building at 1864 N Broadway has received exterior 
lath and roof sheathing inspection approval. No change from the previous. 
 

10. The 212,000 SF industrial shell building at 2005 Harmony Grove has received inspection 
approval for the exterior parking lot light standards.  A final building inspection took place 
on August 7, 2018, and a correction notice was issued. 
 

11. The new 63-unit condominium project, Citron, at 2516 S. Escondido Blvd has received a 
temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the sales office and Building 1 models.  Floor 
sheathing on Building 2 has received inspection approval. Underground plumbing approval 
has been granted for Building 4. 
 

12. The new 105-room Springhill Suites hotel at 200 La Terraza Blvd. has received rough 
plumbing approval for all floors in the south wing. 

 
13. The four-story, 102,774 sf Storquest self-storage facility at 222 W. Mission Avenue has 

received third floor “pan deck” inspection and podium slab approval. No change from the 
previous. 

 



 

 9 

14. The new five-story Cubesmart self-storage facility at 852 Metcalf Street has received 
underground plumbing approval. 

 
Code Enforcement 
 

 
Business Licenses  

 

 
 
 

 



 

 10 

Graffiti Restitution 
 

Collected This Week Collected Year to Date 

$100 $6,786.92 

 
ENGINEERING 
 
Capital Improvements 
 
Valley Pkwy/Valley Center Road Widening Project: Calendar Day 266 
The concrete contractor completed the remaining concrete surface improvements along the 
west side of the project on Thursday, August 2 of last week. The masonry contractor has 
returned to install the rock veneer to the wall pilaster along the dog park sound wall. The 
paving subcontractor placed 1,653 tons of base course asphalt during this week’s two-day 
paving operation. This will allow the transfer of south bound vehicle traffic onto this new 
roadway section in the coming weeks. The street light contractor will be standing the remaining 
16 ornamental street lights along the projects limits this week. The landscape contractor is 
preparing the tree wells for the 142 trees to be planted along the project. There are 7 different 
typed of trees for this project. The City has installed the first of two irrigation meters this week. 
This will allow for the coverage test to begin in preparation of planting material in the next 
couple of weeks.    
                    
Transit Center Pedestrian Bridge Project 
No changes from that reported last week: Transit Center Pedestrian Bridge and Spruce Street 
Channel Improvement Project is moving forward with 100% design.  Resource agency permits 
from the Regional Water Board and Fish & Wildlife have been obtained and the City is now 
pursuing final Permit from Army Corps.  Negotiations of drainage/wall easements and TCEs 
with property owners are underway.  
 
Missing Link Project 
The traffic signal contractor began the installation of conduit along Broadway this week. The 
prime contractor has received storm drain elements which will allow for the bus pad 
construction along Valley Parkway at Orange Avenue.        
 
PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 
 
Centerpointe 78 
The traffic signals located at the Escondido Boulevard/Lincoln Avenue and Broadway/ Lincoln 
Avenue intersections were energized on Wednesday of last week. The signal timing for the 
Lincoln /Broadway signal is being closely monitored by both City and Caltrans staff. The 
proximity of the two traffic signal controlled intersections requires that they communicate to 
ensure smooth traffic flow through this heavily traveled corridor.       
     
Centre City Shopping Center 
No changes from that reported last week: The water quality basins located along the Centre 
City Parkway frontage are the main focus of work this week. The project is located at 425 W. 
Mission Avenue. 
 



 

 11 

Tract 932 - Canyon Grove Shea Homes Community 
No new items to report this week. 
        
Latitude II Condominiums by a Lyon Homes Partnership: Washington Avenue @ Centre 
City Parkway: 
No changes from that reported last week: The contractor is installing the remaining storm drain 
pipe along Washington Avenue this week. This construction will require the closure of the #2 
westbound lane on Washington Avenue between the hours of 5 A.M. and 3:30 P.M. Electronic 
message boards will be placed in advance of the work zone to reroute vehicle traffic to 
alternate routes.    
 
Exeter Industrial Park 
The contractor is continuing on the construction of the bio retention basins this week. The 
offsite improvement is being started this week, which include the placement of concrete curb 
and gutters. The project is located at 2005 Harmony Grove Road and is 5.4 acres in size. 
 
Citron Project 
No changes from that reported last week: Offsite public improvements along Escondido 
Boulevard have been completed.  The onsite sewer system is presently being tested.  This is a 
65-unit condo project located at 2516 S. Escondido Boulevard. 
 
Gateway Project 
No changes from that reported last week: The contractor has completed the sewer manhole 
and connection lateral in Valley Parkway. Due to the high volume of traffic along this section of 
roadway, this work was completed during an overnight operation. Construction activity has 
shifted to the Grand Avenue frontage this week. This work will be performed during normal 
business hours. The project is located at 700 W. Grand Avenue, the previous site of Escondido 
Police Department. 
 
Emanuel Faith Church 
Construction of the remaining ADA ramp at the southwest corner of Felicita and Encino Drive 
is being formed this week. The completion of the traffic signal is on hold due pending the 
delivery of the traffic signal poles.    
 
Lincoln Rock Apartments 
The construction of a retaining wall is proceeding along the freeway frontage. The wall is a 
design element for the construction of the bio retention basin. The project is located at the 
southwest corner of Rock Springs Road and Lincoln Avenue.   
 
KB Homes 
Construction for the offsite improvements along Vista Avenue is continuing this week with the 
completion of all concrete driveway and concrete curb improvements. The placing of base 
course asphalt pavement is scheduled for Friday of this week. The roadway improvements will 
widen Vista Avenue by 12 feet, including full street repaving between Paradise Street and Nina 
Place. Vista Avenue has been posted for one-way traffic eastbound along this section for the 
next 3 weeks. All residents are being notified with electronic message boards as well as door 
cards placed at each residence. Detours for westbound traffic will be clearly posted along Ash 
Street directing motorists to Stanley and again onto Broadway.     
 



 

 12 

FIRE 

 

 
 

Total Emergency Responses (Year To Date) 9,489 

 



 

 13 

News: 
Mutual Aid Updates 
 

 On Sunday, July 15th OES8632 was deployed to the Ferguson Incident in Mariposa 
County (Captain Nugent and crew timed out and returned home safely on Monday, July 
30th. OES8632 redeployed Captain Abraham, Engineer Hansen and Firefighter 
Paramedics Jones and Ouellette were deployed.  

 

 On Thursday, July 26th The City of Escondido Fire Department deployed FireFighter 
Paramedic Koji to the Cranston Fire in Riverside County as a Line Medic. He returned 
home safely August 8th.  

 

 On Friday, July 27th The City of Escondido Fire Department deployed Engineer Polito to 
the Carr Fire in Shasta County as a Public Information Officer.  

 

 On Monday, July 30th The City of Escondido Fire Department deployed Engineer Bihun 
to the Mendocino Complex as a Public Information Officer.  

 

 On Saturday, July 28th The City of Escondido Fire Department deployed Battalion Chief 
Bertrand to the Pasqual Incident as a Division Supervisor. E134 and BR132 were 
requested as single resources in an immediate need status and assigned alongside 
Strike Team 6410C (Battalion Chief Paredes and Captain Duralde) and a Zone Type 3 
Strike Team. Strike Team 6410C returned home safely on Wednesday, August 1st while 
Battalion Chief Bertrand was reassigned to the CARR Fire in Redding.  

 
POLICE 
INCIDENTS: 

 On 07-28-18, Marni Foote called EPD stating she was just robbed at gun point in the 
parking lot of Target at North County Fair. There was an additional witness who saw the 
suspect vehicle flee and provided a vehicle description. Approximately ten minutes later 
officers locate the described vehicle on the 1200 block of Rincon Rd. The female driver 
(Victoria Torres 18yrs) and male passenger (Frankie Chavez 21yrs) were detained. A 
loaded handgun was found on Chavez during the detention. Chavez was positively 
identified as the armed robbery suspect as well as the vehicle. Torres was also arrested 
for conspiracy.  
 

 On 08/02/18, At about 0506 hours, officers were dispatched to 7 Eleven (503 W. 
Washington Av) reference a report of a robbery.  Multiple officers arrived on scene while 
information regarding the call was still coming out.  The 7 Eleven clerk told officers the 
suspect demanded he open the cash register while simulating that he had a weapon. 
After the suspect fled on foot, the 7 Eleven clerk provided suspect description including 
a stolen hat and facial tattoos.  Victor Barba (from VSM Ghost Town street gang) was 
detained next door near the Econo Lodge lobby while wearing the hat he stole.  He was 
positively identified as the suspect and arrested without incident.    

 

 On 08/02/18, At 1025 hours, Jorge Antonio Valencia approached three adult males the 
Flood Control Channel at Quince and swung a 5-foot bicycle chain at them. He struck 
two of the males; one in the back, forehead, and mouth, and the other in the shins. The 
victims suffered minor lacerations, a broken tooth, and bruising. The suspect remained 



 

 14 

at the scene and was taken into custody by officers without incident. He was later 
booked into Vista Jail for Assault with a Deadly Weapon.  

 

 On 08/04/18, At approximately 0326 hours, officers were dispatched to 485 N. Citrus Av 
to investigate a report of a male who had been stabbed. It was determined that the 
victim was stabbed with an unknown weapon, at an unknown nearby address, by an 
unknown subject. The victim had a ½” – ¾” stab wound on his lower right leg and 
various cuts and scratches throughout his body. The victim was treated at PMC for non-
life threatening injuries.  

 

 On 08/04/18, At about 0350 hours, two suspects were walking southbound on 
Goldenrod St. and confronted two subjects who were standing in front of their home on 
the 600 block of Goldenrod St.  The two suspects robbed one of the victims and 
stabbed another while claiming to be from the West Side Gang.  One of the suspects 
was armed with a gun; the other with a screwdriver.  The suspects fled the scene on 
foot and the suspect who was armed with a gun, also threatened a 15 year-old who was 
standing in front of another residence on Goldenrod St.  A short time later, Officer Mat 
Ciremele found one of the suspects (Marcos Galindo) in Washington Park and initiated 
a foot pursuit.  Galindo jumped into the backyard of 524 El Rancho Lane where he was 
eventually found hiding inside his bedroom.  The investigation is ongoing.   

 

COPPS: 

The COPPS (Community Oriented Policing and Problem-Solving) Unit is dedicated to 
increasing the quality of life for the residents of Escondido through pro-active responses to 
crime trends, quality of life issues, and addressing crime and public nuisance in Grape Day 
Park and at Maple Plaza.      
 

 11 arrests were made  

 10 citations were issued 

 27 radio calls 
 

### 


	CONSENT CALENDAR
	#4 - FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH TEMPLETON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. TO PROVIDE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES TO THE CITY AND RECEIVE AND FILE SECOND QUARTER 2018 INVESTMENT REPORT -
	Attachment 1 - Summary of Investment Allocation 
	Attachment 2 - Summary of Investest Portfollio Yields
	Attachment 3 - Investment Portfolio
	Attachment 4 - Transactions Summary
	Attachment 5 - Funds Managed by Outside Parties
	Attachment 6 - Summary of Average Yield Calculation
	Attachment 7 - Monthly Portfolio Report
	R2018-135
	R2018-135 Exhibit A First Amendment To Consulting Agreement with Templeton 8.15.18

	#5 - 2018 WEST FOUNDATION CANINE GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT -
	Budget Adjustment

	#6 - YEAR 2019 HOLIDAYS -
	R2018-125
	R2018-125 - Exhibit A Holiday Schedule

	#7 - REPEAL ESCONDIDO MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 19, ARTICLE 2, BOARD OF REVIEW, AND AMEND CITY PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS RULE 28, ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW, AND APPEAL TO BOARD OF REVIEW -
	R2018-139
	R2018-139 Exhibit A Rule 28
	O2018-08


	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	#8 - REZONE, MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN, DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, GRADING EXEMPTIONS, AND SPECIFIC ALIGNMENT PLAN - WOHLFORD RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION (SUB 15-0002, PHG 15-0004, AND ENV 15-0001)
	Attachment A Planning Commission Staff Report
	Attachment B Draft Planning Commission Minutes
	Attachment C Correspondence
	R2018-120
	R2018-120 Exhibit A
	R2018-120 Exhibit B
	R2018-120 Exhibit C
	R2018-120 Exhibit D
	R2018-122
	R2018-122 Exhibit A
	R2018-122 Exhibit B
	O2018-17
	O2018-17 Exhibit A
	O2018-17 Exhibit B
	O2018-17 Exhibit C

	#9 - AMENDMENTS TO THE ESCONDIDO ZONING CODE AND DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN TO CONDITIONALLY PERMIT DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANTS AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A NEW DRIVE-THROUGH RESTAURANT AT 350 W. VALLEY PARKWAY (PHG 17-0014, PHG 17-0015, AND ENV 17-0003) -
	Attachment 1 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
	Attachment 2 Planning Commission Staff Report
	R2018-124
	R2018-124  Exhibit A
	R2018-124 Exhibit B
	R2018-124 Exhibit C 
	O2018-18
	O2018-18 Exhibit A
	O2018-18 Exhibit B
	O2018-18 Exhibit C
	O2018-18 Exhibit D


	FUTURE AGENDA
	#10 - FUTURE AGENDA -

	CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT
	WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT -




